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TO BOARD MEMBER 
Yarra Plenty Regional Library 
Board 
The next meeting will be held 

AGENDA PAPER 
Thursday, 15 August 2019 

6.00pm 

 
DATE AND TIME: 

Thursday 15 August, 2019 at 
6.00pm 

 
LOCATION: 

Griffin Room, 
Banyule City Council offices. 
1 Flintoff Street, Greensborough 

 
REFRESHMENTS: 

Will be available from 5.30pm 

 
APOLOGIES: 

If you cannot attend the meeting, 
please email dlamb@yprl.vic.gov.au   
by Monday 12 August 2019. 
 
Chief Executive Officer 

 

 
A.     Apologies 

B.     Disclosures of Interest, declaration of   
Pecuniary and Conflict of Interest 

C.     Confirmation of the Minutes of the 
Meeting of 20 June 2019 

D.     Presentation of General Reports 

E.     Continuation of matters lapsed from 
previous meetings 

F.     Consideration of action petitions and 
joint letters  

G.     General Business 

H.     Reports from delegates appointed by 
the Board to other bodies 

I.      Urgent Business 

J.     Confidential item (meeting closed to 
the public as per S89 (2) of the Local 
Government Act 1989) 
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Agenda Item 1: CEO Report 

Responsible Officer: Chief Executive Officer 

Author: Jane Cowell, CEO 

Attachments: External meetings attended by the CEO 

Actions arising from Board Meetings 2019 

Dashboard 

REPORT 

Board and Governance 

Meeting Procedure (Amendment) LOCAL LAW 2018 : YPRL advertised the change to the 

Meeting Procedure in the Government Gazette and all three local Leader newspapers as 

per the Local Law Act requirements and have notified the Minister of the change on Friday 

Thursday 1 August 2019. This amendment now provides the Board with the option to make 

decisions out of session if required. 

Meetings at Branch Libraries: At the June meeting the Board requested YPRL investigate 

locating Board meetings at local Branch Libraries.  For the October Board meeting, which is 

allocated to City of Whittlesea, the meeting will be held at the Mill Park Branch Library.  A 

tour of the newly refurbished Branch can be arranged prior to the meeting with a 

presentation from the Branch Manager allocated a position on the Agenda.  The December 

meeting is scheduled for Nillumbik Shire Council and it is proposed that this meeting be 

held at Eltham Library.   

Knowledge and Information 

Collections: Story Box Library is now available for YPRL members.  It is an online 'reading 

room' which allows children and parents to look at a book and listen to a range of 

celebrated stories read aloud by storytellers. It is an interactive experience with a diverse 

range of storytellers with varying accents and from different cultures. Story Box content is 

targeted to pre-school and primary school aged children. Stories are based on the 

Australian education curriculum so is another tool parents and carers can use to develop 

children’s literacy skills. 

Usage of online eResources continued to strengthen in the June quarter.  There was strong 

and increased usage of eMagazines, eBooks and eAudiobooks; of online learning tools 

(Lynda); and of children’s eResources such as Tumblebooks. 

The new Book Express collection was launched at the opening of the newly refurbished Mill 

Park Library.  Book Express will be a new way for members to use our book collection.  It 

will be stocked with top 10 adult and teen fiction and non-fiction titles selected by our 

librarians. Book Express books are displayed on shelves designed for browsing and can be 

borrowed immediately.  These books will have no holds and no renewals allowing for a 

quicker turnover of the most popular and in-demand titles. 
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Public Participation  

Going fine free: On 1 July YPRL became a fine-free library. To announce the news, Public 

Participation ran a full marketing and PR campaign including an all-member email; website 

and social media announcement; communication to our member Councils; press release; 

and ensuring our branches were decked out with bright fine-free messaging. The fine-free 

news was well received by our patrons and congratulated by our peers in the library 

industry. Some comments we received online included: 

 Smart move - thanks! 

 Great news. Our kids are missing the library so much. 

 That’s awesome! There’s been many times over the years that I’ve had to pay fines 

bc I was simply too sick to go return the books.  

 Fantastic! Free to borrow! I remember getting pelted with fines when my kids were 

little and we would borrow so many picture books. Puts one off borrowing. Thanks 

YPRL. 

 Love my local library! 💜 Congratulations @YarraPlentyLib for your decision to go 

#finefree 

The news was reported widely in the media including the front page of the Age, The 

Project, 3AW, the Leader and the Herald Sun.  

Patrons have also been taking advantage of the Food for Fines amnesty running across July 

with $5959.42 of fines wiped and 451kg of food donated. 

Grants: YPRL has been awarded a community grant of $4800 from the City of Whittlesea to 

pilot a Walking Book Club. Whittlesea Walking Book Club will comprise of active community 

participation sessions facilitated in public areas surrounding and linked to the City’s public 

libraries. Hosted by an experienced health and wellbeing practitioner, Walking Book Clubs 

offer free, high-quality, non-traditional access to library collections as well as local health 

and wellbeing resources. Sessions will foster increased physical activity, a sense of safety in 

public areas and connections with local service providers. 

People & Culture 

Our staffing level at 30 June 2019 was 93.17 compared to the budgeted figure of 91.78. The 

variance is due to the executive restructure coupled with minor staffing and rostering 

changes to lower band levels in branches. 

Work on progressing action plans developed from the staff survey results continued across 

the region. Design was completed on a set of thank you cards for an informal 

acknowledgement system for all staff to be able to easily recognise, thank and acknowledge 

their colleagues. Working group representatives will attend upcoming staff meetings to 

officially launch this new program. 

The Leadership Team completed OHS for Managers refresher training in July. 

  



YARRA PLENTY REGIONAL LIBRARY SERVICE  MEETING OF THURSDAY 15 AUGUST 2019 

  
SECTION D PRESENTATION OF GENERAL REPORTS  PAGE 4 

 

Advocacy 

Telling the Public Library story:  The CEO has been asked to write an article for the 

September 2019 edition of the ALIA National members magazine on the state of Australian 

Libraries which formed part of the presentations delivered in Scotland and the UK. 

Bolinda Public Libraries Victoria Conference:  Several YPRL staff members have been 

selected to present at the upcoming Public Libraries Victoria Conference. Executive 

Manager Public Participation, Lisa Dempster will speak on library marketing; Learning 

Coordinator, Patrick Jovaras and Customer Service Officer, Slavka Hardi will speak on the 

development of Lalor Library's new Learning Library; and Library Technician, Scott Mundell 

will speak on Augmented Reality in libraries. 

Libraries After Dark: The Libraries After Dark pilot group have been successful in securing 

ongoing funding for the program. The Victorian Responsible Gambling Foundation has 

confirmed ongoing funding across two years for participating libraries including $48,000 for 

YPRL's Mill Park Library. Funding is also available for more libraries across the state to join 

the program ensuring that Libraries After Dark can deliver high impact outcomes across the 

state in the area of gambling risk minimisation. Libraries After Dark offers an alternative to 

the pokies, and the library offers late-night programming to attract and retain patrons that 

may be at risk of gambling harm. 

Media Mentions:  

Whittlesea Leader 8 

Herald Sun 3 

The Age 2 

Star Weekly 2 

Arts Hub 1 

Diamond Valley Leader 1 

Your Child Banyule & Nillumbik 1 

Your Child Whittlesea 1 

Total 19 

 

Infrastructure and Innovation 

LSS Accommodation:  The lease agreement on the new premises started on 24 June, 2019.  
The NBN was connected on 16 July 2019.  ICT staff used the last week of July to ensure 
connections of all ICT equipment were live. LSS staff will be packing for a move scheduled 

on the week of Monday 12 August, 2019. A staff celebration will be organised, and the 
Board has been invited to a morning tea on Monday 19 August with LSS staff and Branch 
Managers. 
 
Mill Park Branch Refurbishment: Mill Park Library re-opened to the public on Monday 22 

July 2019.  Staff worked hard to place the books back on the shelves and place all the new 

ICT equipment ready for opening.  The Book Express pilot is a new service that provides a 

bestseller to visitors to Mill Park; the collection will always return to Mill Park and if 

successful, will be rolled out to other branches over time.  A YPRL staff celebration of pizza 
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and soft drink was held on Friday 19 July at 5pm for all staff to view the new library prior to 

opening.  The Chancez café has also moved into the new café area and will now open 5 

days per week. 

Finance and Governance 

External Audit:  RSD Audit will be completing an External Audit of YPRL’s accounts for the 

2018-2019 financial year. YPRL has responded with uploaded documentation, commentary, 

or available hardcopies for all item requests per the required document listing. RSD Audit 

commenced their on-site audit on Monday 29 July 2019. No audit concerns or queries have 

been raised at this time. 

Debt Recovery Policy:  The Debt Recovery Policy requirement for the removal of all library 

members’ debt after 2 years, as it is considered unrecoverable, has been actioned.  

$969,433 was written off the Library Management System from 1998-2017.  This will 

happen annually in the first week of July from this point.  Please note that this amount has 

not been reflected in our past financial accounts. 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT the Board resolves to receive the report 

   M:  

 S:  
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Table 1: External Meetings attended 

Date Meeting Topic 

25 June 10am-1pm PLV/SLQ Workshop MAV Collins Street, Melbourne Pre-Summit Workshop -MAV 

25 June 1pm – 3pm Public Library Victoria, MAV Collins Street, 
Melbourne 

PLV General Meeting 

25 June 3pm – 4pm  Brendan Fitzgerald, Director Six4One  
Social Enterprise for digital and social inclusion 
outcomes, Café in Collins Street 

YPRL and programs to combat loneliness 

25 June  
5.30pm – 7.30pm 

Government House Reception  
Melbourne 

Government House Reception for Community Leaders from 
Northern suburbs of Melbourne 

26 June 12pm – 1pm Scott Reid – Resource Furniture  
PRACC North South Morang. 

External vendor discussing services offered 

26 June 2pm – 5pm Libraries Alive! Consultants Ian and Sherry 
McCallum, PRACC North South Morang 

Opening Hours Review pre-briefing 

27 June 1pm – 2pm Melissa Short Program Officer, Local Infrastructure 

DELWP , Diamond Valley Library 

Site meeting at Diamond Valley to discuss Living Libraries Grant for 
2019/2020 

1 July 9am – 10am Anna Donaldson CEO Lively (lively.org.au)  
Telephone meeting 

Digital Inclusion services for seniors 

1 July 1.30pm – 3pm Graeme Christianson, Director LOFT Architecture, 
Diamond Valley Library 

Diamond Valley Redesign project 

4 July 9am – 10am Fae Ballingal, Senior Strategic Planner Nillumbik 
Shire Council, Nillumbik Shire Council Offices 

Review Diamond Creek Structure Plan - Library component 

8 July 1pm – 2pm Araleun, Joshua Brouwer General Manager 
Araleun, Leigh Morante Café Manager 
Tony Cambrea CoW  

Site meeting regarding Chancez Café at Mill Park Library 

9 July 2.30pm – 
3.30pm 

Carl Cowie, CEO Nillumbik Shire Council 
Corrienne Nichols, Nillumbik Shire Council 
Cr Peter Clarke 
Cr Karen Egan 

Request for Nillumbik Shire Council to apply for a Living Libraries 
Grant for the refurbishment of Diamond Valley Library 



Date Meeting Topic 

Nillumbik Shire Council Offices 

10 July 12pm – 1pm Judy Spokes – Social Planner Moreland Shire Council 
PRACC North South Morang 

Libraries After Dark new project - Inception meeting & Contract 
signing 

11 July 2pm – 3pm Deborah Lindemann - Adelhelm & Associates 
PRACC North South Morang 

Vendor for HR services 

12 July 2pm – 3pm Monica Szunejko – Director Library Resources and 
Technology Monash University 
Young and Jackson, Swanston St Melbourne 
 

ALIA Professional Development for library staff - opportunities for 
partnerships to deliver. 

12 July 4pm – 5pm Melanie McCarten Senior Coordinator, Darebin 
Libraries -  Northcote Library, Northcote 

Libraries After Dark new project 

22 July – 24 July 
Monday 12pm – 
Wednesday 1pm 

PLV Planning Summit  
The Country Place 
Kalorama  

Statewide planning for the next 3 years. 

30 July 10.30am – 
12.30pm 

Sally Hirst Consultant 
YPRL staff representatives 
Adrian Cully, Banyule City Council 
Ivanhoe Library 
 

 Ivanhoe Cultural Hub programming meeting 

2 August 11.30 – 
12.30 

PLV ILMS Meeting 
Daniel Lewis, Public Libraries Victoria 

Discussion regarding the MAV tender process and individual library 
LMS contracts available 

   

   

   

 



YARRA PLENTY REGIONAL LIBRARY SERVICE     ACTIONS ARISING FROM BOARD MEETINGS  2019 
 

ACTIONS ARISING FROM ORDINARY BOARD MEETINGS 2019 

DATE OF 
MEETING 

ITEM ACTION ACCOUNTABLE START 
DATE 

STATUS 

6 Sept 18 Meeting Procedure Local Law 
amendment 

Submitted to Member Councils for ratification 

 City of Whittlesea have ratified the change 

 Banyule Shire Council ratified the change 

 Nillumbik Shire Council ratified the change 
Advertised in Vic Gov Gazette and Leader and 
copy sent to the Minister on 1 August 2019 
 

CEO 6 Sept Completed  

2 May 
2019 

Petition received from residents from 
Whittlesea regarding a library matter 

 Letter of response to be written in response to 
the feedback.  

CEO 2 May 
2019 

Underway 

 



our business
Quarter 4: 1 APR – 30 JUNE

Membership

events

usage

New Members: 3,329

Total number of Events: 1,7431 Event Attendance Total: 46,7681

Catalogue hits: 233,947

PC Usage: 44,843

Wifi Total Sessions: 64,263

Banyule: 24,380

Nillumbik: 16,102

Whittlesea: 23,781

Branch Visits: 400,2571

Total Members: 132,746

Banyule 40,470

Nillumbik 32,673

Whittlesea 59,603

Active Members (Q3): 38,307

Website Hits: 302,898 (15% increase)

Banyule

Nillumbik

Whittlesea

Total Users

0

50000

100000

150000

200000

2018 2019

Visits

Banyule Nillumbik Whittlesea

April - June 2018 April - June 2019
Banyule 1,189 1,093
Nillumbik 984 845
Whittlesea 2,110 1,235

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

New Members Totals

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

Banyule Nillimbik Whittlesea

Number of Events Delivered

2018 2019

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

Banyule Nillimbik Whittlesea

Event Attendance

2018 2019

0

50000

100000

150000

200000

250000

300000

350000

April - June 2018 April - June 2019

Total Website Hits 302,898

Tablet

Mobile

Desktop



our people & finance

LSS Relocation2

Opening Hours Review

Mill Park Library Refurbishment3

Diamond Valley Library Redesign

ICT Equipment Projects

PROJECTS

STAFF

TRAINING
2018 2019

Hours Delivered 646 596
Average Hours  
per employee 4.0 3.7

Full Time Part Time CasualFull Time Part Time CasualEFT Budget: 91.78 Current: 93.17

12 Staff have excess annual leave 

(more than 8 weeks accrued) 

Turnover: 1.87% (previously 1.25%)

Absenteeism: 4.41% (previously 4.36%)

On Time, On Target
Pending
Under Evaluation

KPI: 
under 4%

Staff Total: 160

Full time: 36

Part time: 93

Casual: 31

Budget: How are we tracking?

Quarter 4: 1 APR – 30 JUNE

Finances
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our assetscollection

Footnotes
1 Decrease is due to the 8 week closure of Mill Park Library for refurbishment.
2 Project postponed due to delay regarding installation of the NBN connection.
3 Project delayed by 2 weeks due to delay in carpet delivery.

4 The physical items graph shows allocation by LGA. The total figure does not include items 
located on the Mobile Libraries.

5
eBook loans impacted by dissolution of Brisbane City Libraries / YPRL OverDrive consortia in 
December 2018.

Total Physical & Digital Collection: 464,670 

LOANS
Total Physical Loans: 690,095  

(10% decrease)1

Quarter 4: 1 APR – 30 JUNETotal Digital Items: 37,627

Total Digital Items Loans: 49,3635

New Collection Items (Physical and Digital): 29,746 

New Physical Collection Items:  27,812 

Total Physical Items 339,0124
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Agenda Item 2: End of Year Financials 

Responsible Officer: Chief Executive Officer 

Author: Matthew Shaw, Finance Manager 

Attachments: June 2019 Quarterly Finance Report 

2018/2019 General Purpose Financial Statements 

REPORT 

SUMMARY 

This report covers the Board’s June 2019 quarterly report, the 2018/2019 General Purpose 

Financial Statements, and notes accounting items which YPRL management have detected 

and corrected throughout the 2018/2019 year. 

INTRODUCTION 

The Board adopted its ‘Revised Budget’ on 6 September 2018. 

The June 2019 quarterly finance report, and a draft copy of the 2018/2019 General Purpose 

Financial Statements is attached to this report for your reference. The General Purpose 

Finance Statements are being reviewed by RSD, and will be submitted to VAGO for final 

approval once the review is complete. 

REPORT 

The 2018/2019 accounting deficit is $79k, which is slightly favourable when compared to a 

budgeted accounting deficit of $86k. Notes relating to each variance are contained in the 

quarterly report, and in the draft annual financial report. 

The 2018/2019 YPRL Operating + Capital surplus is $19k, which is favourable when 

compared to a budgeted Operating + Capital surplus of $0. 

The figures contained in the report include expenditure which the Board had approved to 

come from the Accumulated Surplus or Asset Replacement funds. When adjusted for items 

which fell outside the scope of the annual budget, YPRL’s 2018/2019 Operating + Capital 

surplus is $429k ahead of approved. 

 

Actual Net Operating + Capital Surplus:   $  19,491 

Plus approved staff restructure costs:   $169,000 

Plus approved 2018-2019 LSS moving costs:  $  15,575 

Plus approved replacement of Prime Mover:  $225,000 

Net adjusted Budget Operating + Capital Surplus: $429,066 
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APPROVED OUT OF BUDGET ITEMS TO BE CARRIED FORWARD: 

Library Support Service Moving Costs: 

The YPRL Board has approved $50k outside of recurrent budget to accommodate 

unforeseen costs of moving the Library Support Service to new accommodation. $15,575 of 

these costs have been expended in 2018/2019, the remaining $34k will be expended in the 

2019/2020 budget. 

Balance of 2018/2019 Professional Development Budget: 

Due to organisational restructure in 2018/2019, YPRL was not able to run all planned 

professional development activities. 

YPRL Management is requesting permission to ‘carry forward’ $19k from the 2018/2019 

Net Operating + Capital Surplus, to ensure that YPRL can deliver part of the 2018/2019 

intended professional development program without reducing the 2019/2020 professional 

development program. 

Prior Year accounts corrections 2018/2019: 

YPRL has made $1.07 million in accounting adjustments to account for changes in 

accounting policies and corrections to the 2017/2018 year end accounts in the areas of 

depreciation, liabilities relating to prior year funding, and implementation of the Debt 

Recovery Policy. 

CONSULTATION 

Consultation was held with the Executive Leadership team and the Finance team during the 

preparation of this report. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

All financial implications are included in the body of the report. 

POLICY STRATEGY AND LEGISLATION 

Section 138 of the Local Government Act (1989) as amended states that a quarterly finance 

report is to be presented 

LINKS TO STRATEGIC PLAN 

Finance and Governance 

Goal: Responsibly manage our budget to deliver best value to our community 

Strategy: 

 Optimise public value through sustainable financial management and governance 
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DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

Under section 80C of the Local Government Act 1989 officers providing advice to the 

Library must disclose any interests, including type of interest. 

The Responsible Officer reviewing this report, having made enquiries with the relevant 

members of staff, reports that no disclosable interests have been raised in relation to this 

report. 

CONCLUSION 

YPRL’s Operating + Capital financial result is $19k ahead of budget, including the absorption 

of $400k of unanticipated costs through effective and responsive management action. 

Significant work has been undertaken to ensure the robustness and accuracy of YPRL’s 

internal and external accounts. 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT the Board resolve to: receive and note the 30 June 2019 quarterly finance reports 

 M:  

 S:  

  

THAT the Board resolve to:  adopt the draft 2018/2019 General Purpose Financial 

Statements ‘in principle’, pending VAGO response, for submission to the Minister for 

Local Government. 

 M:  

 S:  

  

THAT the Board resolve to:  endorse the Chair and the Deputy Chair as signatories on the 

final 2018/2019 General Purpose Financial Statements for submission to the Minister for 

Local Government. 

 M:  

 S:  

  

THAT the Board resolve to:  approve the carrying forward $19k from the 2018/2019 Net 

Operating + Capital surplus, to invest in YPRL’s staff throughout 2019/2020. 

 M:  

 S:  

  

  



Finance Report

For The Quarter Ending 30 June 2019



Yarra Plenty Regional Library 

30 June 2019  Income Statement
 2018/19 Revised 

Budget

$ 

 June 2019 Actual

$ 

 Variance

$ 

 Variance Commentary 

Revenue

Council Contributions - Banyule
4,494,711             4,494,712              1

Council Contributions - Nillumbik
2,760,620             2,760,620              0

Council Contributions - Whittlesea
4,747,699             4,747,700              1

State Government Funding 2,391,143             2,395,835              4,692  State Government funding allocation higher than budgeted 

Grant - Local Priorities 125,850                126,097                 247

Grant - Premiers Reading Fund 56,595                  56,795                   200

Library Fees 403,533                248,307                 (155,226)  2018/2019 Overdue Fees and Photocopying Fees budget was optimistic. 

Interest
80,000                  75,244                   (4,756)

Specific Grant Funding -                       82,912                   82,912  Additional funding received that was not budgeted, offset by additional expenditure below 

Miscellaneous Income 146,150                557,846                 411,696  $231k LSS debts onto balance sheet, $142k prior year asset errors corrected. 

Total Revenue 15,206,301           15,546,067            339,766

Expenses

Administration 364,959                605,326                 (240,367)                   $162k LSS Doubtful Debts onto Balance Sheet, $71k correcting prior year grant liability accruals. 

Employee Costs 9,430,751             9,329,142              101,609                    Deferrals in replacement staff & leave taken covering $162k ETP 

Public Participation 167,650                179,484                 (11,834)                     Marketing & Branding $16k overbudget, part offset by savings in other areas. 

Mobile Library Services 47,500                  56,961                   (9,461)                       Unfavourable due to repair costs & hire of replacement vehicle 

Specific Grant Funded Projects -                       61,713                   (61,713)                     Expenditure on grant projects not budgeted, offset by unbudgeted grant income received above 

Collection Non- Capital 932,496                1,016,313              (83,817)                     Collections expenditure over budget 2018/2019, additional controls put in place 2019/2020 

People and Culture 214,580                146,829                 67,751                      Deferral in development programs, decreased injuries, reduced consultancy and legal costs. 

Infrastructure and Innovation 1,170,204             896,050                 274,154                    $57k deferred desktop computers, Software licence timing $100k, reduced consultancy $32k 

Branch Cost 1,064,640             1,050,129              14,511                     

Depreciation Expense 1,900,000             2,282,975              (382,975)                   Correcting $279k prior year errors depreciation errors, $104k over budget. 

Total Expenses 15,292,780           15,624,923            (332,143)                     

Accounting Surplus (Deficit) (86,479)                (78,855)                  7,624

Reconciliation to Operating + Capital

Add back: Depreciation
1,900,000             2,282,975              382,975                   

Less: Collection Capital
(1,813,525)           (1,860,220)             (46,695)  Collections expenditure over budget 2018/2019, additional controls put in place 2019/2020 

Less: Other Capital Expenditure 
-                       (324,409)                (324,409)  $224k Replacement of Prime Mover Vehicle, plus $102k PPE capitalised from expense budgets. 

30 June 2019 Operating + Capital
(4)                         19,491                   19,495                        

Page 1



Yarra Plenty Regional Library 

30 June 2019 Balance Sheet

 30 June 

2018 Actual

$ 

 30 June 2019 

Actual

$ 

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 4,701,945           4,593,405           

Trade and other receivables 21,367                92,057                

Other Assets 35,788                128,452              

Total Current Assets 4,759,100           4,813,914           

Non-Current Assets

Collection Stock; Plant and Equipment 4,306,648           4,335,081           

Total Non-Current Assets 4,306,648           4,335,081           

Total  Assets 9,065,748           9,148,995           

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 678,035              955,562              

Current Provisions 2,001,836           1,864,890           

Total Current Liabilities 2,679,871           2,820,452           

Non Current Liabilities

Non Current Provisions 25,511                47,034                

Total Non Current Liabilities 25,511                47,034                

Total Liabilities 2,705,382           2,867,487           

Net Assets 6,360,366           6,281,509           

Equity

Members Contributions 3,770,080           3,770,079           

Accumulated Surplus 2,590,286           2,511,429           

Total Equity 6,360,366           6,281,508           

Current Ratio 1.78                    1.71                    
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Yarra Plenty Regional Library 

30 June 2019 Cash Flow Statement 

 2017/2018 

Actual  

 2018/2019 Actual 

CASH INFLOWS/(OUTFLOWS) FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts

Council Contributions 13,024,915       13,203,335         

State Government Funding 2,344,258         2,395,835           

Interest received 72,286              67,321                

Other 536,928            788,512              

Payments

Payments to suppliers (4,429,119)        (4,036,365)          

Payments to employees (9,238,126)        (9,434,659)          

Net GST payment (548,439)           (689,425)             

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 1,762,703         2,294,553           

CASH INFLOWS/(OUTFLOWS) FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(Payments) Receipts for collection stock; plant and equipment (1,928,999)        (2,403,092)          

Net Proceeds from redemption of financial assets (23,229)             1,046,964           

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (1,952,228)        (1,356,128)          

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held (189,525)           938,425              

Cash at beginning of the financial year 3,844,506         3,654,981           

Cash at end 3,654,981         4,593,406           
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Yarra Plenty Regional Library Service

Certification of Financial Statements

In my opinion the accompanying financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with the Local Government Act 1989, and the Local Government

(Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 , Australian Accounting Standards 
and other mandatory professional reporting requirements.

Matthew Shaw

Principal Accounting Officer

Dated :         TBC
South Morang

In our opinion the accompanying Financial Statements present fairly the
financial transactions of the Yarra Plenty Regional Library Corporation for the
year ended 30 June 2019 and the financial position of the Library as of that date.

As at the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances which would
render any particulars in the financial statements to be misleading or inaccurate.

We have been authorised by the Library Board on 15 August 2019 to
certify the financial statements in their final form.

Councillor: TBC

Dated : TBC
South Morang

Councillor: TBC

Dated : TBC
South Morang

Jane Cowell

Chief Executive Officer

Dated : TBC
South Morang
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Yarra Plenty Regional Library Service

Comprehensive Income Statement

For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note 2019 2018

$ $

Income

Contributions to Regional Library Service - Member Councils 3.1 12,003,032 11,840,832

Contributions to Regional Library Service - State Government 3.2 2,395,835 2,344,258

Grants 3.2 182,892 180,579

Other Contributions 3.3 97,630 66,718

Library Fees 233,704 384,278

Interest 75,244 69,946

Other Revenue 3.4 557,731 150,120

Total Income 15,546,068 15,036,731

Expenses

Employee Costs 4.1 9,355,500 9,286,353

Library Support Centre Lease Costs 85,000 84,000

Depreciation 4.2 2,282,975 1,699,364

Administration Costs 634,016 417,346

Branch Costs 845,562 837,031

Computer Services 825,079 1,061,337

Collection Services 1,002,456 937,137

Net Loss on Disposal of Assets 4.3 5,661 1,208,128

Other Expenses 4.4 588,675 567,394

Total Expenses 15,624,924 16,098,090

Surplus (Deficit)  for the year (78,856) (1,061,359)

Other Comprehensive Income 0 0

Comprehensive Result (78,856) (1,061,359)

The above comprehensive income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Yarra Plenty Regional Library Service

Balance Sheet

as at 30 June 2019

Assets Note
2019

$

2018

$

Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5.1 4,593,405 3,654,981

Other Financial Assets 5.1 -                1,046,964

Trade & Other Receivables 5.1 92,057 21,367

Non Financial Assets 5.2 128,452 35,788

Total Current Assets 4,813,914 4,759,100

Non-Current Assets
Bookstock, Plant & Equipment 6.1 4,335,081 4,306,648
Total Non-Current Assets 4,335,081 4,306,648

Total Assets 9,148,995 9,065,748

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Trade and Other Payables 5.3 955,562 678,035

Employee Provisions - Current 5.4 1,864,890 2,001,836
Total Current Liabilities 2,820,452 2,679,871

Non Current Liabilities

Employee Provisions - Non Current 5.4 47,034 25,511
Total Non-Current Liabilities 47,034 25,511

Total Liabilities 2,867,486 2,705,382

Net Assets 6,281,509 6,360,366

Equity

Reserves 9.4 3,770,080 3,770,080

Accumulated Surplus 2,511,429 2,590,286
Total Equity 6,281,509 6,360,366

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Yarra Plenty Regional Library Service

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Total Member Accumulated
Contributions Surplus

$ $ $
2019

Balance at beginning of the financial year 6,360,366 3,770,080 2,590,286

Surplus (Deficit) for the year (78,856) -                 (78,856)

Balance at end of the financial year 6,281,510 3,770,080 2,511,430

Total Member Accumulated
Contributions Surplus

$ $ $
2018

Balance at beginning of the financial year 7,421,725 3,770,080 3,651,645

Surplus (Deficit) for the year (1,061,359) -                 (1,061,359)

Balance at end of the financial year 6,360,366         3,770,080       2,590,286       

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with with the accompanying notes
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Yarra Plenty Regional Library Service

Cash Flow Statement
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Note 2018/2019 2017/2018
Inflows/ Inflows/

(Outflows) (Outflows)
$ $

Cash flows from operating activities

Member Council Contributions 13,203,335 13,024,915
State Government Library Grant 2,395,835 2,344,258
Payments to suppliers (4,036,365) (4,429,119)
Payments to employees (9,434,661) (9,238,126)
Interest received 67,321 72,286
Library fees 257,074 379,631
Other receipts 531,438 157,297
Net GST payment (689,425) (548,439)

Net cash provided by operating activities 2,294,552 1,762,703

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for library books, plant and equipment 6.1 (2,403,092) (1,928,999)
Proceeds from redemption of financial assets 1,046,964 1,023,734
Payments for financial assets -                       (1,046,964)

Net cash used in investing activities (1,356,128) (1,952,229)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 938,424 (189,526)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 3,654,981 3,844,506
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 5.1 4,593,405 3,654,981

The above cash flow statement should be read in conjunction with with the accompanying notes
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Yarra Plenty Regional Library Service

Statement of Capital Works

For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

2019 2018

$ $

Plant and Equipment

Bookstock 1,860,220 1,769,360

Plant and Equipment 324,409 159,639

Total Plant and Equipmemt 2,184,629 1,928,999

Total Capital Works Expenditure 2,184,629 1,928,999

Represented By:

Renewal 2,184,629 1,928,999

Total Capital Works 2,184,629 1,928,999

The above statement of capital works should be read in conjunction with with the accompanying notes
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Yarra Plenty Regional Library Service

Notes to the Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019

Overview

Introduction

The Yarra Plenty Regional Library Corporation (YPRL) was incorporated under Section
196 of the Victorian Local Government Act 1989  and is dependent on funding 
from Member Councils for its continued existence and ability to carry out
its normal activities.

Statement of Compliance

These financial statements are a general purpose financial report that consists of a 

Comprehensive Income Statement, Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statement 

of Cash Flows, Statement of Capital Works and Notes accompanying these financial statements. 

The general purpose financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards (AAS), 

other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB), the 

Local Government Act 1989 , and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 

2014 .
 

Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of Accounting

The accrual basis of accounting has been used in the preparation of these financial statements, 

whereby assets liabilities, equity, income and expenses are recognised in the reporting period to 

which they relate, regardless of when cash is received or paid.

Judgements, estimates and assumptions are required to be made about the carrying values of 

assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and 

associated judgements are based on professional judgement derived from historical experience 

and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual 

results may differ from these estimates.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised 

and also in future periods that are affected by the revision. Judgements and assumptions made 

by management in the application of AAS's that have significant effects on the financial 

statements and estimates relate to:

 - the determination of depreciation for the collection and plant and equipment (refer to note 4.2 

and 6.1)
 - the determination of employee provisions (refer to note 5.4)

Unless otherwise stated, all accounting policies are consistent with those applied in the prior 

year. Where appropriate, comparative figures have been amended to accord with current 

presentation, and disclosure has been made of any material changes to comparatives. 

(b) Change in Accounting Policies

In the 2017/2018 financial year YPRL reviewed and adopted new useful lives of its Bookstock 

/Collection categories of items.

The review of useful lives resulted from an analysis of usage and disposal practices as well as 

the condition of items in individual categories to ascertain their economic benefit to YPRL (i.e. 

their useful life). Corrections to the prior year implementation of this change have impacted the 

2018/2019 depreciation expense being $583K more than the 2017/2018 financial year. Refer to 

notes 4.2; 4.3, 6.1 and 6.3 for additional information.
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Yarra Plenty Regional Library Service

Note 1 Performance against budget

1.1 Income Statement

Budget 

2018/2019

Actuals

2018/2019 Variance

Variance 

Reference

For the Year Ended 30 June 2019 $ $ $

Income

Contributions to Regional Library Service - Member Councils' 12,003,030 12,003,032 2

Contributions to Regional Library Service - State Government 2,391,143 2,395,835 4,692

Grants and Contributions 182,445 265,804 83,359 1

Library Fees 457,633 299,524 (158,109) 2

Interest Revenue 80,000 75,244 (4,756)

Other 92,050 506,629 414,579 3,4

Total Income 15,206,301 15,546,068 339,767

Expenses

Employee Costs 9,430,751 9,355,500 75,251 5

Administration 407,459 657,469 (250,010) 6,7

Branch Costs 937,290 935,323 1,967

IT Resources 1,170,204 896,050 274,154 8

Organisation 233,080 153,072 80,008 9

Community 155,650 179,484 (23,834)

Collection Non-Capital 932,496 1,002,456 (69,960) 10

Depreciation 1,900,000 2,282,975 (382,975) 11

Grant Funds - Specific Projects 125,850 156,934 (31,084) 12

Net Loss on Disposal of Assets -                  5,661 (5,661)

Other Expenses

Total Expenses 15,292,780 15,624,924 (332,144)

Surplus (Deficit) for the Year (86,479) (78,856) 7,623

The budget comparison notes compare YPRL's financial plan, expressed through its annual budget, with actual performance. The Local 

Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 requires explanation of any material variances. YPRL has adopted a materiality 

threshold of $30,000 where further explanation is warranted. Explanations have not been provided for variations below the materiality 

threshold unless the variance is considered to be material because of its nature.

The budget figures detailed below are those adopted by YPRL on 21 June 2018. The Budget was based on assumptions that were relevant at 

the time of adoption of the Budget. YPRL sets guidelines and parameters for revenue and expense targets in this budget in order to meet its 

planning and financial performance targets for both the short and long-term.

These notes are prepared to meet the requirements of the Local Government Act 1989  and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) 

Regulations 2014 .
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Yarra Plenty Regional Library Service

Note 1 Performance against budget (cont'd)

Variance Reference

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

Deferral in learning and development programs, reduced staff welfare expenditure resulting from 

decreased staff injuries, and reduced expenditure on consultancy and legal ($80K).
Collection non-capital costs up due to increased E-Resources expenditure ($50k) and supplier 

processing costs ($22k)
Depreciation Expense includes adjustments to prior year accounts due to;

- Correcting accumulated depreciation on bookstock items written off $398k

- Correcting prior year accumulated depreciation applied to items already disposed ($119k)

- 2018/2019 budget was based on the 2017/2018 year actuals $104k
Specific 'one off' Government Grants and Other Contributions are unknown when the budget is 

determined.

Specific 'one off' Government Grants and Other Contributions are unknown when the budget is 

determined. Unbudgeted Grants and Contributions of $82K for various programs were received  

during the financial year.(refer Note 3.3 for additional information regarding YPRL's Other 

Contributions).
Photocopy fees were down by $39K and Overdues Fees were down by $117K. Children's fees were 

abolished in 2018/2019, and the success of the food for fines program has also reduced this income 

component, as part of YPRL's strategic move towards becoming a fine free library service. 
In 2018-2019 YPRL brought outstanding library debts onto the balance sheet for the first time. This 

is reflected in a once off book entry of $231k miscellaneous income. Library debts have a high rate 

of forgiveness, hence this income is offset by a $162k expense allowance for doubtful debts.
$142k of 2017-2018 purchased bookstock was erroneously written off as part of the bookstock 

collection disposal. These assets have been returned to the YPRL balance sheet with a 

corresponding increase in other revenue.
Deferrals in hiring replacement staff during restructuring and prudent management resulted in a net 

staffing cost saving of $75k

IT Resource expenditure was down due to deferrals in hardware replacement ($57k), realigning 

software payments with accounting standards ($100k), reduced reliance on IT Consultancy ($32k), 

and the reporting impact of asset capitalisation under YPRL's budgeting policies ($62k)

In 2018/2019 YPRL recognised $71k of liability for the delivery of programs funded in 2017-2018 

and prior years.

$162k Administration expense recording allowance for doubtful debts as per variance reference 3.

General Purpose Financial Report Year Ended 30 June 2019 Page 13 of 39



Yarra Plenty Regional Library Service

Note 1 Performance against budget (cont'd)

1.2  Capital Works 

Budget Actuals Variance Variance
2018/2019 2018/2019 Reference

$ $ $

Collections - Bookstock 1,813,525 1,860,220 (46,695)
Plant and Equipment -               324,409 (324,409) 1, 2

Total Capital Works 1,813,525 2,184,629 (371,104)

Represented By:

Renewal 1,813,525 2,184,629 (371,104) 1, 2

Total Capital Works 1,813,525 2,184,629 (371,104)

Variance Reference

1

2

YPRL budgeting procedure sets expenditure for P&E as an expense, this is 

then capitalised on the basis of reaching asset threshold levels. ($102k) across 

ICT, Administration and Branch.
Unanticipated replacement of Prime Mover required for the Mobile Library 

($224k)
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Yarra Plenty Regional Library Service

Note 2 Analysis of Library results by program 

Yarra Plenty Regional Library delivers its functions and activities through the following programs.  

2.1 (a) Administration and Management

Collections

Branches

2.1 (b) Summary of revenues, expenses and assets by program

2019  Income  Expenses 

 Surplus/

(Deficit) 

 Grants 

included in 

income  Total assets 
Administration and Management 15,157,939   5,506,706     9,651,233     2,521,932     -                
Collections 56,795          3,299,289     3,242,494 )(    56,795          3,266,694     
Branches 331,334        6,818,929     6,487,595 )(    -                1,068,387     

15,546,068   15,624,924   78,856 )(         2,578,727     4,335,081     

2018  Income  Expenses 

 Surplus/

(Deficit) 

 Grants 

included in 

income  Total assets 
Administration and Management 14,529,139   6,091,977     8,437,162     2,468,241     -                
Collections 56,596          3,844,630     3,788,034 )(    56,596          3,328,414     
Branches 450,996        6,161,483     5,710,487 )(    -                978,234        

15,036,731   16,098,090   1,061,359 )(    2,524,837     4,306,648     

Yarra Plenty Regional Library operates nine branches and the mobile library service across the three member 

councils. Branches are responsible for core service delivery including customer service and patron interactions, 

delivery of local programs, physical management and local curation of collections.

Administration and management provides efficient, effective and proactive support services across the library 

service to enable the delivery of the library service vision and mission. The provision of these services includes 

finance services, digital information and technology, organisational development, procurement, strategy and 

program delivery.

Yarra Plenty Regional Library operates a regional library collection in order to take advantage of efficiencies in 

collection management, additional diversity of offering through enhanced collection size, and resource 

management due to enhanced buying power and economies of scale.
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Yarra Plenty Regional Library Service

Note 3 Funding for the delivery of our services

3.1 Contributions to Regional Library Service 

The following Member Council contributions were received during the year.

2019 2018

$ $

Shire of Nillumbik 2,760,620 2,693,888
City of Banyule 4,494,712 4,513,736
City of Whittlesea 4,747,700 4,633,208

12,003,032 11,840,832

Monetary contributions are recognised as revenue when YPRL obtains control

over the contributed asset.

Aggregate Contributions of Member Councils

Yarra Plenty Regional Library Service is as follows:

2019 2018

% %

Shire of Nillumbik 21.19% 21.07%
City of Banyule 41.23% 41.48%
City of Whittlesea 37.58% 37.45%

100.00% 100.00%

The percentage aggregate contributions of Member Councils making up the
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Yarra Plenty Regional Library Service

Note 3.2 Grants

2019 2018

$ $

Grants were received in respect of the following:

Summary of Grants

State Library Grant (i) 2,395,835 2,344,258    
Other Grants 182,892 180,579       

Total Grants Received 2,578,727 2,524,837

Operating Grants

Recurrent State Government
State Library Grant (i) 2,395,835 2,344,258
Local Priorities Grant 126,097 123,983

Total Recurrent Operating Grants 2,521,932 2,468,241

Non recurrent Grants

Premiers Reading Fund 56,795 56,596

Total Non-Recurrent Grants 56,795 56,596

Total Grants Received 2,578,727 2,524,837

Funding Source:

State funded grants 2,578,727 2,524,837

Total Grants Received 2,578,727 2,524,837

(i) The State Library Grant was apportioned on the following basis:

As per Regional Library Agreement:

Shire of Nillumbik 400,929 398,524
City of Banyule 758,379 750,162
City of Whittlesea 1,236,527 1,195,572

2,395,835 2,344,258
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Yarra Plenty Regional Library Service

3.2 Grants (con't)

Unspent Grants received on condition that they be spent is a specific manner

2019 2018
$ $

Balance at start of year 29,217 -              

96,165 29,217
Received in prior years and spent during the financial year (29,217) -              
Balance at year end 96,165 29,217

3.3 Other Contributions 2019 2018
$ $

Monetary :

Toy Library Lalor 5,400 5,400
Book Club Contributions 9,318 7,683
Sensitive Santa Grant 1,000 1,000
Finding My Place -             10,909
Cultural Heritage 500 500
Whittlesea Dark Past -             3,375
Libraries After Dark 37,500 32,500
Comic Con at Mill Park -             3,351
Women's History Month -             500
Chapman Grant 200 -              
Women's Wellbeing Grant 400 -              
Kids Science Club Grant 900 -              
Gambling Harm Awareness Week 1,230 -              
Social Seniors Grant 1,500 -              
Gender Equality Storytime Grant 500 -              
Banyule Comic-Con Grant 5,479 -              
Enviro Workshop Grant 2,573 -              
The Art of Healing Grant 5,000 -              
Nillumbik Comic-Con Grant 4,545 -              
Adult Literacy Innovation Grant 10,675 -              
VicArts Literary Toolkit Grant 9,400 -              
Nillumbik Heritage Tours Project 1,010 -              
Be Connected Grant -             1,500

Total Monetary Contributions 97,130 66,718

Grant income is recognised when YPRL obtains control of the contribution. Control is normally 
obtained upon receipt (or acquittal) or upon earlier notification that a grant has been secured.

Received during the financial year and remained unspent as at balance 
date
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Yarra Plenty Regional Library Service

3.3 Other Contributions (cont'd)

Monetary Contributions recognised as revenue that were obtained
on condition that they be expended in a specific manner that 2019 2018
had not occurred at balance date were: $ $

Sensitive Santa Grant 3,093 4,040
Finding My Place 5,211 7,486
Cultural Heritage -             220
Whittlesea Dark Past 3,375 3,375
Libraries After Dark -             23,181
Comic Con at Mill Park -             352
Chapman Grant 200 -              
Adult Literacy Innovation Grant 10,675 -              
Vic Arts Literary Toolkit Grant 9,400 -              
Nillumbik Heritage Tours Project 1,010 -              
Be Connected Grant -             1,373
Carers Voice Project Funding 2,000 2,000

Total 34,964 42,027

3.4 Other Revenue 2019 2018
$ $

Fundraising 203 19,017
Murrindindi Sale of Service 63,752 62,500
Miscellaneous 493,776 68,603

Total 557,731 150,120

Other Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is 
recognised when YPRL gains control over the right to receive the income.

Miscellaneous revenue was impacted by two material events in 2018/2019:
- Recording of revenue outstanding in the Library Support system ($231k favourable)
- Correcting Bookstock written off 2017/2018 ($142k favourable)
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Yarra Plenty Regional Library Service

Note 4  The cost of delivering services

2019 2018
$ $

4.1 Employee Costs

The following items are included as employee costs:

Salaries 8,486,376     8,287,765    
Superannuation 766,384        743,818       
Workcover Levy 32,982          36,813         
Annual Leave/Long Service Leave Provision 69,758          217,957       

9,355,500 9,286,353

Superannuation Contributions

Contributions by YPRL  to the following superannuation plans are detailed below:

Scheme
Type of

scheme
Rate

2019

$'000

2018

$'000
Vision Super Defined

benefits
9.5%

146 166

Vision Super Accumulation 9.5% 620 577

Total Employer Contributions
766 743

Defined Benefit Fund:

Employer Contributions payable at the reporting date 1,904 -              
(Vision Super) 

Accumulation Funds:

Employer Contributions payable at the reporting date 78,086 -              

Refer to Note 9.2 for further information relating to YPRL's superannuation obligations

4.2 Depreciation Expense

Depreciation expense for the year was charged in respect of:

Plant and equipment and motor vehicles 219,421 221,680
Library books and audio visuals 2,063,554 1,477,684

2,282,975 1,699,364

In 2017/2018 YPRL reviewed and adopted new useful lives of its Bookstock /Collection categories of items.

(Refer to Overview (b) to Notes 6.1 and 6.3  for more details relating to depreciation and changes in accounting 
policy).

4.3 Net Loss on Disposal of Assets

Written Down Value of Assets Disposed 5,661 1,050,042

Accumulation Depreciation Adjustment -              158,086

Total Net Loss on Disposal of Assets 5,661 1,208,128

2018/2019 - VW Caddy Van disposed at less than book value ($6k).

2017/2018 Bookstock collection accounting treatment change from fair value to useful lives. (Refer to 
Overview (b) and Notes 4.2; 4.3 and 6.3 for more information regarding this item).
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Note 4  The cost of delivering services

2019 2018
$ $

4.4 Other Expenses

Document copy 70,971 72,913
Transport costs 13,487 8,520
Community engagement * 181,217 167,428
Organisation development ** 143,166 187,949
Grant expenditure 156,934 95,265
Auditors Remuneration- VAGO audit of the Financial Statements 9,100 8,900
Auditor's Remuneration  - Internal 11,550 23,850
Audit Committee Costs 2,250 2,569

588,675 567,394

*  Community engagement provides for various community programs, marketing and promotional materials.
** Organisation development provides for recruitment, training and organisational development activities
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Note 5   Our financial position

2019 2018
$ $

5.1 Financial Assets

(a) Cash and Cash Equivalent Assets

Cash on Hand and at Bank 1,480,825 1,135,377

Interest bearing deposits - Current 3,112,580 2,519,604
4,593,405 3,654,981

(b) Other Financial Assets

Term deposits -            1,046,964

This Interest bearing term deposit relates to a term deposit with 
a maturity of more than 90 days.

YPRL's cash and cash equivalents are subject to a number 
external restrictions that limit amounts available for discretionary
use. These include:

Unspent Government Grants (refer Note 3.2) 96,165 29,217
Unspent Monetary Contributions (refer Note 3.3) 34,964 42,027
Trust Deposits (refer Note 5.3) 2,645 2,932

133,774 74,176

Intended Allocations

Although not externally restricted the following amounts have
been allocated for specific purposes by YPRL:

Long Service Leave 1,318,092 1,394,501
Asset Replacement Funds 1,199,505 1,423,991

2,517,596 2,818,491

Users of the financial report should refer to Notes 5.6 (a) and 5.6 (b) for details 
 of existing library commitments

(c) Trade and Other Receivables

Current

Community organisations 22,084 21,367

Fines and other fees outstanding 232,364 -            

Less Provision for Doubtful Debts (162,392) -            

Total current trade and other receivables 92,057 21,367

Receivables are carried at invoice amount. A provision for doubtful debts has been 

calculated and applied in accordance with AASB 9. Fines and other fees relating to lost 

or damaged books are carried within the Library Management System, and have been 

recognised in the 2018/2019 accounts for the first time.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits at call, and other highly liquid 

investments with original maturities of 90 days or less, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

Other financial assets are valued at fair value, being market value, at balance date. Term 

deposits are measured at amortised cost. Any unrealised gains and losses on holdings at 

balance date are recognised as either a revenue or expense.

Non-Statutory Receivables
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Note 5 Our financial position (cont'd)

2019 2018
$ $

5.2 Non Financial Assets

Other Assets

Prepayments 128,452 35,788

5.3 Trade and Other Payables

Current

Payables and Accruals 794,168 534,019
Trust Deposits 2,645 2,932
Net GST 158,749 141,084

955,562 678,035

5.4 Employee Provisions

Annual 

Leave

Long Service 

Leave 
Total 

2019 $ $ $

Balance at beginning of financial year 607,335       1,420,012     2,027,347      

Additional provisions 711,940       107,683        819,623         

Amounts used (772,477) (162,569) (935,046)

Balance at the end of the financial year 546,798       1,365,126     1,911,924      

2018
Balance at beginning of financial year 642,456       1,424,255     2,066,711      
Additional provisions 500,238       266,731        766,969         
Amounts Used (535,359) (270,974) (806,333)
Balance at the end of the financial year 607,335       1,420,012     2,027,347      

2019 2018
$ $

Current provisions expected to be wholly settled within 12 months
Annual leave 509,150        537,830         
Long service leave 329,080        423,661         

838,230        961,491         
Current provisions expected to be wholly settled after 12 months
Annual leave 37,648          69,505           
Long service leave 989,012        970,840         

1,026,660     1,040,345      
Total current employee provisions 1,864,890     2,001,836      

Non-current 
Long service leave 47,034          25,511           
Total non-current employee provisions 47,034          25,511           
Aggregate carrying amount of employee provisions:
Current 1,864,890     2,001,836      
Non-current 47,034          25,511           
Total aggregate carrying amount of employee provisions 1,911,924     2,027,347      

Amounts received as deposits controlled by YPRL are recognised as trust funds until they are returned, transferred 
in accordance with the purpose of the receipt, or forfeited. Trust funds that are forfeited, resulting in YPRL gaining 
control of the funds, are to be recognised as revenue at the time of forfeit.
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Note 5 Our financial position (cont'd)

5.4 Employee Provisions (con't)

Wages and salaries and annual leave

Long service leave

Key assumptions:

- discount rates applied as per Department of Treasury and Finance Victoria 30/06/2019

- inflation rate (4.313%) as per Department of Treasury and Finance Victoria 30/06/2019

5.5 Financing Facilities 

YPRL has no other borrowings.

The Yarra Plenty Regional Library Service does have credit card facilities with a credit limit of 
$35,000 at 30 June 2019 with $3,342.61 outstanding.

The calculation of employee costs and benefits includes all relevant on-costs and are calculated as 
follows at reporting date

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits and annual leave expected to be 
wholly settled within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised in the provision for employee 
benefits in respect of employee services up to the reporting date, classified as current liabilities and 
measured at their nominal values.

Liabilities that are not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months of the reporting date are 
recognised in the provision for employee benefits as current liabilities, measured at present value of 
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate 
expected to apply at the time of settlement.

Liability for long service leave (LSL) is recognised in the provision for employee benefits. LSL is 
measured at present value. Unconditional LSL is disclosed as a current liability. Conditional LSL that 
has been accrued, where an employee is yet to reach a qualifying term of employment, is disclosed 
as a non - current liability.

The Yarra Plenty Regional Library Service does not have any credit standby arrangements or 
unused loan facilities.
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Note 5 Our financial position (cont'd)

5.6 Commitments

(a) Lease Commitments 2019 2018
$ $

Motor Vehicles
Payable:
-Not later than one year 10,855 10,142

-Greater than one year but not later than five years -            23,050
10,855 33,192

Term of the Lease: Commencing July 2017 and ending April 2020

Library Support Services Accommodation Rental
Payable:
-Not later than one year 92,167 85,000
-Greater than one year but not later than five years 336,113 21,250

428,279 106,250

Term of the Lease: Commencing July 2019 and ending June 2024

Photocopier Lease
Payable:
-Not later than one year 29,754 33,636

-Greater than one year but not later than five years -            33,636
29,754 67,272

Term of the Lease: Commencing June 2017 and ending May 2020

ICT Assets Lease
Payable:
-Not later than one year 261,764 105,736
-Greater than one year but not later than five years 625,624 37,918

887,388 143,654

Term of the Leases: Commencing November 2016 and ending July 2023

(b) Commitments for Expenditure

Bookstock -            112,610
Courier and Cleaning Contract Expenditure 1,051,698 226,912

1,051,698 339,522
The periods expected to elapse from the reporting date
to the expected date of payment are as follows :

-Not later than one year 403,885 236,380
-Greater than one year but not later than five years 647,813 103,142

1,051,698 339,522

At the reporting date, YPRL had the following obligations under non-cancellable 
operating leases for the lease of equipment and land and buildings for use within 
YPRL's activities (these obligations are not recognised as liabilities):

The Council has entered into the following commitments. Commitments are not 
recognised in the Balance Sheet. Commitments are disclosed at their nominal 
value and presented inclusive of the GST payable.
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Note 6 Assets we manage

6.1 Bookstock (Collection); Plant and Equipment

beginning and the end of the financial year.

2018/2019 Bookstock Plant and Total
Equipment

$ $ $

At Cost 1 July 2018 7,884,423 3,189,702 11,074,125
Accumulated Depreciation 1 July 2018 (4,556,009) (2,211,468) (6,767,477)

3,328,414 978,234 4,306,648
Movements in carrying value
Acquisition of assets at cost 1,860,220 324,409 2,184,629
Correction of prior year asset disposal records 141,616 (7,758) 133,858
Cost value of assets disposed (1,674,872) (235,273) (1,910,145)

326,964 81,378 408,342
Movements in accumulated depreciation
Depreciation Expense (1,784,922) (219,422) (2,004,344)
Correction of prior year depreciation calculations (278,633) 7,676 (270,958)
Accumulated depreciation of assets disposed (i) 1,674,872 220,520 1,895,392

(388,684) 8,775 (379,909)

At cost 30 June 2019 8,211,387 3,271,080 11,482,467
Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2019 (4,944,693) (2,202,693) (7,147,386)

Carrying amount at 30 June 2019 3,266,694 1,068,387 4,335,081

2017/2018 Bookstock Plant and Total
Equipment

$ $ $

At Fair Value 1 July 2017 7,165,105 3,030,063 10,195,168
Accumulated Depreciation 1 July 2017 (2,920,239) (1,989,787) (4,910,026)

4,244,866 1,040,276 5,285,142
Movements in Fair Value
Acquisition of assets at fair value 1,769,360 159,639 1,928,999

Fair value of assets disposed (i) (1,050,042) -                (1,050,042)
719,318 159,639 878,957

Movements in accumulated depreciation

Depreciation Expense (1,477,684) (221,680) (1,699,364)

Accumulated depreciation of assets disposed (i) (158,086) -                (158,086)
(1,635,770) (221,680) (1,857,450)

At Book value 30 June 2018 7,884,423 3,189,702 11,074,125
Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2018 (4,556,009) (2,211,468) (6,767,477)

Carrying amount at 30 June 2018 3,328,414 978,234 4,306,648

(i) Refer Note 4.3

Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the

General Purpose Financial Report Year Ended 30 June 2019 Page 26 of 39



Yarra Plenty Regional Library Service

Note 6 Assets we manage (cont'd)

6.2
Recognition and measurement of property, plant and equipment, infrastructure, 

intangibles

Acquisition

The purchase method of accounting is used for all acquisitions of assets, being the fair value of 

assets provided as consideration at the date of acquisition plus any incidental costs attributable 

to the acquisition. Fair value is the amount that would be received to sell an asset (or paid to 

transfer a liability) in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement 

value

In accordance with YPRL's policy, the threshold limits detailed in Note 6.3 have applied when 

recognising assets within an applicable asset class and unless otherwise stated are consistent 

with the prior year.

6.3 Depreciation and amortisation of Bookstock ( Collection) and plant and equipment 

Collection assets and plant and equipment, and other assets having limited useful lives are 

systematically depreciated over their useful lives to YPRL in a manner which reflects 

consumption of the service potential embodied in those assets. Estimates of useful lives within 

each major asset classes are reassessed annually. Depreciation rates and methods are 

reviewed annually.

Where assets have separate identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, 

these components are assigned distinct useful lives and residual values and a separate 

depreciation rate is determined for each component.

Straight line depreciation is charged based on the useful life for each asset.

Depreciation periods used are listed below and are consistent with the prior year unless 

otherwise stated.

 Depreciation periods Threshold Limits

Plant and equipment 3 to 30 years $500 
Library Collection 3 to 5 years $0

In 2017/2018 YPRL reviewed and adopted new useful lives of its Bookstock/Collection 

categories of items. The depreciation period changed from 5-6 years to 3-5 years.
The review of useful lives resulted from an analysis of usage and disposal practices as well as 

the condition of items in individual categories to ascertain their economic benefit to YPRL (i.e. 

their useful life).

 Repairs and maintenance

Routine maintenance, repair costs, and minor renewal costs are expensed as incurred. Where 

the repair relates to the replacement of a component of an asset and the cost exceeds the 

capitalisation threshold the cost is capitalised and depreciated. The carrying value of the 

replaced asset is expensed. 
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6.4 Impairment of Assets 

At each reporting date, YPRL reviews the carrying value of its assets to determine whether there 

is any indication that these assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the 

recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and 

value in use, is compared to the assets carrying value. Any excess of the assets carrying value 

over its recoverable amount is expensed to the comprehensive income statement, unless the 

asset is carried at the revalued amount in which case, the impairment loss is recognised directly 

against the revaluation surplus in respect of the same class of asset to the extent that the 

impairment loss does not exceed the amount in the revaluation surplus for that same class of 

asset.
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Note 7 People and relationships

7.1 Related party disclosures

(i) Associated Entities

Parent entities

City of Whittlesea
Banyule City Council
Nillumbik Shire Council

(ii) Key Management Personnel

2019 2018

Board Members No. No.

Tom Melican (Banyule City Council) - Appointed 15 December 2016 1 1
Mark Di Pasquale (Banyule City Council) - Resigned 28 February 2019 1 1
Peter Clarke (Nillumbik Shire Council)-Appointed 15 December 2016 1 1
Karen Egan (Nillumbik Shire Council)-Appointed 15 December 2016 1 1
Sam Alessi ( City of Whittlesea) - Appointed 1 February 2018 1 1
Mary Lalios (City of Whittlesea) - Resigned 27 November 2017 1
Alahna Desiato (City of Whittlesea) - Resigned 27 November 2017 1
Stevan Kozmewvski (City of Whittlesea) - Appointed 1 February 2018 1 1
Alison Champion (Banyule City Council) - Appointed 28 February 2019 1

Council Delegates

Russell Hopkins Appointed 1 February 2018 1 1

Allison Beckwith Appointed 1 February 2018 1 1
Adrian Cully Resigned 28 February 2019 1 1
Darren Bennett Appointed  22 February 2018 Resigned 3 May 2018 1
Matthew Kelleher Appointed 28 February 2019 Resigned 2 May 2019 1
Corrienne Nichols Appointed 2 May 2019 1

Total Number of Board members 12 12

Chief Executive Officer -  J Cowell (Commenced 28 May 2018) 1 1
Chief Executive Officer - D Shaw (Resigned 6 December 2017) 1

1

1 1
Executive Manager - People & Culture - Kate Karrasch 1 1

1 1
Executive Manager - Public Participation - Lisa Dempster 1 1

1

Total Key Management Personnel 18 19

Acting Chief Executive Officer - S Howard (Commenced 4 January 2018; Resigned 
28 May 2018)
Executive Manager - Infrastructure & Innovation - Alan Butters (Resigned 21 
December 2018)

Executive Manager - Technology & Assets - David Kay (Commenced 6 March 
2019)

Executive Manager – Knowledge & Information - Anita Catoggio (Redundancy 21 
December 2018)

Details of persons holding the position of key management personnel, at 
any time during the year are:
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7.1 Related party disclosures (cont'd)

(iii) Remuneration of Key Management Personnel 2019 2018
$ $

Total remuneration of key management personnel was as follows:
Remuneration 899,430         781,308        
Superannuation 62,997           57,914          
Movement in Leave Entitlements (1,203) 15,284          
Total 961,224         854,506        

2019 2018
No. No.

12 12

1
$50,000 -$59,999 1 0

1
1 1

2
2 2

$210,000 - $219,999 0
$220,000 - $229,999 1 0
$260,000 - $269,999 1 0

18 19

(iv) 2019 2018
$ $

Expenditure

85,000           84,000          

12,845           15,071          

14,647           11,265          

156                311               

Revenue

4,747,700      4,633,208     

12,000           12,000          

5,400             5,400            

9,915             3,268            

4,494,712      4,513,736     

Other monies received from Banyule City Council 8,644             9,545            

Council Library Contribution received from Nillumbik Shire Council 2,760,620      2,693,888     

Other monies received from Nillumbik Shire Council 909                -                

12,154,568    11,981,693   

(v)

-                1,296            

1,285             -                

1,285             1,296            

(vi)

(vii) Commitments to/from related parties

There are no outstanding commitments to/from related parties

Outstanding balances with related parties 

Monies owed to Banyule City Council

Monies owed to City of Whittlesea

Loans to/from related parties

There are no outstanding loans to/from related parties

Council Library Contribution received from Banyule City Council

Transactions with related parties 

During the period the Library entered into the following transactions (Excl 
GST) with related parties.

Rental for the premises paid to City of Whittlesea

Fuel, MV Repairs, Training & Other paid to City of Whittlesea

Vehicle Running Cost & Other paid to Banyule City Council

Room Hire & Other paid to the Nillumbik Shire Council

Council Library Contribution received from City of Whittlesea

Lalor Community Room contribution received from City of Whittlesea

Lalor Toy Library contribution received from City of Whittlesea

Other monies received from City of Whittlesea

$130,000 - $139,999
$160,000 - $169,999

The numbers of key management personnel whose total remuneration 
from the YPRL, fall within the following bands:

NIL
$10,001 - $19,999

$70,001 - $79,999
$80,000 - $99,999
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Note 8 Managing uncertainties

8.1 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets 

Superannuation

Future Superannuation Contributions

Contingent Assets

YPRL has no known contingent assets as at 30 June 2019.

Council has obligations under a defined benefit superannuation scheme that may result in the 
need to make additional contributions to the scheme, matters relating to this potential 
obligation are outlined below. As a result of the volatility in financial markets the likelihood of 
making such contributions in future periods exists. 

The expected employee contributions to be paid to the Defined Benefits category of Vision 
Super for the year ending 30 June 2020 are $112K.
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8.2 Change in Accounting Standards

Applied changes in Accounting Standards

Upcoming changes in Accounting Standards

The following new AAS's have been issued that are mandatory for the 30 June 2019 reporting 

period. 

Financial Instruments - Disclosures (AASB 7) (applies 2018/19)

This Standard requires entities to provide disclosures in their financial statements that enable users 

to evaluate: (a) the significance of financial instruments for the entity’s financial position and 

performance; and (b) the nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments to which the 

entity is exposed. YPRL's Financial Instruments (Trade Debtors and Doubtful Debts) are covered 

under AASB 9. YPRL's disclosures are not impacted by the changes introduced in AASB 7.

Financial Instruments (AASB 9) (applies 2018/19)

The key changes include the simplified requirements for the classification and measurement of 

financial assets, a new hedging accounting model and a revised impairment loss model to recognise 

impairment losses earlier, as opposed to the current approach that recognises impairment only when 

incurred. In 2018/2019 YPRL's approach to trade debtors and doubtful debts has been adjusted to 

be in line with AASB 9's requirement to classify impairments on a forward looking basis. For 

additional information see Note 5.1(c).

The following new AAS's have been issued that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2019 reporting 

period. YPRL has assessed these pending standards and has identified the following potential 

impacts will flow from the application of these standards in future reporting periods.

The standard shifts the focus from the transaction-level to a contract-based approach. Recognition is 

determined based on what the customer expects to be entitled to (rights and obligations), while 

measurement encompasses estimation by the entity of the amount expected to be entitled for 

performing under the contract. Commencing 2019/2020 revenue received for Specific Purpose 

grants or Contributions tied to a performance obligation such as those referred to in Notes 3.2 and 

3.3 will be recognised in the period in which the performance obligation is performed, rather than in 

the year the funds are received. In implementation YPRL must elect either retrospective or 

cumulative transition, which will affect comparative figures for the 2019/2020 financial accounts.

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Deferral of AASB 15 for Not-for-Profit Entities 

(AASB 2016-7) (applies 2019/20)

This Standard defers the mandatory effective date of AASB 15 for not-for-profit entities from 1 

January 2018 to 1 January 2019.

Revenue from contracts with customers (AASB 15) (applies 2019/20 for LG sector)
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8.2 Upcoming changes in Accounting Standards (con't)

The classification of leases as either finance leases or operating leases is part eliminated for 

lessees. Leases of high value items will be recognised in the Balance Sheet by capitalising the 

present value of the minimum lease payments and showing a ‘right-of-use’ asset, while future lease 

payments will be recognised as a financial liability. The nature of the expense recognised in the profit 

or loss will change. Rather than being shown as rent, or as leasing costs, it will be recognised as 

depreciation on the ‘right-of-use’ asset, and an interest charge on the lease liability. The interest 

charge will be calculated using the effective interest method, which will result in a gradual reduction 

of interest expense over the lease term. Leases of low value items may retain treatment as an 

expense over the period of the lease. As the bulk of YPRL's leases are for low value items, the bulk 

of YPRL's leasing costs will retain existing accounting treatment.

Income of Not-for-Profit Entities (AASB 1058 ) (applies 2019/20)

This standard replaces AASB 1004 Contributions and establishes revenue recognition principles for 

transactions where the consideration to acquire an asset is significantly less than fair value to enable 

to not-for-profit entity to further its objectives. AASB 1058 has no impact on YPRL's current 

operations our accounting outcomes.

Leases (AASB 16) (applies 2019/20)
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8.3

(b) Market risk

Interest rate risk

 - monitoring of return on investment; and

 - benchmarking of returns and comparison with budget.

Interest rate movements have not been sufficiently significant during the year to have an impact on the Library's year

end result.

(c) Credit risk

 - we may require collateral where appropriate; and

 - we only invest surplus funds with financial institutions which have a recognised credit rating specified in our 

 investment policy.

There are no material financial assets which are individually determined to be impaired.

Financial Instruments

(a) Objectives and policies

The Library's principal financial instruments comprise cash assets, term deposits, other financial assets; receivables 

(excluding statutory receivables), and payables (excluding statutory payables). Details of the significant accounting 

policies and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which 

income and expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity 

instrument is disclosed in the notes of the financial statements. Risk management is carried out by senior 

management under policies approved by the Library Board. These policies include identification and analysis of the 

risk exposure to the Library and appropriate procedures, controls and risk minimisation.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of our financial instruments will fluctuate because of 

changes in market prices. The Library's exposures to market risk is primarily through interest rate risk with only 

insignificant exposure to other price risks and no exposure to foreign currency risk. 

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the value of a financial instrument or cash flows associated with the instrument 

will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. Our interest rate liability risk arises primarily from other financial 

investments which exposes us to fair value interest rate risk. The Library does not have any borrowings. Cash flow 

interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 

market interest rates. The Library has exposure to cash flow interest rate risk through its cash and deposits that are at 

floating rate. 

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date to recognised financial assets is the carrying amount, net of 

any provisions for impairment of those assets, as disclosed in the balance sheet and notes to the financial statements. 

The Library does not hold any collateral.

Investment of surplus funds is made with approved financial institutions under the Local Government Act 1989 . We 

manage interest rate risk by adopting an investment policy that ensures:

There has been no significant change in the Library's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing 

interest rate risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.

Credit risk is the risk that a contracting entity will not complete its obligations under a financial instrument and cause us 

to make a financial loss. We have exposure to credit risk on some financial assets included in our balance sheet. To 

help manage this risk:

Receivables consist of a small number of customers, primarily the contributing Member Councils.

Details of YPRL's Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in Note 8.1
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8.3 Financial Instruments (con't)

(d) Liquidity risk

To help reduce these risks the Library:

 - have a liquidity portfolio structure that requires surplus funds to be invested within various bands of liquid instruments; and
 - monitor budget to actual performance on a regular basis.

Unless otherwise stated, the carrying amounts of financial instruments reflect their fair value

 Fair value

(f) Sensitivity disclosure analysis

 - A parallel shift of + 1% and -1% in market interest rates (AUD) from year-end rates of 2.05%.

8.4 Events Occurring After Balance Date

There have been no events occurring subsequent to balance date.

Taking into account past performance, future expectations, economic forecasts, and management's knowledge and 

experience of the financial markets, YPRL believes the following movements are 'reasonably possible' over the next 12 

months:

These movements will not have a material impact on the valuation of YPRL's financial assets and liabilities, nor will 

they have a material impact on the results of YPRL's operations.

Liquidity risk includes the risk that, as a result of our operational liquidity requirements or we will not have sufficient funds 

There has been no significant change in the Library's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing liquidity risk 

or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.

With the exception of borrowings, all financial liabilities are expected to be settled within normal terms of trade.

Unless otherwise stated, the carrying amount of financial instruments reflect their fair value

Fair value hierarchy

YPRL's financial assets and liabilities are not valued in accordance with the fair value hierarchy . YPRL's financial 

assets and liabilities are measured at amortised cost. 
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Note 9.1 Relevant Financial Ratios

(i) Working Capital 2019 2018 2017
$ $ $

000's 000's 000's

To assess the corporation's ability

to meet current commitments

4,814 1.71 4,759 1.78 4,916 1.81
Current Assets/Current Liabilities 2,820 2,680 2,715

(ii) Capital Replacement
To assess Library's capital expenditure
against depreciation

2,185 0.96 1,929 1.14 2,002 1.01
Capital Spend/Depreciation 2,283 1,699 1,973

(a) Note: Capital Replacement 2019 impacted by correcting prior year depreciation in the income statement.
Adjusting for prior year depreciation recognised in 2018/2019, the Capital Spend/Depreciation would be:

2019
$

000's

Adjusted Capital Spend/Depreciation 2,185 1.09
2,004

9.2 Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities to surplus/(deficit)

2019 2018
$ $

Surplus/(deficit) for the year (78,856) (1,061,359)

Depreciation/amortisation 2,282,975 1,699,364
Profit/(loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 5,661
Impairment losses - Revaluation of Bookstock/Collection 1,208,128

Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables (70,690) (7,124)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments (92,664) (2,307)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables 277,527 (34,635)
Increase/(decrease) in provisions (115,423) (39,364)

86,022 -               
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 2,294,552 1,762,703

Net impact of correcting prior year accounts + non operating activity related 

change in assets & liabilities above (EG. Capital invoices payable)
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9.3 Superannuation

YPRL makes the majority of its employer superannuation contributions in
respect of its employees to the Vision Superannuation Fund (the Fund). This 
Fund has two categories of membership, accumulation and defined benefit, each of 
which is funded differently. Obligations for contributions to the Fund are recognised as 
an expense in the Comprehensive Income Statement when they are made or due.

Accumulation

The Fund's accumulation categories, Vision MySuper; Vision Super Saver, receives both 

employer and employee contributions on a progressive basis. Employer contributions are 
normally based on a fixed percentage of employee earnings (for the year ended 30 June 
2019, this was 9.5% as required under Superannuation Guarantee legislation for 2017/18, 
this was 9.5%).

Defined Benefit

YPRL does not use defined benefit accounting for its defined benefit obligations 
under the Fund's Defined Benefit category. This is because the Fund's Defined Benefit 
category is a pooled multi-employer sponsored plan.

There is no proportional split of the defined benefit liabilities, assets or costs between
the participating employers as the defined benefit obligation is a floating
obligation between the participating employers and the only time that the aggregate
obligation is allocated to specific employers is when a call is made. As a
result, the level of participation of YPRL in the Fund cannot be measured
as a percentage compared with other participating employers. Therefore, the
Actuary is unable to allocate benefit liabilities, assets and costs between employers
for the purposes of AASB 119.

Funding arrangements

YPRL makes employer contributions to the defined benefit category of the Fund 

at rates determined by the Trustee on the advice of the Fund's Actuary.

As at 30 June 2017, a full triennial actuarial investigation was completed.
The vested benefit index (VBI) of the Defined Benefit category of which YPRL
is a contributing employer was 103.1%. To determine the VBI, the Fund
Actuary used the following long-term assumptions:

Net investment returns 6.5% pa
Salary information 3.5% pa
Price inflation (CPI) 2.5% pa.

Vision Super has advised that the estimated VBI at the March 2019 quarter end was 
105.40%

The VBI is to be used as the primary funding indicator. Because the VBI was above 100%, 
the 30 June 2017 actuarial investigation determined the defined benefit category was in a 
satisfactory financial position and that no change was necessary to the Defined Benefit 
category's funding arrangements from prior years.
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9.3 Superannuation (con't)

Employer contributions

Regular contributions

On the basis of the results of the 2017 triennial actuarial investigation conducted

YPRL makes employer contributions to the Funds' Defined Benefit category

at rates determined by the Fund's Trustee. For the year ended 30 June 2019, this rate was 

9.5% of members' salaries (9.5% in 2017/2018).

This rate will increase in line with any increase to the Superannuation Guarantee (SG) 

contribution rate. In addition, YPRL reimburses the Fund to cover the excess of the benefits

paid as a consequence of retrenchment above the funded resignation or retirement 

benefit.

Funding calls

If the Defined Benefit category is in an unsatisfactory financial position at actuarial 

investigation or the defined benefit category's VBI is below its shortfall limit at any time 

other than the date of the actuarial investigation, the defined benefit category has a 

shortfall for the purposes of SPS 160 and the Fund is required to put a plan in place so 

that the shortfall is fully funded within three years of the shortfall occurring. The Fund 

monitors its VBI on a quarterly basis and the Fund has set its shortfall limit at 97%.

In the event that the Fund Actuary determines that there is a shortfall based on the 

above requirement, the Fund's participating employers, (including YPRL)

are required to make an employer contribution to cover the shortfall.

Using the agreed methodology, the shortfall amount is apportioned between the

participating employers based on the pre-1 July 1993 and post-30 June 1993 service 

liabilities of the Fund's defined benefit category, together with the employer's payroll at 

30 June 1993 and at the date the shortfall has been calculated.

Due to the nature of the contractual obligations between the participating employers 

and the Fund, and that the Fund includes lifetime pensioners and their reversionary 

beneficiaries, it is unlikely that the Fund will be wound up.

If there is a surplus in the Fund, the surplus cannot be returned to the participating 

employers.

In the event that a participating employer is wound-up, the defined benefit obligations 

of that employer will be transferred to that employer's successor.

2017 triennial actuarial investigation surplus amounts

The Fund's triennial actuarial investigation as at 30 June 2017 identified the following in the 

defined benefit category of which YPRL is a contributing employer:

 A VBI surplus of $69.8 million; and

 A total service liability surplus of $193.5million.

 A discounted accrued benefits surplus of $228.8 million

The VBI surplus means that the market value of the fund's assets supporting the defined 

benefit obligations exceed the vested benefits that the defined benefit members would have 

been entitled to if they had all exited on 30 June 2017.
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9.3 Superannuation (con't)

2018 interim actuarial investigation

9.4 Member Contributions

Balance at 

Beginning of 

Reporting Period

Increment 

(Decrement)

Balance at End of 

Reporting Period

$ $ $

Members Contributions (i) 3,770,080                 -                  3,770,080                 

Total Contributions 3,770,080                 -                  3,770,080                 

(i) This represents the value of the initial contribution of net assets made by the Member Councils 

when it was established in 1996.

An interim actuarial investigation was conducted for the Fund’s position as at 30 June 2018. This 

interim actuarial investigation was completed in September 2018. The interim actual investigation 

found that the Defined Benefit plan's financial position has improved since the triennial actuarial 

investigation, with a Total Service Liability Surplus increased to $218 million.
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REPORT 

INTRODUCTION 

This report is for the Board’s approval.  

BACKGROUND 

Yarra Plenty Regional Library produces an Annual Report detailing the organisation’s 

activities throughout the preceding year.  

REPORT 

The Annual Report monitors progress against YPRL’s Library Plan 2017 – 2021.  

SUMMARY 

This past financial year YPRL has focused on reducing barriers to accessing the library with 

the removal of fines on children’s items, the fine amnesty in December and the 

development of the Digital Membership category and the capacity to join the library 

immediately online.  The results are just starting to be realized and include a significant 

increase of children’s borrowing rates and an increase in young people borrowing. 

YPRL’s Annual Report finds that across the last financial year: 

 Library visits have been maintained despite Mill Park Library being closed for a 

significant period (two months).  

 Loans have been maintained with a slight downward trend mostly due to a 

reduction in eBook & eAudio loans due the dissolution of the Overdrive consortium 

with Brisbane City Libraries.  It should be noted that the YPRL physical items loaned 

is trending slightly upward over the year. This trend is significant when we note the 

closure of Mill Park Library for eight weeks in this period and we anticipate this 

trend will continue. 

 The mobile library has undergone a rapid expansion with significant increases in 

membership and loans including a 6% increase in number of visits.   

It is acknowledged that there are some downward trends in this report which YPRL will 

assess as part of the Library Plan review in the coming year.  
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CRITICAL DATES 

 Draft approved by Board 15 August 2019  

 Design and print August/September 2019  

 Sent to Minister by 23 September 2019  

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

Covered within the 2019/2020 budget. 

POLICY STRATEGY AND LEGISLATION 

This report is developed in accordance with the Local Government Act 1989 (as amended) 

Section 131. 

LINKS TO STRATEGIC PLAN 

Finance & Governance  

Goal: Optimise public value through sustainable financial management and governance 

Strategies: 

 Responsibly manage our budget to deliver best value to our community  

 Continually monitor and optimise our processes for efficiency 

 Commit to good governance practices in all we do 

DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

Under section 80C of the Local Government Act 1989 officers providing advice to the 

Library must disclose any interests, including type of interest. 

The Responsible Officer reviewing this report, having made enquiries with the relevant 

members of staff, reports that no disclosable interests have been raised in relation to this 

report. 

CONCLUSION 

This Annual Report demonstrates YPRL’s focus on removing barriers to using the library, a 

significant investment in renewing our ICT infrastructure to provide current hardware and 

software resources for community use and the positive impact from new Strategies and 

Plans such as the Maker Space Plan and the Marketing strategy.  It has been a year of some 

change in approach and the significant community impact we are starting to achieve is due 

to a passionate and engaged staff.  It is a year that the Board can be proud of, and YPRL will 

continue to adapt and respond to trends and evidence in the coming year. 
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RECOMMENDATION 

THAT the Board resolves to approve the Draft Annual Report 2018/2019 

   M:  

 S:  
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About Us 
Yarra Plenty Regional Library (YPRL) is a library service comprising nine branch libraries located 

across the three member Councils of Banyule, Nillumbik and Whittlesea. YPRL supports all three 

Councils in their aims for connected and resilient communities and supports these strategies 

through our curated collections, public programs and welcoming spaces.  

Yarra Plenty Regional Library enjoys a reputation as an innovative, progressive and effective library 

service. There are nine branch libraries located at Greensborough, Eltham, Ivanhoe, Lalor, Mill Park, 

Rosanna, Thomastown, Watsonia and Whittlesea, as well as two mobile libraries – the Mobile 

Library and Outreach Vehicle – and a home library service.  

Our Vision 
Informed creative communities: connected and empowered 

Our Mission 
We will provide opportunities for our diverse communities to read, learn, create and connect, 

supported by equitable access to collections, technology, programs and welcoming and safe spaces.  

We aim to be the ‘third space’ after home and work or education, and to be regarded as the 

community lounge room.  

Map 
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Chairperson’s Report 
 

On behalf of the Yarra Plenty Regional Library Board, I am delighted to present the library’s 2018 – 

2019 Annual Report. 

I would like to welcome to the organisation new Board Member Cr Alison Champion. Departing 

Board Member Mark Di Pasquale is also thanked for his contributions. 

YPRL is proud to have removed barriers to borrowing with two significant initiatives. Firstly the 

library removed all fines from children’s items in August 2018. This change is viewed by the Board as 

an investment in youth literacy, ensuring ready access to books and other learning materials, are 

available to everyone in the community.  This initiative resulted in an increase of over 57% of young 

adult items being loaned across the library service. The Board also undertook an Amnesty for fines in 

December 2018.  Our Food for Fines Amnesty saw over 1,860kg of food donated to Foodbank 

Victoria when borrowers were offered the opportunity to remove old fines by donating to the 

library’s food drive.  

The launch of our Hindi and Punjabi collection sees over 850 books, DVDs and magazines added to 

the collection and continues our commitment to celebrating and serving the diversity within our 

communities. Community members helped celebrate the launch of the collection with dance 

performances, henna artist activities and an afternoon tea for all at Lalor Library in March 2019. 

Libraries Change Lives is a state-wide advocacy campaign and YPRL has been an active participant. It 

is vital that Victorian public libraries are supported to meet rising community demand for our vital 

services and YPRL Libraries Change Lives Champions received training to help us promote the 

message that libraries build literate, productive and engaged communities.  

I would like to thank all members of the Library Board, Member Council Directors and staff, and our 

dedicated and hardworking library staff for their support and contribution. We are very fortunate to 

have such an engaged and collaborative team.  
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CEO Report 
 

YPRL serves the large and diverse community of our three Member Councils through provision of 

current, relevant collections, growing our digital resources, stimulating events and welcoming spaces 

to meet and connect. We are constantly adapting to meet the changing needs of our community. 

This year we were proud to introduce initiatives that made online access to the library easier than 

ever before. Our eMagazines and online learning portal Lynda.com saw dramatic increases in access, 

and we made significant investments in growing a suite of ebooks and audiobooks following the 

dissolution of our Overdrive partnership with Brisbane City Libraries. In June we launched a Digital 

Membership which offers instant library membership through the YPRL website to our extensive 

digital resources.  

Following upgrades, YPRL’s mobile library has enjoyed a significant increase in visits and an increase 

of over 60% in loans, demonstrating the importance of the service to the rural and growing 

communities it visits.  

In late 2018 YPRL conducted a staff survey to measure and assess staff experiences. The results 

showed our workforce is highly engaged and committed to delivering exceptional customer service. 

YPRL’s significant community impact is the result of much hard work and passion. I would like to take 

this opportunity to thank the Board for its vision and dedication providing forward focused library 

services, all YPRL staff and volunteers for their passion and hard work, and our many community 

partners for their trust and dedication.  
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Our Board Members 

July 2018 – June 2019 

Library Board  
July 2018 – December 2018 

Library Board  
February 2019 

Library Board  
May 2019 – June 2019 

Banyule City Council 
 

Banyule City Council 
 

Banyule City Council 

Cr Tom Melican Cr Tom Melican 
 

Cr Tom Melican 

Cr Mark Di Pasquale 
 

Cr Alison Champion; Deputy 
Chair 

Cr Alison Champion; Deputy 
Chair 

Ms Allison Beckwith (ex 
officio) 
Director Community 
Programs 

Ms Allison Beckwith (ex officio) 
Director Community Programs 

Ms Allison Beckwith (ex officio) 
Director Community Programs 

Nillumbik Shire Council 
 

Nillumbik Shire Council 
 

Nillumbik Shire Council 

Cr Peter Clarke; Deputy Chair 
 

Cr Peter Clarke; Chair 
 

Cr Peter Clarke; Chair 

Cr Karen Egan 
 

Cr Karen Egan 
 

Cr Karen Egan 

Mr Adrian Cully (ex officio) 
Director Business & Strategy 

Mr Matt Kelleher (ex officio) 
Director Business & Strategy 

Ms Corrienne Nichols (ex 
officio) 
Director Community & 
Planning 

City of Whittlesea 
 

City of Whittlesea 
 

City of Whittlesea 

Cr Sam Alessi; Chair 
 

Cr Sam Alessi 
 

Cr Sam Alessi 

Cr Stevan Kozmevski 
 

Cr Stevan Kozmevski 
 

Cr Stevan Kozmevski 

Mr Russell Hopkins (ex 
officio) 
Director Community Services 

Mr Russell Hopkins (ex officio) 
Director Community Services 

Mr Russell Hopkins (ex officio) 
Director Community Services 

 

Attendance at Scheduled and Special Board Meetings 
 

Cr Tom Melican                            4/6 

Cr Mark Di Pasquale                     2/3 

Cr Alison Champion  3/3 

Cr Peter Clarke  5/6 

Cr Karen Egan  5/6 

Cr Sam Alessi  6/6 

Cr Stevan Kozmevski  4/6 
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Information Privacy Act 

The Privacy and Data Protection Act 2014 is designed to protect the private information of 

individuals. The Corporation has a Privacy Policy available on the library website. No complaints 

were received during 2018/2019.  

Freedom of Information  

The Freedom of Information Act 1982 provides people with the opportunity to obtain information 

held by State and Local Government departments and authorities. The Act gives people the right to 

request documents relating to their personal affairs. YPRL did not receive any requests during 2018-

2019. 

Protected Disclosures  

In accordance with the provisions of s58 of the Protected Disclosure Act 2012, the Corporation has a 

procedure for dealing with disclosures made under the Act. The Executive Manager Corporate 

Services is the Corporation’s Protected Disclosure Coordinator. YPRL has not received any 

disclosures directly nor has it received any referrals from the Ombudsman during 2018-2019. 
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Statistical Overview 

Overall Progress Table 
Indicator  Measure Target 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/2018 2018/2019 % difference since 

last year 

Loans Number of 
items 
borrowed 

Maintain 
circulation 
figures  

3,481,907 3,359,187 3,223,381 3,237,186 3,103,974 -4.20% (1) 
 

Program 
Attendance 

Number of 
participants in 
programs and 
activities 

10% increase of 
previous year 

139,787 188,043 207,759 197,511 176,926 -10.99% 
 

Visitation Total Door count Increase 3% per 
annum 

1,414,211 1,636,886 1,678,885 1,585,093 1,556,371 -1.81% (2) 
 

Opening Hours   530.25 534.5 536 537.5 537.5 0.00% 
 

 

(1) Figure impacted by eight week closure of Mill Park Library and dissolution of Overdrive partnership with Brisbane City Libraries  

(2) Figure impacted by eight week closure of Mill Park Library 
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Statistical Overview 

Indicator 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 % difference 
since last year 

 

Population – Regional (ABS Estimated 
Resident Population) 

375,381 384,231 395,592 405,016 418,510 3.31%  

Total Members 114,668 126,992 132,892 137,983 141,641 2.68%  

Members as % of Population 30.55% 33.05% 33.60% 34.07% 33.84% -2.02%  

Membership (active users) 70,495 70,067 73,080 66,847 74,875 12.00%  

Mobile Library Locations  13 14 14 13 13 0.00%  

Collection Total (Items)  461,545 469,399 460,425 464,670 407,465 -12.31%  

Collection (New items) 124,097 104,789 97,544 106,152 96,030 -9.53%  

InterLibrary Loan Requests 1,250 1,603 1,894 2,097 1,583 -24.51%  

eCollection Usage 322,248 357,656 462,186 409,748 473,749 15.61%  

Wifi Sessions 88,797 119,351 128,936 197,707 267,574 35.33%  

Public Access Internet Sessions 320,749 295,562 223,133 242,710 191,218 -21.21%  

Total eAccess 1,498,437 1,573,315 1,621,853 2,422,132 2,370,642 -2.12%  

Learning Programs 2,655 3,146 3,012 2,990 3,114 4.14%  

Learning Attendance 29,170 24,086 23,209 30,992 29,287 -5.50%  

Programs Total 5,469 8,149 8,834 7,377 7,726 4.73%  

Staff (EFT) 92.02 92.64 92.30 92.48 93.17 
 

0.74%  
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Total Membership 

 BANYULE MURRINDINDI NILLUMBIK OUT-AREA WHITTLESEA TOTAL 

Diamond Valley 1,698 15 7,881 218 349 10,161 

Eltham 1,710 16 20,033 547 206 22,512 

Ivanhoe 14,950 8 104 976 169 16,207 

Lalor 80 2 59 931 18,798 19,870 

Mill Park 447 44 251 472 26,729 27,943 

Rosanna 11,018 3 83 324 90 11,518 

Thomastown 37 0 14 423 8,338 8,812 

Watsonia 11,891 5 195 361 293 12,745 

Whittlesea 318 10 13 13 2,624 2,978 

Mobile Library 182 2 439 10 1,644 2,277 

Home Library 47 0 16 0 45 108 

Outreach 341 0 163 0 529 1,033 

YPRL-HQ 408 8 336 1,155 3,528 5,435 

TOTAL 43,127 113 29,587 5,430 63,342 141,599 
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Visitation 

 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 % Change since 
last year 

Diamond Valley 82,044 136,357 117,030 104,881 
 

110,161 4.91% 

Eltham 250,024 257,072 275,586 268,591 
 

267,087 -0.56% 

Ivanhoe  169,103 172,403 204,835 176,522 
 

164,039 -7.33% 

Lalor 211,219 249,437 274,173 293,281 
 

298,611 1.80% 

Mill Park 218,674 233,732 212,406 203,325 
 

161,134 -23.15% (1) 

Rosanna 135,293 193,088 181,350 131,419 
 

128,847 -1.96% 

Thomastown 151,981 157,214 141,354 141,387 
 

144,051 1.87% 

Watsonia  145,276 167,777 206,182 193,244 
 

197,435 2.14% 

Whittlesea 35,887 44,159 50,470 51,312 
 

49,962 -2.66% 

Mobile Library 17,865 14,710 16,647 21,131 
 

35,044 
 

49.53% 

Total Library Visits 1,357,590 1,414,211 1,678,885 1,585,093 
 

1,556,371 -1.81% 

 

(1) Figure impacted by eight week closure of Mill Park Library 
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Usage Statistics 

Library Members Visits Loans Holds Public Access 
Internet sessions 

Diamond Valley 10,161 110,161 248,126 38,518 11,812 

Eltham 22,512 267,087 542,227 68,608 26,319 

Ivanhoe  16,207 164,039 393,088 55,557 25,992 

Lalor 19,870 298,611 255,209 24,952 40,059 

Mill Park 27,943 161,134 455,641 47,586 25,473 

Rosanna 11,518 128,847 289,010 39,451 14,927 

Thomastown 8,812 144,051 127,793 10,401 19,172 

Watsonia  12,745 197,435 390,988 38,395 22,693 

Whittlesea 2,978 49,962 70,222 6,048 4,771 

Library Support Services 5,435 - 69,002 - - 

Home Library  108 - 36 427 - 

Mobile Library 2,277 35,044 102,118 6,305 - 

Outreach Vehicle  1,033 - 22,179 3,617 - 

Website visits - 1,100,840 - - - 

eLibrary loans - - 138,335 - - 

Online holds - - - 17,447 - 

YPRL App total sessions - 198,926 - - - 

Total Usage 141,599 2,856,137 3,103,974 357,312 191,218 
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Knowledge & Information  
Provide free access to dynamic collections which inform and delight 

We will: 

1. Ensure the collection meets the needs and demands of our diverse communities 

2. Curate and tailor collections to each branch or service point’s communities 

3. Support the creation and sharing of local content and stories 

4. Provide 24/7 access to collections by growing the eLibrary digital offerings  

5. Provide collections and resources which encourage and promote life-long learning and a 

love of reading for all ages 

Measure of success: Achieved   

 % of new items loaned in first year of purchase – keep at or 
above 96%

Yes – 95.6% 

Maintain or improve patron satisfaction rating for collections 
which patrons need or want – survey rating 8.28 

No – 8.16  

Maintain or improve patron satisfaction of prompt turnaround of 
requests – survey rating 8.70 

No – 8.00 

Increase in % of loans of eBooks, eAudiobooks and eMagazines as 
a % of total loans 

Yes – up 9.5% 

Maintaining age of collection standard of 85% 
 

Yes – 85% 

Grow the number of local authors supported by acquiring their 
works for YPRL collections 

Yes – 25 authors added 

 

Key Initiatives 

1. Hindi and Punjabi collections introduced  

YPRL introduced a new collection in Hindi and Punjabi languages. Cr Sam Alessi launched the 

collection made up of over 850 items at Lalor Library on 23 March. Community members helped 

celebrate the launch and enjoyed a dance performance and henna artist as part of the event. To 

date there have been over 2,000 loans of CDs, DVDs, magazines and picture books that form the 

Hindi-Punjabi collection at the Lalor library. 

2. Removed barriers to borrowing library collection  

 

YPRL undertook several initiatives to increase access to library collections. In August 2018, the library 

removed all fines from children’s items to invest in youth literacy which starts with ready access to 

books and other learning materials. As children’s items make up 35% of the collection, the removal 

of fines meant a significant proportion of the collection became fine free. The initiative saw an 

increase in all children and youth loans including a 57% increase in young adult items borrowed by 

12-15 year old members and a 20% increase of teen items borrowed by 15-18 year olds. 
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In December 2018, YPRL ran a Food for Fines Amnesty. Patrons were able to remove old fines by 

making a donation to the library’s food drive.  Over 1,860kg of food was donated to Foodbank 

Victoria through our libraries, which provided meals for those experiencing food insecurity in 

Victoria. YPRL also forgave $21,870 in fines allowing our members to start their 2019 year with a 

zero balance.  

 

3. Introduced Digital Membership option  

 

Digital memberships were introduced in June 2019. The new web-based registration model allows 

new members to join the library instantly online and start using eLibrary resources immediately.  

 

4. YPRL on Wikipedia 

YPRL was the first Victorian public library to participate in the world-wide Wikipedia #1Lib1Ref 

campaign in May 2019. Wikipedia is a multilingual online reference tool and one of the most popular 

online websites. YPRL’s aim for #1Lib1Ref was to strengthen library staff research and citation skills, 

and to ensure information about its local government areas was discoverable. Training was 

undertaken with Pru Mitchell, President of Wikimedia Australia. YPRL’s output was:  

 78 articles edited, including 51 articles related to our local government areas 

 15,000+ words added to Wikipedia  

 131 references added 

 1.27 million views of those articles by the end of the program 

Collection trends 

 Loans of the physical collection have increased by 0.3% 

 Loans of eBooks and eAudiobooks have decreased by 29%, as a result of the cessation of the 

Yarra Plenty/Brisbane City Libraries Overdrive consortia in December 2018 when the 

collection was split. 

 Print magazines have again decreased with an 8% drop in loans which is more than made up 

with the very strong increase rate of 69% for e-Magazine loans 

 Picture books, easy starters, junior fiction and junior non-fiction loans continue to increase 

by 8.2%, 5.0%, 0.9% and 4.9% respectively 

 CD and DVD usage have continued their downward trend with a decrease in loans of 39% 

and 10% respectively.  

 Total loans have decreased by 4.1% 
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Collection Statistics   2017/2018 2018/2019 

 
Total physical items 
Banyule 118,395 119,407 
Whittlesea 153,651 143,965 
Nillumbik 76,926 75,640 
 
Total loans of physical items 
Banyule 1,113,857 1,137,531 
Whittlesea 1,003,323 973,310 
Nillumbik 838,285 854,798 
 
Total digital items 
eBooks 86,294 30,739 
eAudiobooks 13,863 6,888 
Total no. digital items 100,157 37,627 
 
Total loans of digital items 
eBooks 126,623 77,669 
eAudiobooks 69,182 60,666 
Total no. digital loans 195,805 138,335 
 
Total collection  
Physical and digital 464,670 407,465 
 
Total loans  
Physical and digital 3,237,186 3,103,974 
 
New items 
Banyule 30,613 32,177 
Whittlesea 37,000 36,309 
Nillumbik 20,674 21,343 
 
Turnover 
Banyule 9.43 9.21 
Whittlesea 5.56 6.31 
Nillumbik 10.14 10.26 
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Public Participation 

Inspire our diverse communities to participate in empowering activities and learning opportunities 

We will: 

1. Deliver programs and activities to foster reading and literacy 

2. Deliver learning programs that respond to evolving community needs 

3. Be the partner of choice for the other learning providers in the region 

4. Promote libraries as the community hub for learning, creating and connecting 

5. Deliver Maker Spaces that empower the creative and entrepreneurial aspirations of our 

communities 

Measure of success: Achieved  Yes/No 

 Maintain or grow attendance at all programs (benchmark for 
2017/18: 197,511) 

No – decreased 10.5% to 
176,926 

Maintain or grow visits to libraries (benchmark for 2017/18: 
1,585,093)  

No – decreased by  1.81% to 
1,556,371 

Events and activities for children are valued (benchmark: survey 
rating average 95.5% of respondents)  

No –  7.12 

Events and activities for adults are valued (benchmark: survey 
rating average 94.4% of respondents) 

No – 7.42 

 Increase the engagement with Maker Spaces from the current 
level of 12% (benchmark for 2017/2018: 6,994)

Yes – increased by 32.35% to 
10,339 

 

Key Initiatives 

1. Learning, creating and reading outcomes for community  

YPRL delivered a comprehensive suite of events across all library branches, ensuring reading, 

learning and public health outcomes. A review of YPRL programs was undertaken and increased 

research and coordination tactics were introduced to ensure the library’s suite of events reflect 

the strategies and initiatives of its member Councils.  YPRL’s public programs ensure that 

residents in Melbourne’s north are able to unlock their potential through targeted free events.  

Reading programs increased our capacity for literacy, encouraging a love of reading across all 

age groups. Across its branches, YPRL delivered 1,626 Storytime events for 85,063 people.  

Learning programs were designed to build a community of confident and creative learners. 

YPRL’s Maker Space program continued to grow. Watsonia Library’s Unlock Your Creativity 

program was designed to increase creativity, boost mental health and assist personal growth in a 

supportive and social environment.  

Community programs, designed to create inclusive and informed communities, provided a 

catalyst for people to come together. YPRL’s three Comic Cons attracted 4,300 attendances and 

encouraged creative self-expression and community-building among artists, writers, young 

people, and comics, cos-play, fan and gaming groups.  
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Total Event Statistics July 2018 – June 2019 

 

2. Telling the story of the library through its people  

In January 2019, YPRL introduced a Marketing Strategy with the aim of telling the story of the 

library through its people. Staff embraced the opportunity to connect with patrons via digital 

platforms including the library website, e-news and social media channels. Increased content 

and connection from library staff has resulted in a more satisfied and informed community of 

members. At year end, YPRL had increased its social media following by 18.5%. Website visits 

were up 6.7%.  

Social Media Statistics 

Platform Followers 2017/2018  Followers 2018/2019 % Change since last 
year 

Customer eNewsletter   3,547 33,989 858.24% 

Facebook – YRPL  2,125 2,726 28.28% 

Instagram 2,061 2,376 15.28% 

Twitter 1,625 1,819 11.93% 

LinkedIn 421  465 10.45% 

Total  9,779 41,375 323.10% 

Branch Location No. of events held No. of attendees 

Banyule   
Ivanhoe 1,389 24,406 
Rosanna 847 19,015 
Watsonia 877 18,796 
Subtotal 
 

3,113 62,217 

Benchmark Subtotal 17/18 
 

2,452 49,502 

Whittlesea   
Lalor 551 14,610 
Mill Park 805 26,336 
Thomastown 761 19,495 
Whittlesea 523 16,574 
Subtotal 
 

2,640 77,015 

Benchmark Subtotal 17/18 
 

3,155 104,787 

Nillumbik 
Diamond Valley 429 16,388 
Eltham 1,544 21,306 
Subtotal 
 

1,973 37,694 

Benchmark Subtotal 17/18 
 

1,770 43,222 

Total 
 

7,726 176,926 

Benchmark Total 17/18 
 

7,377 197,511 
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3. Mobile Library 

YPRL’s refreshed mobile library service continues to grow with significant increases in 

community engagement including 61% increase in number of visits. In December 2018, a new 

prime mover was purchased to replace an ageing vehicle.   

 2017/2018  2018/2019 % Change since last 
year 

Members   2,006 2,277 13.50% 

Visits  21,131 34,044 61.10% 

Loans 63,236 102,118 61.50% 
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People & Culture 
Invest in our people and culture because they are at the heart of everything we do  

We will: 

1. Create a culture which inspires, supports and develops our people 

2. Ensure policies and practices support workplace health, safety and wellbeing 

3. Continue to build and deliver excellence in customer service 

4. Promote equal opportunity for all 

Measure of success: Achieved  Yes/No 

Satisfaction of library users with library staff service as measured 
by library surveys (benchmark 2017 – 9.32) 

No – 8.36 

 Satisfaction of library users with library staff knowledge as 
measured by library surveys (benchmark 2017 – 9.2)

No – 8.47 

 Staff engagement and satisfaction as measured by staff surveys 
(benchmark 85%)

Yes –  89% 

 

Key Initiatives 

1. Staff Development Day 

130 engaged and energised YPRL team members came together on 1 March 2019 to unleash 

our potential at the library’s All Staff Development Day. The agenda included a rousing 

keynote address from Gus Balbontin on the value of disruption, a panel of public library 

experts who discussed advocacy and the future of libraries, and a series of facilitated 

workshops on YPRL’s culture and values. Branches were closed to facilitate staff attendance.  

 
2. Staff Experience Survey 

A staff survey was conducted in late 2018 to measure and assess staff experience with their 

roles, teams, manager, leadership team, and culture. The results showed the YPRL workforce 

is highly engaged and committed to delivering exceptional customer service. A series of 

collaborative action plans have been developed by each branch and department within 

YPRL, and a working group is driving the development and implementation of an overall 

organisational action plan for continuous improvement to culture.    

3. Executive Restructure 

YPRL’s Executive Team was restructured from four executive leaders to three: Executive 
Manager Corporate Services, Executive Manager Public Participation and Executive Manager 
Technology & Assets. Two new managerial positions were created to provide enhanced 
operational leadership capacity: Collections Manager and Finance Manager.  
 

4. Volunteers Coordinator  

A Volunteers Coordinator position was created within the People & Culture Team to 
coordinate, supervise and manage its extensive volunteer program. YPRL’s Volunteer Policy 
underwent a comprehensive review and a suite of new processes were implemented to 
align with the National Volunteer Standards.   
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Organisational Chart 
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Staff EFT (Equivalent to Full Time) 

Staff EFT (as at 30 June 2019) 
 

Staff Totals 
 

Number of Staff % of YPRL Workforce 

Full Time 36 23% 

Part Time 93 58% 

Casuals 31 19% 

Total 160 100% 

 

 Female/Male Breakdown 
 

Female Staff Totals Number of Staff % of YPRL Workforce 

Full Time 26 16% 

Part Time 84 53% 

Casuals 24 15% 

Subtotal 134 84% 

   

Male Staff Totals     

Full Time 10 6% 

Part Time 9 6% 

Casuals 7 4% 

Subtotal 26 16% 

 

Conferences and Seminars attended 

 Adult Literacy connect: Public Libraries & Adult Educators 

 ALIA Information Online Conference 

 ALIA Library Design Conference 

 ALIA Top End Symposium 

 Asia Pacific Library and Information Conference 

 Asia Pacific Libraries Sustainable Goals Summit 

 CILIPS Annual Conference , Dundee, Scotland 

 Creative Work, Creative Economies Symposium 

 FinPro AGM 

 FinPro Professional Development Seminar 

 Future AI in Libraries Seminar 

 Libraries Connect Conference, Coventry UK 

 Libraries, Democracy and Social Seminar 

 National Family History Month Closing Ceremony 

 National Future Schools Expo and Conference 

 PLVN ICT Management Unconference 

 PLVN Childrens & Youth Services Forum 

 PLVN Collections and Reader Development Seminar 

 PLVN Libmark On the Same Page Conference 
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 Public Libraries Mini-Workshop 

 Taxation & Payroll Seminar 

 VALA Tech Camp 

 West Gippsland Library Staff Development Day 

 Worksafe Victoria: Health and Safety Month 
 

Professional Memberships 

 ALIA (Australian Library & Information Association) 

 Australian Human Resources Institute  

 Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers 

 International Federation of Library Associations and Institutions (IFLA) 

 PLVN Collections Special Interest Group 

 PLVN Home Library Special Interest Group 

 PLVN ICT Special Interest Group  

 PLVN LibMark Special Interest Group 

 PLVN Local Studies Special Interest Group 

 Stephanie Alexander Kitchen Garden 

 VALA (Victorian Applied Learning Association)  

Professional Development 

External Training Programs attended: 

 Auslan (Sign Language) One 

 Branching Out 

 Building High Performance Teams 

 Building Your Evidence Base – research and evaluation 

 Business Storytelling Workshop 

 Calling Bullshit 

 Communicating with Confidence 

 Conducting Negotiations 

 Contact Officer Initial Training 

 Delivering Kitchen Garden Classes 

 Effective Marketing and Communication 

 EWF Masterclass: Booked Up 

 Facilitating Structured Conversations 

 Foundations of Directorship: Finance for Directors 

 Genealogy and Family History 

 Generate Arts Festivals 

 Great Library Spaces 

 Health and Safety Representative Initial Training 

 How to Win Grants 

 Influence and Persuasion in Negotiation 

 Influencing Up Victorian Collections Day 

 Introduction to Guiding Mindfulness 

 Keeping Books Alive 

 LGBTI/Transgender Diversity 

 Libraries Change Lives Storytelling Workshop 
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 Local Libraries Champions Forum 

 Maintaining Positive Relationships and Managing Conflict 

 Performance Management 

 Privacy Matters: libraries, client trust, data and safety 

 Receiving and Handling Protected Disclosures 

 Supporting Local History Groups 

 Victoria Library Leaders and Managers Workshop 

 Volunteers and the Law 

 Way2Go Volunteer Management Toolkit Training 

 Working with Families of Refugee and Migrant Backgrounds 

 Workplace Mediation Skills 
 

Internal Training Programs included: 

 Budgeting for Managers 

 Bullying and Harassment 

 CPR 

 Equal Opportunity 

 Expert Storytime 

 First Aid 

 Frontline Staff Safety 

 Having Difficult Conversations with Volunteers  

 Health, Wellbeing and Resilience 

 Managing Volunteers 

 Manual Handling 

 Mental Ill Health Awareness 

 NAO Robot Training 

 OHS Duty of Care 

 Responding to Mental Ill Health in the Workplace 

 Responsible Conduct Policy & Procedure 

 Social Media for Libraries 

 Social Media in the Workplace 

 Staying Well at Work 

 Wikipedia + Libraries: better together 

 Working with Pride (LGBTQI) 
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Advocacy 
Advocate for greater awareness of and investment in the powerful and transforming story of our 

public libraries 

We will: 

1. Inform and respond to government policy 

2. Seize opportunities to tell the story of our sector leading services at state, national and 

international conferences 

3. Collaborate with member councils to advocate for the resources to provide sector leading 

library services 

4. Advocate the role of public libraries in creating sustainable cities, towns and communities 

5. Promote our library service as a partner of choice, contributing to the regions social, cultural 

and economic growth 

Measure of success: Achieved  Yes/No  

Maintain or increase the number of partnerships to deliver sector 
leading services and programs 

Yes  

Maintain or increase grants and sponsorship of services and 
programs (benchmark 2017/18: 12 grants to the value of 
$239,614) 

Yes – increased by 10.36% to 
$265,804 19 grants 

Deliver at least six presentations at key forums and conferences Yes 

 

Key Initiatives 

1. Grants 

 Grants received in 2018/2019 
 

Name of Grant Type Value in AUD 

Premier Reading Fund State 56,795 

Local Priorities Funding State 126,097 

Cultural Heritage Grant Local 500 

Sensitive Santa Grant Community 1,000 

Libraries After Dark State 37,500 

Women's History Month Local 500 

Chapman Grant Community 200 

Women's Wellbeing Grant Community 400 

Kids Science Club Grant Community 900 

Gambling Harm Awareness 
Week 

Community 1,230 

Social Seniors Grant Community 1,500 

Gender Equality Storytime 
Grant 

Local 500 
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 Grants received in 2018/2019 
 
Banyule Comic-Con Grant Local 5,479 

Enviro Workshop Grant Local 2,573 

The Art of Healing Grant Local 5,000 

Nillumbik Comic-Con Grant Local 4,545 

Adult Literacy Innovation 
Grant 

Community 10,675 

VicArts Literary Toolkit Grant State 9,400 

Nillumbik Heritage Tours 
Project 

Local 1,010 

Total  265,804 

 

2. Industry advocacy through delivery of presentations in the library sector  

 Jack Chan, Community Coordinator Mill Park Library, presented Cosplay in Libraries at a 

New Cardigan Discussion Panel 

 Melinda Allan, Reading Coordinator Eltham Library, published The Collection is the 

Beating Heart of the Public Library in the National Australian Library and Information 

Association publication Incite in the Jan/Feb 2019 issue 

 Jack Chan, Community Coordinator Mill Park Library, published Teaching Users to 

Digitise in the National Australian Library and Information Association publication Incite 

in the Mar/Apr 2019 issue 

 Margaret Breare, Community Coordinator Rosanna Library, and Jane Petryszyn, Learning 

Coordinator Rosanna Library, presented Growing Old Gracefully: brain health as we age 

at PLVN's Stronger Together conference 

 Jack Chan, Community Coordinator Mill Park Library, presented Yarra Plenty Regional 

Library Comic Cons at PLVN's Stronger Together conference 

 Roslyn Quin, Library Technician Eltham Library, and Kate Hansen, Arts and Culture 

Coordinator Public Participation, presented Programming as Marketing at the LibMark 

Conference On the Same Page 

 Jane Cowell, CEO, presented Libraries Role in the UN Sustainable Development Goals: 

Public Libraries Committee General Meeting, Wodonga  

 Patrick Jovaras, Learning Coordinator Lalor Library, presented What They Never Taught 

Us at GLAMR School at the Australian Society of Archivists Victorian Branch meeting  

 Jane Cowell, CEO, presented Innovation It’s a State of Mind: Keynote CILIP Scotland 

National Conference, Dundee, Scotland  

 Lisa Dempster, Executive Manager Public Participation, presented in the Booked Up 

Masterclass at Emerging Writers' Festival 

 Jane Cowell, CEO, presented Partnerships for Shared Solutions: Presentation Libraries 

Connect Seminar, Coventry, UK  
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3. Awards  

Scott Mundell, Library Technician Ivanhoe Library, was awarded the prestigious 2018 Margery C 

Ramsay Scholarship for his joint project Augmenting Libraries: future-proofing public libraries for 

virtual and augmented reality technologies. 

 

4. Libraries Change Lives  

YPRL participated in a state-wide advocacy campaign to ensure that Victorian public libraries 

are supported to meet rising community demand for their vital services.  Libraries Change 

Lives Champions were trained in marketing and advocacy and helped YPRL promote the 

campaign’s message that libraries build literate, productive and engaged communities. The 

Champions captured and shared personal stories from YPRL patrons, partners and 

volunteers and participated in a parliamentary advocacy event at the State Parliament of 

Victoria on 18 June 2019.  

https://www.yprl.vic.gov.au/news/yprl-staff-member-awarded-the-2018-margery-c-ramsay-scholarship/
https://www.yprl.vic.gov.au/news/yprl-staff-member-awarded-the-2018-margery-c-ramsay-scholarship/
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Infrastructure & Innovation 
Create innovative digital and physical infrastructure to deliver sector leading services 

We will: 

1. Nurture and support innovation using technology and creative spaces  

2. Provide robust and flexible network infrastructure, sustaining our service delivery 

3. Adopt a leading role within public libraries to facilitate the collaboration generation and 

development of ideas 

4. Respond and evolve as the technology needs of our community change 

5. Provide or adapt flexible spaces that serve the changing needs of our community 

 

Measure of success:  Achieved  Yes/No  

 Ensure that the provision of public PCs exceeds the demand for 
95% of library opening hours

Yes – 99%  

 Ensure that access to the internet via Wi-Fi and fixed PCs is 
available for 99% of library opening hours

Yes – 99.5% 

 Maintain or exceed  our 8.9 customer satisfaction rating with 
opening hours

No – 8.26 

 Maintain or exceed  our 9.3 customer satisfaction score relating 
to our libraries being safe and our 9.1 customer satisfaction score 
relating to our welcoming spaces 
 
Customer satisfaction score relating to the presentation of our 
library buildings 

Not measured  
 
 
 
8.09 

 

Key Initiatives 

1. Desktop and Laptop Refresh Project   

New hardware has enabled YPRL to improve access to new software and enhanced both the 

patron and staff user experience. 377 new desktops and laptops were deployed across 

YPRL’s operations including at all library branches, mobile libraries and at Library Support 

Services. 

PC booking and Print Management System  

A new PC booking and print management system was installed at all library branches which 

has streamlined the PC booking and printing processes including providing remote access to 

printing services delivered at library branches. The new payment kiosk accepts EFTPOS 

payments only, which aligns with YPRL’s reduced cash handling strategy.  
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2. NBN Rollout 

YPRL continued to improve internet access by connecting Eltham, Ivanhoe, Lalor and 

Rosanna Libraries to the NBN network.   
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Finance & Governance  
Optimise public value through sustainable financial management and governance 

We will: 

1. Responsibly manage our budget to deliver best value to our community  

2. Continually monitor and optimise our processes for efficiency 

3. Commit to good governance practices in all we do 

4. Proactively advocate on behalf of the library service to ensure a financially sustainable 

future 

5. Collaborate with our member councils to deliver environmentally sustainable facilities  

Measure of success: Achieved  Yes/No 

Maintain a positive adjusted underlying  surplus (within approved 
local government target guidelines) 

Yes – $29k 

Maintain  sound liquidity (within approved local government 
target guidelines)  

Yes – 1.71 

Maintain a sound asset renewal indicator  (within approved local 
government target guidelines) 

No – 0.96  
 

Successful completion of annual audit program 
 

Yes 

Maintain our cost per loan metric at or below the Victorian State 
average (Victorian State average benchmark $6.06) 

Yes – $3.89  

 

Key Initiatives 

 

1. Strategic Risk Framework 

A Strategic Risk Framework outlining key areas of risk and mitigation strategies for the 

organisation was developed. The framework outlines risk identification, risk analysis and a Risk 

Register, made up of thirteen strategic risks with detailed controls and treatments to reduce risk, 

is reported regularly to the Board. 

2. Governance Project Three Year Review Program  

A review was undertaken of YPRL's frameworks, policies and procedures to identify gaps, 

develop a three-year review plan and examine the suitability of the organisation's ICT security 

policies.  

3. Finance Manager 

A new Finance Manager position was created within the Corporate Services team to enhance 

audit controls, efficiency, good governance and financial accountability. YPRL’s internal financial 

reporting processes were streamlined, consolidating statutory, board, management, grants and 

branch financial data into a unified reporting and projections framework.  
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Financial Reports  

Independent Auditor’s Report 
 

 

END 
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Agenda Item 4: Protected Disclosure Policy Report  

Responsible Officer: Chief Executive Officer 

Author: Kate Karrasch, Executive Manager Corporate Services  

Attachments: YPRL Protected Disclosure Policy 

YPRL Protected Disclosure Procedure 

YPRL Protected Disclosure Procedure 2018 

REPORT 

SUMMARY 

A comprehensive review of Yarra Plenty Regional Library’s existing Protected Disclosure 

Procedure has been undertaken, and a revised Protected Disclosure Policy and Procedure 

are presented for Board adoption. 

INTRODUCTION 

The Protected Disclosure Act 2012 (the Act) protects people who report improper conduct 

in the Victorian public sector from reprisal and YPRL is required to establish and publish 

procedures under the Act.  The YPRL Protected Disclosure Procedure is due for review by 

August 2019.  

A comprehensive review of YPRL’s Protected Disclosure Procedures has been completed to 

ensure continued compliance with the Act, resulting in the creation of a new Protected 

Disclosure Policy in addition to a revised Protected Disclosure Procedure.  

REPORT 

The attached Protected Disclosure Policy has been developed to reflect YPRL’s commitment 

to the aims and objectives of the Act. The purpose of the Protected Disclosure Policy is to: 

 ensure openness and accountability by encouraging people to make disclosures and 

protecting them when they do; and 

 provide people with clear guidance about making disclosures about improper 

conduct within YPRL without fear of reprisal, in compliance with section 58 of the 

Protected Disclosure Act 2012 (the Act). 

In addition to the new Protected Disclosure Policy, the attached Protected Disclosure 

Procedure explains: 

 how to make a protected disclosure to YPRL; 

 how YPRL assesses whether a disclosure has been made in accordance with the Act; 

 the confidentiality and records management processes YPRL follows for protected 

disclosures; 

 the protected disclosure information YPRL records and reports; and 

 how YPRL manages the welfare of people who make a protected disclosure. 
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In addition, other changes have been made to the Procedure including: 

 the addition of scope, related legislation, responsibility, and breach of policy and 

procedure sections. 

 definitions have been revised and updated. 

 flowcharts have been added to explain and summarise the processes for reporting 

and assessing protected disclosures. 

 the role of the Protected Disclosure Coordinator has been reviewed and expanded 

to incorporate managing the welfare of disclosers. 

The Protected Disclosure Policy and Procedure will provide the framework for YPRL’s 

management of protected disclosures and will be scheduled for next review in August 2021. 

CONSULTATION 

The draft Protected Disclosure Policy and Procedure have been developed by the Executive 

Manager Corporate Services. The Executive Leadership Team, Senior Leadership Team, 

Consultative Committee, Branch Managers and staff have also been invited to review and 

contribute to the revised policy and procedure. 

CRITICAL DATES 

The YPRL Protected Disclosure Procedure is due for review by August 2019.  

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

Nil 

POLICY STRATEGY AND LEGISLATION 

Protected Disclosure Act 2012 

LINKS TO STRATEGIC PLAN 

The YPRL Protected Disclosure Policy and Procedure contribute to good governance of YPRL 

and respond directly to strategies identified in the current Library Plan as follows: 

Finance and Governance 

Goal: Optimise public value through sustainable financial management and governance 

Strategy:  

 Committing to good governance practices in all we do 

DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

Under section 80C of the Local Government Act 1989 officers providing advice to the 

Library must disclose any interests, including type of interest.  
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The Responsible Officer reviewing this report, having made enquiries with the relevant 

members of staff, reports that no disclosable interests have been raised in relation to this 

report. 

CONCLUSION 

Adoption of the Protected Disclosure Policy and Procedure will demonstrate YPRL’s 

continued commitment to the aims and objectives of the Protected Disclosure Act 2012 by 

providing clear guidance about how to make a disclosure about improper conduct within 

YPRL and how YPRL protects those who make a disclosure. 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT the Board resolves to adopt the Protected Disclosure Policy and Procedure 

 M:  

 S:  
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Policy Name Protected Disclosure Policy  

Version number 1.0 

Policy date August 2019 

Date to be reviewed August 2021 

Responsibility Executive Manager Corporate Services 

Related Policies and Procedures 
Protected Disclosure Procedure 

 

Purpose 
 

To provide people with clear guidance about making disclosures about improper conduct within 
Yarra Plenty Regional Library (YPRL) without fear of reprisal, in compliance with section 58 of the 
Protected Disclosure Act 2012 (the Act).  
 
To ensure openness and accountability by encouraging people to make disclosures and protecting 
them when they do. 
 

Scope                                                          
 

This policy applies to all YPRL Board members, employees and the public. 
 

Related Legislation 
 

 Protected Disclosure Act 2012; 

 Integrity and Accountability Legislation Amendment (A stronger system) Bill 2015; 

 
Definitions 
 
Protected Disclosure A protected disclosure is a complaint of improper conduct by a public 

officer or a public body. YPRL is a public body for the purposes of the 
Act and a public officer can be a YPRL employee (including 
temporary/contract employees) or Board member. 

Principle Officer YPRL CEO 

Protected Disclosure 
Coordinator 

Coordinates the receipt and recording of disclosures and IBAC 
responses, as well as considering discloser welfare management. The 
Executive Manager Corporate Service undertakes this role at YPRL. 

Improper Conduct Corrupt conduct or specified conduct as defined in the Act. 

Corrupt Conduct Conduct, or an attempt or conspiracy to engage in conduct that: 

 Adversely affects the honest performance of the functions of a 
public officer or public body; 

 Constitutes or involves the dishonest performance of the functions 
of the public officer or public body; 

 Constitutes or involves knowingly or recklessly breaching public 
trust; 
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Policy  
 
Yarra Plenty Regional Library (YPRL) is committed to the aims and objectives of the Act. YPRL does 
not tolerate improper conduct, corrupt conduct, or misconduct by employees, officers, contractors, 
or Board members, nor the taking of reprisals against those who come forward to disclose such 
conduct. 
 
YPRL recognises the value of transparency and accountability in administrative and management 
practices and supports the making of disclosures that reveal corrupt conduct, misconduct in public 
officer involving a substantial mismanagement of public resources, misusing information or conduct 
involving a substantial risk to public health and safety, or the environment. 
 
In accordance with the Act, the CEO will notify IBAC, as soon as practicable, if there is reasonable 
suspicion that corrupt conduct may have occurred or may be occurring. 
 
If the reasonable suspicion relates to the CEO, the Chair of the YPRL Board will notify IBAC. 
 
Disclosure may also be made directly to IBAC under any circumstances. 
 
YPRL will: 
 

 Assign, to a suitable senior and trusted position, the function of Protected Disclosure 
Coordinator; 

 Take all reasonable steps to protect people who make such disclosures from any detrimental 
action in reprisal for making the disclosure; 

 Afford natural justice to the person who is the subject of the disclosure; 

 Provide procedures that support this policy. 
 

Responsibilities 

The CEO is responsible for: 

Notifying IBAC, as soon as practicable, if there is a reasonable suspicion that corrupt conduct may 
have occurred or be occurring. 
 
The Chair of the YPRL Board is responsible for: 

 Involves the misuse of information or material acquired in the 
course of the performance of a public officer or public body; 

 Adversely affects the effective performance of the functions of a 
public officer or public body that results in a person obtaining a 
specified benefit. 

Specified Conduct Involves substantial: 

 Mismanagement of public resources; or 

 Risk to public health or safety or the environment; or 

 Corruption. 
The specified conduct must be criminal in nature or a matter, on 
reasonable grounds, for which an Officer could be dismissed. 
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Notifying IBAC, as soon as practicable, if there is reasonable suspicion that corrupt conduct may 
have occurred or may be occurring which involves the CEO. 
 
The Protected Disclosure Coordinator is responsible for: 

 Responding to protected disclosure enquiries; 

 ensuring the welfare of any internally employed discloser; and 

 ensuring highly secure and confidential recording and storage of any related information. 
 
All employees are responsible for: 
 

 Reporting known or suspected incidences of improper conduct; 

 Supporting those who have made a legitimate disclosure; 

 Refraining from any activity that is, or could be perceived to be, victimisation or harassment of a 
person who makes a disclosure; 

 Protecting and maintaining the confidentiality of a person they know or suspect to have made a 
disclosure. 

 
Breach of Policy 
 
All employees are required to comply with this policy. If an employee breaches this policy they may 
be subject to disciplinary action. In serious cases this may include termination of employment. 
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Procedure Name Protected Disclosure Procedure  

Version number 3.0 

Procedure date August 2019 

Date to be reviewed August 2021 

Responsibility Executive Manager Corporate Services 

Related Policies and Procedures 
Protected Disclosure Policy 
Employee Code of Conduct 

 

Purpose 
 

Yarra Plenty Regional Library (YPRL) is required to establish and publish procedures under the 
Protected Disclosure Act 2012. This procedure establishes YPRL’s protected disclosure procedures 
for the public and YPRL employees.  
 

Scope                                                          
 

This procedure applies to all YPRL employees and to members of the public seeking to make a 
protected disclosure. 
 

Related Legislation 
 

 Protected Disclosure Act 2012; 

 Integrity and Accountability Legislation Amendment (A stronger system) Bill 2015; 
 

Definitions 
 

For the purposes of this procedure only, the following definitions shall mean: 

 
Act Protected Disclosure Act 2012 

Corrupt Conduct Conduct, or an attempt or conspiracy to engage in conduct that: 

 Adversely affects the honest performance of the functions of a 
public officer or public body; 

 Constitutes or involves the dishonest performance of the functions 
of the public officer or public body; 

 Constitutes or involves knowingly or recklessly breaching public 
trust; 

 Involves the misuse of information or material acquired in the 
course of the performance of a public officer or public body; 

 Adversely affects the effective performance of the functions of a 
public officer or public body that results in a person obtaining a 
specified benefit. 

Examples of Corrupt Conduct: A YPRL employee takes a bribe or 
receives a payment other than their wages in exchange for discharging 
their public duty, favours unmeritorious employment applications from 
friends and family, or sells confidential information. 
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Procedure 
 

The three main purposes of the Protected Disclosure Act 2012 are: 
1. To encourage and assist people to make a disclosure of improper conduct and detrimental 

action by public officers and public bodies; 
2. To provide certain protections to people who make a disclosure, or those who suffer 

detrimental action in reprisal for a disclosure; 
3. To ensure that certain information about a disclosure is kept confidential – the identity of 

the person making the disclosure and the content of the disclosure. 
 

Disclosures can be made direct to the Independent Broad-based Anti-corruption Commission (IBAC): 
 

Address: IBAC, GPO Box 24234, Melbourne, Victoria, 3001 
Website: www.ibac.vic.gov.au  
Phone: 1300 735 135 
 

The remainder of this procedure relates only to disclosures made directly to YPRL. 

Detrimental Action The Act makes it an offence for a person to take detrimental action 
against a person in reprisal for a protected disclosure. Detrimental 
action includes: 

 Action causing injury, loss or damage; 

 Intimidation or harassment; 

 Discrimination, disadvantage or adverse treatment in relation to a 
person’s employment, career, profession, trade or business, 
including the taking of disciplinary action (unless the substantive 
basis can be demonstrated as not in reprisal, and there are good 
and sufficient grounds that would fully justify action against any 
other person in the same circumstances). 

Examples of detrimental action: refusing a deserved promotion to a 
person who makes a disclosure, demoting or transferring a person due 
to the making of a disclosure. 

Improper Conduct Corrupt conduct or specified conduct as defined in the Act. 

Principle Officer YPRL CEO 

Protected Disclosure A protected disclosure is a complaint of improper conduct by a public 
officer or a public body. YPRL is a public body for the purposes of the 
Act and a public officer can be a YPRL employee (including 
temporary/contract employees) or Board member. 

Protected Disclosure 
Coordinator 

Coordinates the receipt and recording of disclosures and IBAC 
responses, as well as considering discloser welfare management. The 
Executive Manager Corporate Service, telephone 9088 3422 or email 
kkarrasch@yprl.vic.gov.au,  undertakes this role at YPRL. 

Specified Conduct Involves substantial: 

 Mismanagement of public resources; or 

 Risk to public health or safety or the environment; or 

 Corruption. 
The specified conduct must be criminal in nature or a matter, on 
reasonable grounds, for which an Officer could be dismissed.  
Examples of specified conduct: A YPRL employee misappropriates 
revenue for their own private expenditure, uses a YPRL credit card for 
their own private purposes, steals books from the YPRL collection. 

http://www.ibac.vic.gov.au/
mailto:kkarrasch@yprl.vic.gov.au
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Protected Disclosure Reporting Process 
 

Flowchart 1: Protected Disclosure Reporting Process 
 

 
 
If the disclosure is about the Protected Disclosure Coordinator, report directly to the Principle 
Officer. 
 

If the disclosure is about the Principle Officer, report directly to the Protected Disclosure Coordinator 
or Chair of the YPRL Board. 
 

If the disclosure is about a YPRL Board member, it must be made to IBAC. If a disclosure concerning a 
YPRL Board member is made to YPRL, the discloser will be advised of the correct body to which the 
disclosure should be directed. 
 

Assessing whether the disclosure has been made in accordance with the Act 
 
A protected disclosure must be made by a natural person (that is, an individual person rather than a 
corporation). 
 

Where a disclosure by a natural person has been received by the Protected Disclosure Coordinator 
they will assess whether the disclosure has been made in accordance with the Act and is, therefore a 
protected disclosure using Flowchart 2 below. 
 

Careful consideration will also be given to understanding the discloser’s connection to the alleged 
conduct, how they came to know about the conduct, how detailed the information is that that been 
provided to enable consideration of whether there is improper conduct or detrimental action, and 
the reliability of the information. 
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Flowchart 2: Is it a protected disclosure? 

 

 

Confidentiality and Records Management 
 

YPRL will take all reasonable steps to protect the identity of the discloser and the content of the 
disclosure. The Act requires any person who receives information as part of handling or investigating 
a protected disclosure, not to disclose that information except in certain circumstances. The 
circumstances in which a person may disclose information about a protected disclosure include: 
 

 In accordance with a direction or authorisation given by the entity (i.e., IBAC) investigating 
the disclosure; 

 The discloser has given their consent, in writing, to the disclosure of their identity; 

 When publishing statistics in the annual report of a public body. 
 

The Act prohibits the inclusion of particulars in any report or recommendations that are likely to lead 
to the identification of the discloser. The Act also prohibits the identification of the person who is 
subject to the disclosure in any particulars included in an annual report. 
 

YPRL will ensure all files, whether paper or electronic, are kept in a secure location and can be 
accessed only by the Protected Disclosure Coordinator and Principle Officer. All printed material will 
be kept in files that are clearly marked: 
 

“Protected Disclosure Act matter. 

No 

Yes 

or 

No 

Yes 

No 
Yes 

Is the disclosure about 
YPRL? 

Is it detrimental action 
in reprisal? 

May be appropriately referred to 
internal discipline process 

Is it improper conduct? 

Is it either criminal 
conduct or serious 

enough to result in a 
person's dismissal? 

May be a protected disclosure. 

Notify. 

Advise discloser of need to 
report to entity or IBAC directly 
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Warning: Criminal penalties apply to any unauthorised accessing or divulging of information 
concerning a protected disclosure.” 

 
All electronic files will utilise the highest level of security available including password protection for 
all documents. All materials relevant to an investigation, such as interview records, will also be 
stored securely with the discloser files. 
 

Register and Reporting 
 
The Protected Disclosure Coordinator will establish a secure register to record the information 
required to be published in the annual report, and to generally keep account of the status of 
disclosures. The register will be confidential and will not record any information that may identify a 
discloser. 
 
The register will contain: 
 

 The number and types of disclosures made during the year; 

 The number of disclosures referred to IBAC for determination; 

 The number and types of disclosed matters referred to IBAC for investigation. 
 
The Executive Manager Public Participation will ensure that YPRL’s annual report includes 
information about how to access YPRL’s Protected Disclosure Procedures and the number of 
disclosures notified to IBAC under the Act during the financial year. 
 

Managing the welfare of the discloser 
 
Commitment to protecting disclosers 
 
YPRL is committed to the protection of disclosers against detrimental action taken in reprisal for the 
making of protected disclosures. The Protected Disclosure Coordinator will determine whether the 
discloser is at risk of detrimental action, and take all reasonable steps to ensure such detrimental 
action does not occur including: 
 

 Examining the immediate welfare and protection needs of a discloser and taking proactive 
steps to ensure personal and professional support is available within the workplace; 

 Advising the discloser of the legislative and administrative protections available to them; 

 Listening and responding to any concerns of harassment, intimidation or victimisation in 
reprisal for making a disclosure; 

 Keeping record of all aspects of the case management of the discloser including all contact 
and follow-up action; and 

 Ensuring the expectations of the discloser are realistic. 
 
Occurrence of detrimental action 

If a discloser reports an incident of harassment, discrimination or adverse treatment that would 
amount to determinantal action taken in reprisal for the making of the disclosure, the Protected 
Disclosure Coordinator will: 
 

 Record details of the incident; 
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 Advise the discloser of their rights under the Act; 

 Advice the Principle Officer of the detrimental action.  
 
The Principle Officer must ensure that all YPRL employees refrain from any activity that is or could be 
perceived to be, victimisation or harassment of a person who makes a disclosure, while upholding 
the protections and confidentiality required. 
 
The taking of detrimental action in reprisal for the making of a disclosure can be an offence against 
the Act as well as grounds for making a further protected disclosure. 
 
Loss of protections caused by actions of the discloser 
 
A discloser is not protected if they commit an offence under the Act, including: 
 

 Providing false or misleading information, or further information that relates to a protected 
disclosure that the person knows to be false or misleading; 

 Claiming that a matter is the subject of a protected disclosure knowing the claim to be false; 

 Falsely claiming that a matter is the subject of a disclosure that IBAC has determined to be a 
protected disclosure complaint. 

 
A discloser is not protected against legitimate management action being taken by the Corporation in 
accordance with the Act. 
 
The discloser will still be held liable for their own conduct that they disclose as part of making a 
protected disclosure. 
 

Responsibilities 

The CEO is responsible for: 

 As Principle Officer the CEO must notify IBAC, as soon as practicable, if there is a reasonable 
suspicion that corrupt conduct may have occurred or be occurring. 

 
The Chair of the YPRL Board is responsible for: 

 Notifying IBAC, as soon as practicable, if there is reasonable suspicion that corrupt conduct may 
have occurred or may be occurring which involves the CEO. 

 

The Protected Disclosure Coordinator is responsible for: 
 

 Receiving disclosures and making assessments as to whether notification to IBAC is required, and 
ensuring all disclosers are aware of their ability to submit to IBAC directly; 

 Notifying disclosers of YPRL’s decision regarding IBAC notification; 

 Regardless of whether the disclosure is notified to IBAC, ensuring that the protections set out in 
the Act are afforded to the discloser; 

 Establishing and managing a confidential protected disclosure records management system; 

 Collating non-identifying statistics on disclosures made; 

 Taking all necessary steps to ensure the identity of the discloser, the identity of the person who 
is the subject of the disclosure and the nature of the matter, are kept confidential; and 

 Liaising with IBAC as required. 
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The Executive Manager Public Participation is responsible for: 
 

 Publishing non-identifying statistics on disclosures made in the annual report. 
 

All employees are responsible for: 
 

 Complying with this procedure should the Act and YPRL Policy require them to make a protected 
disclosure or participate in an investigation arising from a protected disclosure; 

 Reporting known or suspected incidences of improper conduct or detrimental action; 

 Supporting those who have made a legitimate disclosure; 

 Refraining from any activity that is, or could be perceived to be, victimisation or harassment of a 
person who makes a disclosure; 

 Protecting and maintaining the confidentiality of a person they know or suspect to have made a 
disclosure. 

 

Breach of Procedure 
 
All employees are required to comply with this procedure. If an employee breaches this procedure 
they may be subject to disciplinary action. In serious cases this may include termination of 
employment. 
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1. Statement of Support 

Yarra Plenty Regional Library (the Library) is committed to the aims and objectives of 
the Protected Disclosure Act 2012 (the Act).  It does not tolerate improper conduct by 
its employees, officers or members, nor the taking of reprisals against those who come 
forward to disclose such conduct.  The Library recognises the value of transparency 
and accountability in its administrative and management practices, and supports the 
making of disclosures that reveal corrupt conduct, conduct involving a substantial 
mismanagement of public resources, or conduct involving a substantial risk to public 
health and safety or the environment. 
 
The Library will take all reasonable steps to protect people who make such disclosures 
from any detrimental action in reprisal for making the disclosure.  It will also afford 
natural justice to the person who is the subject of the disclosure. 

2. Purpose of These Procedures 

These procedures establish a system for reporting disclosures of improper conduct or 
detrimental action by the Library or its members, officers or employees.  The system 
enables such disclosures to be made to the Protected Disclosure Coordinator or to one 
of the nominated Protected Disclosure Officers.  Disclosures may be made by 
employees or by members of the public. 
 
These procedures are designed to complement normal communication channels 
between supervisors and employees.  Employees are encouraged to continue to raise 
appropriate matters at any time with their supervisors.  As an alternative, employees 
may make a disclosure of improper conduct or detrimental action under the Act in 
accordance with these procedures. 

3. Objectives  of the Act 

The Act commenced operation on 10 February 2012.  The purpose of the Act is to 
encourage and facilitate disclosures of improper conduct by public officers and public 
bodies.  The Act provides protection to persons who make disclosures in accordance 
with the Act (disclosers), and establishes a system for the matters disclosed to be 
assessed and, if they constitute protected disclosure complaints, investigated.  The 
Library might also, depending on the outcome of an investigation, be required to take 
rectifying action. 

4. Definitions of Key Terms 

Three key concepts in the reporting system are improper conduct, corrupt conduct and 
detrimental action.  Definitions of these terms are set out below. 
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4.1 Improper conduct 

A disclosure may be made about improper conduct by a public body or public official. 
Improper conduct is defined by section 4 of the Act as follows: 

(1) For the purposes of this Act, improper conduct means –  

(a) corrupt conduct; or 

(b) conduct specified in subsection (2) that is not corrupt 
conduct but that, if proved, would constitute –  

(i) a criminal offence; or 

(ii) reasonable grounds for dismissing or dispensing 
with, or otherwise terminating the services of the 
officer who was, or is, engaged in that conduct. 

(2) For the purposes of subsection (1) (b), specified conduct is 
conduct –  

(a) of any person that adversely affects the honest 
performance by a public officer or public body of his or 
her or its functions as a public officer or public body; or 

(b) of a public officer or public body that constitutes or 
involves the dishonest performance of his or her or its 
functions as a public officer or public body; or 

(c) of a public officer or public body that constitutes or 
involves knowingly or recklessly breaching the public 
trust; or 

(d) of a public officer or public body that involves the 
misuse of information or material acquired in the course 
of the performance of his or her or its functions as a 
public officer or public body, whether or not for the 
benefit of the public officer or public body or any other 
person; or 

(e) that could constitute conspiracy or an attempt to 
engage in any conduct referred to in paragraph (a), (b), 
(c) or (d); or 

(f) of a public or public body in his or her capacity as a 
public officer or its capacity as a public body that –  

(i) involves substantial mismanagement of public 
resources; or 
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(ii) involves substantial risk to health or safety;  or 

(iii) involves substantial risk to the environment. 
 
The conduct must be serious enough to constitute, if proved, a criminal offence or 
reasonable grounds for dismissal.  
 

Examples  

A Library officer misappropriates Library revenue for their own private 
expenditure.  

A Library officer uses a YPRL credit card for their own private 
purposes. 

A Library officer steals books from the Library’s collection and uses 
them for their own private purposes. 

4.2 Corrupt conduct 

Corrupt conduct is defined by section 4 of the Independent Broad-based Anti-
corruption Commission Act 2011 (and is adopted by section 3 of the Act) as follows: 

(1) For the purposes of this Act, corrupt conduct means conduct –  

(a) of any person that adversely affects the honest 
performance by a public officer or public body of his or 
her or its functions as a public officer or public body; 

(b) of a public officer or public body that constitutes or 
involves the dishonest performance of his or her or its 
functions as a public officer or public body; 

(c) of a public officer or public body that constitutes or 
involves knowingly or recklessly breaching public trust; 

(d) of a public officer or a public body that involves the 
misuse of information or material acquired in the course 
of the performance of his or her or its functions as a 
public officer or public body, whether or not for the 
benefit of the public officer or public body or any other 
person; 

(e) that could constitute a conspiracy an attempt to engage 
in any conduct referred to in paragraph (a), (b), (c) or 
(d)-  

being conduct that would, if the facts were found proved 
beyond a reasonable doubt at a trial, constitute a relevant 
offence. 
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(2) Conduct may be corrupt conduct for the purposes of this Act if:  

(a) all or any part of the conduct occurs outside Victoria, 
including outside Australia; and 

(b) the conduct would be corrupt conduct if it occurred in 
Victoria. 

 
The conduct must be serious enough to constitute, if proved, a criminal offence, being 
an indictable offence, an attempt to pervert the course of justice, bribery of a public 
official or perverting the course of justice. 
 

Examples 

A Library employee takes a bribe or receives a payment other than 
his or her wages or salary (in the case of employees) in exchange for 
the discharge of a public duty. 

A Library employee favours unmeritorious applications for jobs by 
friends and relatives. 

A Library employee sells confidential information. 

4.3 Detrimental action 

The Act makes it an offence for a person to take detrimental action against a person in 
reprisal for making a protected disclosure.  Detrimental action is defined by section 3 
of the Act as including: 

(a) action causing injury, loss or damage; 

(b) intimidation or harassment; 

(c) discrimination, disadvantage or adverse treatment in relation 
to a person's employment, career, profession, trade or 
business, including the taking of disciplinary action. 

 

Examples 

The Library refuses a deserved promotion of a person who makes a 
disclosure. 

The Library demotes, transfers, isolates in the workplace or changes 
the duties of a person due to the making of a disclosure. 

A person threatens, abuses or carries out other forms of harassment 
directly or indirectly, against a person who makes a disclosure or his 
or her family, friends or associates.  

The Library discriminates against a person who makes a disclosure 
or his or her family, friends or associates in subsequent applications 
for jobs or tenders. 

 



Yarra Plenty Regional Library 
Protected Disclosure Act Procedures 

August 2018 - 7 - 

5. The Reporting System 

5.1 Contact persons within the Library  

Disclosures of improper conduct or detrimental action by the Library or its members, 
officers or employees, may be made to the following officers: 
 

 The Protected Disclosure Coordinator 
Manager People & Culture -  9088 3422 

 

 The Protected Disclosure Officer 
HR Coordinator -  9088 3423  

 
All correspondence, phone calls and emails from persons making a disclosure to 
someone other than the Protected Disclosure Coordinator or the Protected Disclosure 
Officer will be referred, at first instance, to the Protected Disclosure Coordinator. 
 
Where a person is contemplating making a disclosure and is concerned about 
approaching the Protected Disclosure Coordinator or the Protected Disclosure Officer 
in the workplace, he or she can call the relevant officer and request a meeting in a 
discreet location away from the workplace. 

5.2 Alternative contact persons 

A disclosure about improper conduct or detrimental action by the Library or its 
members, officers or employees, may also be made directly to the Independent Broad-
based Anti-corruption Commission (IBAC): 
 

Address: Level 1, North Tower, 459 Collins Street 
Melbourne, Victoria 3001 
 
GPO Box 24234 
Melbourne, Victoria 3000 

 
Phone:  1300 735 135 
Fax: (03) 8635 6444 
Internet:  www.ibac.vic.gov.au 

 
or to the Ombudsman: 
 

Address: Level 2, 570 Bourke Street 
Melbourne, Victoria 3001 

 
Phone:  (03) 9613 6222 
Email: ombudvic@ombudsman.vic.gov.au 
Internet:  www.ombudsmanvic.vic.gov.au 
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The following table sets out where disclosures about persons other than employees of 
the Library should be made. 
 

Person who is the subject of the 
disclosure 

Person/body to whom the disclosure must be 
made 

Member, officer or employee of 
Council 

The Council or the IBAC 

Councillor The IBAC or the Ombudsman 

Member of Parliament  
(Legislative Assembly) 

Speaker of the Legislative Assembly 

Member of Parliament  
(Legislative Council) 

President of the Legislative Council 

Ombudsman Officer The IBAC or the Victorian Inspectorate 

The IBAC or an IBAC Officer The Victorian Inspectorate 

Chief Commissioner of Police The IBAC 

Member of the police force A member of police personnel with a rank of 
sergeant or above or the IBAC 

 

6. Roles and Responsibilities 

6.1 Employees 

Employees are encouraged to report known or suspected incidences of improper 
conduct or detrimental action in accordance with these procedures.  All the Library 
employees have an important role to play in supporting those who have made a 
legitimate disclosure.  They must refrain from any activity that is, or could be perceived 
to be, victimisation or harassment of a person who makes a disclosure.  Furthermore, 
they should protect and maintain the confidentiality of a person they know or suspect 
to have made a disclosure. 

6.2 Protected Disclosure Officer 

The Protected Disclosure Officer will: 
 

 Be a contact point for general advice about the operation of the Act for any 
person wishing to make a disclosure about improper conduct or detrimental 
action 
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 Receive any disclosure directed to the Protected Disclosure Officer made orally 
or in writing (including by telephone, email and letter) from members of the 
public or employees seeking to make a disclosure 

 

  Commit to writing any disclosure made orally 
 

 Make arrangements for a disclosure to be made privately and discreetly and, if 
necessary, away from the workplace 
 

 Impartially assess the allegation and form a view as to whether it is a disclosure  
made in accordance with Part 2 of the Act (i.e. a protected disclosure) 

 

 Take all necessary steps to ensure the identity of the person making the 
disclosure and the identity of the person who is the subject of the disclosure 
are kept confidential 

 

 Forward all disclosures, supporting evidence and recommendations to the 
Protected Disclosure Coordinator for assessment and final determination of 
whether the disclosure is a protected disclosure. 

6.3 Protected Disclosure Coordinator 

The Protected Disclosure Coordinator has a central clearinghouse role in the internal 
reporting system.  He or she will: 
 

 Receive all disclosures forwarded from the Protected Disclosure Officer for 
assessment and final determination of whether the disclosure is a protected 
disclosure 

 

 Receive any disclosure directed to the Protected Disclosure Coordinator made 
orally or in writing (including by telephone, email and letter) from members of 
the public or employees seeking to make a disclosure 

 

 Commit to writing any disclosure made orally 
 

 Make arrangements for a disclosure to be made privately and discreetly and, if 
necessary, away from the workplace 

 

 Impartially assess each disclosure to determine whether it is a disclosure made 
in accordance with Part 2 of the Act (i.e. a protected disclosure) 

 

 Within 28 days of receipt, notify a disclosure which the Protected Disclosure 
Coordinator thinks is a protected disclosure to the IBAC for assessment 

 

 Appoint a Welfare Manager to support the discloser and to protect him or her 
from any reprisals 
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 Take all necessary steps to ensure the identity of the person making the 
disclosure and the identity of the person who is the subject of the disclosure 
are kept confidential 

 

 Advise, to the extent possible, the discloser of the progress of an investigation 
into the protected disclosure (it is noted that any investigation will be managed 
by the IBAC, meaning that  the Library may have limited information about its 
progress) 

 

 Establish and manage a confidential filing system 
 

 Collate and publish statistics on disclosures made 
 

 Liaise with the Chief Executive Officer of the public body. 

6.4 Welfare Manager 

The Welfare Manager is responsible for looking after the general welfare of the 
discloser.  The Welfare Manager will: 
 

 Examine the immediate welfare and protection needs of a discloser and seek to 
foster a supportive work environment 

 

 Advise the discloser of the legislative and administrative protections available 
to him or her 

 

 Listen and respond to any concerns of harassment, intimidation or victimisation 
in reprisal for making disclosure 

 

 Ensure the confidentiality of the identity of the discloser and the content of the 
disclosure in accordance with the Act 

 

 Ensure the expectations of the discloser are realistic.  
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7. Confidentiality 

The Library will take all reasonable steps, in accordance with sections 52 and 53 of the 
Act, to protect and keep confidential the content of the disclosure and the identity of 
the person making it.  Maintaining confidentiality is crucial in ensuring that reprisals 
are not made against a discloser.  
 
The Act prohibits any person who receives information via a protected disclosure from 
disclosing the content, or information about the content, of that disclosure, or the 
identity of the person making it, except in certain limited circumstances.  Disclosure of 
information in breach of section 52 or 53 constitutes an offence that is punishable by a 
maximum fine of 120 penalty units ($18,200.00) or imprisonment for 12 months or 
both for a natural person and 600 penalty units ($91,000.00) for a body corporate. 
 
The circumstances in which a person may disclose information obtained about a 
protected disclosure include circumstances where: 
 

 The discloser has given their consent, in writing, to the disclosure of their 
identity; 

 

 The IBAC has determined that an assessable disclosure is not a protected 
disclosure (then the confidentiality provisions cease to apply) 

 

 It is necessary for the purpose of the exercise of  the Library’s functions under 
the Act 

 

 It is necessary for the purpose of obtaining legal advice  
 

 It is necessary to use an interpreter for persons who require such assistance 

 The information is disclosed to a parent or guardian of a person who is under 

18 years of age 

 The information is disclosed to an independent person for the purpose of 

enabling a person who is suffering a disability to understand an obligation 

under the Act. 

While the Library is required to include certain information about protected 
disclosures in its Annual Report, the Act prohibits the inclusion of particulars in any 
report or recommendation that are likely to lead to the identification of the discloser 
or the person who is the subject of the disclosure. 
 
The Library will ensure all files, whether paper or electronic, are kept in a secure room 
and can only be accessed by the Protected Disclosure Coordinator, Protected 
Disclosure Officer or the Welfare Manager (in relation to welfare matters).  The 
Welfare Manager will be given access only to those files which relate to the discloser in 
respect of whom, and the disclosure in respect of which, they have been appointed.  
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All printed material will be kept in files that are clearly marked as a Protected 
Disclosure Act matter, and warn of the criminal penalties that apply to any 
unauthorised divulging of information concerning a protected disclosure.  All electronic 
files will be produced and stored on a stand-alone computer and be given password 
protection.  Backup files will be kept on floppy disc or USB which will be kept by the 
Protected Disclosure Coordinator in a secure place.  All other types of materials 
relevant to protected disclosure, such as tapes from interviews, will also be stored 
securely with the disclosure files. 
 
The Library will not email documents relevant to a protected disclosure matter and will 
ensure all phone calls and meetings are conducted in private. 
 

8. Collating and Publishing Statistics 

Section 70 of the Act requires the Library to include in its Annual Report, the number 
of disclosures (i.e. protected disclosures) notified to the IBAC during the preceding 
financial year. 
 
For this purpose, the Protected Disclosure Coordinator will establish a secure register 
to record that information, and to generally keep account of the status of disclosures 
made to the Library.  The register will be confidential and will not record any 
information that may identify the discloser. 
 
The register will contain the following information: 
 

 The number and types of disclosures made to the Library during the year 
 

 The number of disclosures assessed by the Library to be protected disclosures 
and notified to the IBAC during the year 

 

 The number and types of disclosures assessed by the Library not to be 
protected disclosures 

 

 The numbers and types of protected disclosures investigated, referred or 
dismissed by the IBAC (to the extent that the Library has access to that 
information) 

 

 Any recommendations made by the IBAC or the Ombudsman that relate to the 
Library. 
 

9. Receiving and Assessing Disclosures 

Where a disclosure has been received by the Protected Disclosure Officer or the 
Protected Disclosure Coordinator, he or she will assess whether the disclosure has 
been made in accordance with Part 2 of the Act and is, therefore, a protected 
disclosure. 



Yarra Plenty Regional Library 
Protected Disclosure Act Procedures 

August 2018 - 13 - 

9.1 Has the disclosure been made to the appropriate person? 

For the Library to treat the disclosure as a disclosure made under the Act, it must 
concern an employee, member or officer of Yarra Plenty Regional Library.  A disclosure 
can be made: 
 

 To the Chief Executive Officer 
 

 To the Library’s Protected Disclosure Coordinator or Protected Disclosure 
Officer 

 

 If the person making the disclosure is an employee or officer of the Library, to 
an employee who directly or indirectly supervises or manages that person 

 

 If the disclosure relates to an employee or officer of the Library, to an 
employee who directly or indirectly supervises or manages that person. 

 
If the disclosure concerns a member, officer or employee of another public body, the 
Library will endeavour to advise the person who has made the disclosure of the correct 
person or body to whom the disclosure should be directed (see the table in paragraph 
5.2 above).  If the disclosure has been made anonymously, it should be referred to the 
IBAC. 
 
If a disclosure concerns a YPRL Board Member, it must be made to the IBAC or the 
Ombudsman.  If a disclosure concerning a Board Member is made to the Library, the 
discloser will be advised of the correct person to whom, or body to which, the 
disclosure should be directed. 

9.2 Does the disclosure contain the essential elements of a protected disclosure? 

To be a protected disclosure, a disclosure must satisfy the following criteria: 
 

 Did a natural person (that is, an individual person rather than a corporation) 
make the disclosure? 

 

 Does the disclosure relate to conduct of a member, officer or employee of the 
Library acting in their official capacity? 

 

 Is the alleged conduct either improper conduct or detrimental action taken 
against a person in reprisal for making a protected disclosure? 

 

 Does the person making the disclosure have reasonable grounds for believing 
that the alleged conduct has occurred? 

 
Where a disclosure is received by the Protected Disclosure Officer, the Protected 
Disclosure Officer will make an initial assessment about whether it is a protected 
disclosure.  The Protected Disclosure Coordinator will determine whether the 
disclosure is a protected disclosure. 
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Where the Protected Disclosure Coordinator determines that a disclosure is a 
protected disclosure, he or she will notify the protected disclosure to the IBAC.  That 
notification must be made within 28 days of receiving the disclosure and the person 
making the disclosure must also be notified of it. 
 
Where a disclosure is assessed not to be a protected disclosure, the Library must notify 
the person making the disclosure of that decision and the matter does not need to be 
dealt with under the Act.  The Protected Disclosure Officer will decide how the matter 
should be responded to in consultation with the Protected Disclosure Coordinator, and 
the person making the disclosure will be advised of alternative complaint mechanisms 
available for addressing the allegations comprising the original disclosure. 
 
In reaching a conclusion as to whether a disclosure is a protected disclosure, the 
Protected Disclosure Coordinator will consider whether the disclosure would, if proved 
true, show, or tend to show, that the member, officer or employee of Council to 
whom the disclosure relates: 
 

 Has engaged, is engaging or proposes to engage in improper conduct in his or 
her capacity as a member, officer or employee of the Library;  or 

 

 Has taken, is taking, or proposes to take detrimental action in reprisal for the 
making of the protected disclosure. 

 
Where the Protected Disclosure Coordinator concludes that the disclosure amounts to 
a protected disclosure, he or she will: 
 

 Notify the person who made the disclosure of that conclusion; and 
 

 Notify the disclosure to the IBAC for formal determination as to whether it is a 
protected disclosure complaint. 
 

10. Managing the Welfare of the Discloser 

10.1 Commitment to protecting disclosers 

The Library is committed to the protection of persons making genuine disclosures 
against detrimental action taken in reprisal for the making of protected disclosures.  
The Protected Disclosure Coordinator is responsible for ensuring disclosers are 
protected from direct and indirect detrimental action, and that the culture of the 
workplace is supportive of protected disclosures being made. 
 
The Protected Disclosure Coordinator will appoint a Welfare Manager to all persons 
who have made a protected disclosure.  The Welfare Manager will undertake the 
responsibilities set out in paragraph 6.4 above in respect of a discloser to whom they 
are appointed.  
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All employees will be advised that it is an offence for a person to take detrimental 
action in reprisal for a protected disclosure.  The maximum penalty is a fine of 240 
penalty units (currently $36,400.00) or two years imprisonment or both.  The taking of 
detrimental action in breach of this provision can also be grounds for making a 
disclosure under the Act and can result in an investigation. 
 
The Welfare Manager must not divulge any details relating to the disclosed matter to 
any person other than the Protected Disclosure Coordinator (or the Protected 
Disclosure Officer, as the case may be).  All meetings between the Welfare Manager 
and the discloser must be conducted discreetly to protect the confidentiality of the 
disclosure and the discloser. 
 
Other statutory protections (contained in the Act) applicable to a person who makes a 

protected disclosure include: 

 

 Immunity from civil and criminal liability and disciplinary action for the making 
of the disclosure (section 39) 

 

 Immunity from liability for breaching a confidentiality provision (section 40) 
 

 Protection from actions in defamation (section 41) 
 

 Provision of a statutory right to sue for damages for reprisals made (section 45) 
 

 Provision of a statutory right to apply for reinstatement where detrimental 
action involves termination or variation of employment (section 46); and 

 

 Provision of a statutory right to apply to the Supreme Court for an injunction or 
order requiring detrimental action to be remedied (section 49). 

10.2 Keeping the discloser informed 

The Protected Disclosure Coordinator will ensure the discloser is kept informed of 
action taken in relation to his or her disclosure, and the time frames that apply.  To the 
extent possible, the discloser will be informed of the conduct of an investigation (if 
any), the findings of an investigation, and the steps taken by the Library to address any 
improper conduct that has been found to have occurred.  All communication with the 
discloser will be in plain English. 
 

10.3 Occurrence of detrimental action 

If a discloser reports an incident of harassment, discrimination or adverse treatment 
that would amount to detrimental action taken in reprisal for the making of the 
disclosure, the Welfare Manager will: 
 

 Record details of the incident 
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 Advise the discloser of his or her rights under the Act 
 

 Advise the Protected Disclosure Coordinator of the detrimental action. 
 
The taking of detrimental action in reprisal for the making of a disclosure can be an 
offence against the Act as well as grounds for making a further disclosure.  Where such 
detrimental action is reported, the Protected Disclosure Coordinator will assess the 
report as a new disclosure under the Act.  Where the Protected Disclosure Coordinator 
is satisfied that the disclosure is a protected disclosure, he or she will notify it to the 
IBAC for assessment and, if the IBAC sees fit, action. 

10.4 Disclosers implicated in improper conduct 

Where a person who makes a disclosure is implicated in misconduct, the Library will 
handle the disclosure and protect the discloser from reprisals in accordance with the 
Act and these procedures.  The Library acknowledges that the act of making a 
disclosure should not shield the person making the disclosure from the reasonable 
consequences flowing from any involvement in improper conduct. 
 
Section 42 of the Act specifically provides that a person's liability for his or her own 
conduct is not affected by their disclosure of that conduct under the Act.  However, in 
some circumstances, an admission may be a mitigating factor when considering 
disciplinary or other action. 
 
The Chief Executive Officer will make the final decision, on the advice of the Protected 
Disclosure Coordinator, as to whether disciplinary or other action will be taken against 
a person making a disclosure.  Where disciplinary or other action relates to conduct 
that is the subject of the relevant disclosure, the disciplinary or other action will only 
be taken after the disclosed matter has been appropriately dealt with. 
 
In all cases where disciplinary or other action is being contemplated, the Chief 
Executive Officer must be satisfied that it has been clearly demonstrated that: 
 

 The intention to proceed with disciplinary action is not causally connected to 
the making of the disclosure (as opposed to the content of the disclosure or 
other available information) 

 

 There are good and sufficient grounds that would fully justify action against any 
other person (i.e. not making the disclosure) in the same circumstances 

 

 There are good and sufficient grounds that justify exercising any discretion to 
institute disciplinary or other action. 

 
The Protected Disclosure Coordinator will thoroughly document the process, including 
recording the reasons why the disciplinary or other action is being taken, and the 
reasons why the action is not in retribution for the making of the disclosure.  The 
Protected Disclosure Coordinator will clearly advise the discloser of the proposed 
action to be taken, and of any mitigating factors that have been taken into account. 
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11. Management of the Person Against Whom a Disclosure has been Made 

The Library recognises that employees against whom disclosures are made must also 
be supported during the handling of disclosures.  The Library will take all reasonable 
steps to ensure the confidentiality of the person who is the subject of the disclosure. 
 
The Library will give its full support to a person who is the subject of a disclosure 
where the allegations contained in a disclosure are clearly wrong or unsubstantiated.  
If the matter has been publicly disclosed, the Chief Executive Officer will consider any 
request by that person to issue a statement of support setting out that the allegations 
were clearly wrong or unsubstantiated. 
 

12. Criminal Offences 

The Library will ensure that officers appointed to handle protected disclosures and all 
other employees are aware of the following offences created by the Act: 

12.1 It is an offence for a person to take detrimental action against a person in 
reprisal for a protected disclosure being made.  The Act provides a maximum 
penalty of a fine of 240 penalty units ($36,400.00) or two years imprisonment 
or both. 

12.2 It is an offence for a person to disclose information about the content of a 
protected disclosure without legislative authority.  The Act provides a 
maximum penalty of 120 penalty units ($18,200.00) or six months 
imprisonment or both for a natural person and 600 penalty units ($91,000.00) 
for a body corporate. 

12.3 It is an offence for a person to obstruct IBAC Officers or the Ombudsman in the 
performance of their responsibilities under the Act.  The Act provides a 
maximum penalty of 120 penalty units ($18,200.00) or 12 months 
imprisonment or both. 

12.4 It is an offence for a person to knowingly provide false information under the 
Act with the intention that it be acted on as a disclosed matter.  The Act 
provides a maximum penalty of 120 penalty units ($18,200.00) or 12 months 
imprisonment or both. 

13. Review 

These procedures will be reviewed annually to ensure they meet the objectives of the 
Act and accord with any guidelines published by the IBAC. 
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Agenda Item 5: OHS Report  

Responsible Officer: Chief Executive Officer 

Author: Kate Karrasch, Executive Manager Corporate Services  

  

REPORT 

SUMMARY 

This report provides a summary of incidents for the 1 January to 30 June 2019 period and 

an update on activities undertaken as part of YPRL’s OHS management system.  

REPORT 

YPRL’s OHS management system is made up of the following elements: 
 

 Policies, procedures and planning 

 Incident reporting 

 OHS Committee 

 Employee training 

 WorkCover management 

 

1. Policies, procedures and planning 
 
An OHS Purchasing Procedure was developed and implemented to provide guidance and 

outline OHS requirements at YPRL for purchases, hire, lease or receipt of donated doogs 

that have the potential to create OHS risks. 

The First Aid Procedure was reviewed, and a standard list of first aid kit supplies to be 

included in each first aid kit was added to the procedure.  

An Opening the Library Procedure was developed and implemented to establish consistent, 

safe opening practices across all Branches. 

A systematic review of the OHS Manual procedures continues, and working groups are 

currently reviewing both the Working Alone Procedure and the Risk Assessment Forms. 

The Senior Leadership Team will complete OHS Training for Managers in July 2019. 

2. Incident Reporting 
 
Sixty-eight incident reports were submitted between 1 January to 30 June 2019. This 

included fifty-six incidents, six hazards and six near misses. A summary and comparison of 

incidents by type for the periods 1 July to 31 December 2018 and 1 January to 30 June 2019 

is shown in Table 1, and a breakdown of incident types by location is provided in Table 2. 
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Incident Trends: 
 
The total number of incidents reported decreased to 56 (compared to 96 in the previous 

reporting period), due to a significant decrease in incidents of inappropriate behaviour by 

patrons (18 reports of inappropriate behaviour compared to 43 reported incidents in the 

previous reporting period).  This decrease reflects: 

 improved systems for identifying and responding to inappropriate behaviours via 

the Responsible Conduct Policy and Procedure (including a requirement that 

incident reports specify what aspect of the Responsible Conduct Policy a patron has 

breached),  

 improved procedure and oversight around incident management, 

 training delivered by Managers across YPRL to empower frontline staff to identify 

and respond to inappropriate behaviours in line with the Responsible Conduct 

Policy and Procedures, and 

 the installation of additional CCTV cameras by Whittlesea Council surrounding the 

Lalor library and shopping precinct 

Table 1: Incident Summary and Comparison 

Incident Type 

No. Incidents  
1 July to 31 Dec 

2018 

No. Incidents  
1 January to 30 June 

2019 

Inappropriate Behaviour 43 18 

Burglary/Theft 4 3 

Patron Injury 21 22 

Staff Injury 7 8 

Property/Building Damage 12 5 

Other 9 0 

TOTAL 96 56 

Table 2: Summary of Incident Types by Location (1 January to 30 June 2019) 

Incident 
Location 

Inappropriate 
Behaviour 

Burglary/
Theft 

Patron 
Injury 

Staff Injury 
Property/ 
Building 
Damage 

Other Total No. 

Diamond 
Valley 1 1 2 0 0 0 4 

Eltham 6 1 0 2 1 0 3 

Ivanhoe 2 0 3 1 1 0 7 

Lalor 2 0 0 1 1 0 4 

LSS 3 3 0 1 1 0 8 

Mill Park 0 1 3 0 0 0 4 

Mobile 0 0 1 0 1 0 2 

Rosanna 0 0 4 1 1 0 6 

Thomastown 4 0 3 1 1 0 8 

Watsonia 3 0 6 2 0 0 11 

Whittlesea 1 0 2 0 0 0 3 

Total 22 6 24 9 7 0 68 
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Reported inappropriate behaviours included verbal abuse, disturbing other patrons, 

accessing unauthorised areas of the library, and sexual harassment. As a result of reported 

inappropriate behaviours one patron received a warning and debrief assistance was 

provided to staff.  

Twenty-four patron injuries were reported of which fourteen related to patrons who were 

offered and/or received first aid support from branch staff. In three cases an ambulance 

was called to assist members of the public.  

Nine staff members reported minor injuries and were offered and/or received first aid 

support from other staff. One staff member required minor medical follow-up after falling 

down a number of stairs.   

Six burglary and/or theft incident reports were received including thefts at two Branches, 

and three near misses related to attempted online theft/fraud.  

Seven incident reports related to Property/Building Damage including damage to one entry 

door, a malfunctioning/smoking light switch and a broken heating system. Damaged items 

were cleaned, repaired or removed. 

Six incident reports advised of hazards including two relating to workplace equipment 

(heating system and electronic doors). Police were contacted to report hooning behaviour 

outside the library. All hazards were investigated and resolved. 

3. OHS Committee 
 
There are currently ten (10) appointed Health and Safety Representatives (HSR) across the 

region and the OHS Committee meets bi-monthly.  

TWO HSRs completed their initial HSR training in early 2019, including a new HSR who was 

appointed at Headquarters, and a Branch HSR who was appointed in late 2018. 

During the reporting period the OHS Committee developed a checklist for Branches to use 

for OHS inductions, developed the OHS Purchasing Procedure and reviewed the First Aid 

Procedure. 

4. Employee Training 
 
All employees are required to complete annual OHS training, with current completion rates 

for 2018/19 shown below.  Management action is in progress to ensure all overdue training 

is completed.    
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Topic Completion Due Date Current Completion Rate 

Bullying and Harassment 14 December 2018 100% 

OHS Duty of Care 1 March 2019 98% 

Equal Opportunity 3 May 2019 97% 

Social & Digital Media 29 June 2019 94% 

 
Forty-Four staff completed their bi-annual manual handling refresher training.  

All HSR refresher training remains up to date. Two new HSRs completed their initial HSR 

training in early 2019.   

There are 18 First Aid Officers across the region. First Aid and CPR refresher training will be 

delivered in July 2019.  

5. WorkCover Management 
 
No new claims were received in this period.  

LINKS TO STRATEGIC PLAN 
 
People & Culture 

Goal: Invest in our people and culture because they are at the heart of everything we do 

Strategy: 

 Ensure policies and practices support workplace health, safety and wellbeing 

DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 
 
Under section 80C of the Local Government Act 1989 officers providing advice to the 

Library must disclose any interests, including type of interest. 

The Responsible Officer reviewing this report, having made enquiries with the relevant 

members of staff, reports that no disclosable interests have been raised in relation to this 

report. 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Board resolves to receive the report 

 

 M:  

 S:  
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Agenda Item 6: YPRL Customer Survey 2019 Report  

Responsible Officer: Chief Executive Officer 

Author: Jane Cowell, CEO  

Attachments: NEXUS Victorian Regional Library Corporations Community 
Survey – April 2019 

YPRL Customer Survey Board Presentation 

REPORT 

SUMMARY 

This report provides an overview of the 2019 Customer Survey results and accompanies a 

presentation that gives further detail of customer feedback regarding YPRL services and 

provides a comparison of YPRL with other like services. 

INTRODUCTION 

This 2019 survey is the latest in a series conducted almost annually since 2010.  YPRL has 

joined ten (10) other Victorian library services to undertake this survey to maximise cost 

efficiencies and as a quality assurance activity to enable our services to be compared to 

other like Victorian library services.  In addition to the survey’s intention to track usage of 

public libraries and attitudes towards them it provides a useful vehicle for collecting 

background information to help understand trends, for example, ways in which the library 

assists people’s lifestyle. The survey results are broken down by residents of the regions 

served by the library services involved.   

Core questions on the population’s library usage and their perceptions of public libraries 

have remained relatively fixed over the survey period to enable comparisons and to track 

trends.  In addition, questions are included on importance of library aspects and 

satisfaction with the library’s performance in these areas, to identify each regions’ 

strengths and potential weaknesses. 

REPORT 

The findings and comparisons revealed from the Customer Survey are organised within four 

(4) key areas:  

 Overall Library Behaviour, 

  Public Library Usage,  

 Importance of Library Services,  

 Users’ Satisfaction with Library Services. 

Key findings are summarised below and will be further outlined in the accompanying 

presentation. 
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Overall Library Behaviour:  

When compared with the Total Syndicate, YPRL had a higher percentage of respondents 

visiting/using the library less often than every 2-3 months (42%); with 18% visiting 

fortnightly or more often, 10% visiting monthly and 9% every 2-3 months when compared 

with other library services.  Further, 16% never visit/use the library and 5% were uncertain. 

YPRL also had a lower average of respondents visiting the library with 14.2 times a year 

compared with the average of the other library services being 16.2 times a year.  This 

represents only a physical visit to the library and did not explore the digital / online 

engagement of our library users in this section.  The Library website remains the most 

popular reference point for the community to find out about Library services and events, 

higher than the other Library Services, and local newspapers and social media were also 

valued as high alternative information sources, other than the physical branch libraries 

themselves.   This supports the current Marketing strategy undertaken by YPRL with a 

significant digital engagement focus as well as local press releases where warranted, and 

the continuation of physically published YPRL What’s On magazines available at all 

branches. 

Public Library Usage: 

In YPRL, 45% of residents described themselves as having used a public library in the last 12 

months, a similar percentage to that recorded in 2016 (46%).  Further, 46% had used a 

public library some time but not in last 12 months and 9% had never used a public library. 

Of the estimated 148,000 public library users in the last 12 months in YPRL the age/gender 

profile was 54% female and 46% male.  Younger respondents aged 14-29 years accounted 

for 31% of public library users in YPRL, those aged 30-54 years (41%) and those aged 55 

years or older (28%).  The reasons for a library visit were similar across all Library services 

and for YPRL, 53% of library visitors borrowing books, and 20% or more visiting the library 

to study, borrowing CDs or DVDs, asking the library staff for help, using the library’s 

resources to look something up, or borrowing on behalf of someone else.  

Respondents were also asked how their current or family use of the library compared with 

say 2 years ago.  In YPRL 47% of library visitors visiting/using the library about the same, 

20% visiting/using the library more often and 33% visiting/using the library less often now.  

The top three (3) reasons for not visiting the library were: Using online/Internet more at 

home (56%); No time, too busy (32%); Not studying any longer (19%).  YPRL is focused on 

ensuring that using library services is quick and convenient providing digital membership 

with immediate access, automatic renewals to save our users time and will continue to 

break down barriers to using the library going forward.   

Importance of Library Services: 

There is a downward trend in the proportion attributing Very Important (a mark of 10 out 

of 10) to the provision of a library service.  Nonetheless 92% still rate an importance score 

of 6 or higher for a comprehensive library service being provided for the community in their 

Council area. This trend is also reflected in YPRL’s results with 92% still rating a 
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comprehensive library service being provided for the community in their Council area as 

very important or important.   

In 2019, amongst public library users in YPRL in the last 12 months, the highest 10-9 rated 

aspects according to more than 50% of library users are opening hours, range & quality of 

books for adults, staff courtesy & helpfulness, parking, ease of using the library website, 

internet access provided, ease of locating a book or information, range & quality of books 

for children, lending services and availability of computers.  At the other end of the scale, 

reference & information services generated the lowest 10-9 importance percentage this 

survey.  

In YPRL, 9 of the top 10 importance services remained the same as in 2016, with Internet 

access provided at the library replacing presentation of the library building this year.  Of 

note is opening hours which has moved from fifth to first position this year. 

Total Syndicate YPRL 

1. Staff Courtesy & Helpfulness 

2. Opening Hours 

3. Range & Quality of Books for Adults 

4. Ease of Locating a Book or Information 

5. Lending Services (loan period, reserve) 

6. Staff Knowledge 

7. Ease of Using the Library Website 

8. Ease of Using the Library Catalogue 

9. Parking 

10. Reference & Information Services 

1. Opening Hours 

2. Range & Quality of Books for Adults 

3. Staff Courtesy & Helpfulness 

4. Ease of Locating a Book or Information 

5. Staff Knowledge 

6. Ease of Using the Library Website 

7. Lending Services (loan period, reserve) 

8. Parking 

9. Ease of Using the Library Catalogue 

10. Internet Access provided at the Library 

 

Having this information of what is most important to our users is influential for future 

planning.  For member Councils it is important to note that Parking is an issue of 

importance for library users and that opening hours has moved to the Number 1 as the 

most important. 

Overall Satisfaction: 

This was obtained by asking those respondents who had used the Library Service in the last 

12 months how satisfied with the service provided.  The mean Very Satisfied (9-10) rating 

obtained for the Total Syndicate was 8.63 this survey, above the 8.48 recorded in 2016.  

Within YPRL, the corresponding mean rating this year is 8.47 below the 8.65 recorded in 

2016. However, the overall satisfaction rating as a score of 6 - 8 was 96% a similar 

percentage as recorded for the Total Syndicate (95%). 

Within YPRL, 9 of the top 10 performance services from 2016 remained this year.  Staff 

knowledge moved to the top of the list, with Lending services moving into second from fifth 

position last year, and Access to Wi-Fi into third from seventh last year.  Availability of 
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computers for public use moved into seventh position this year replacing Presentation of 

the library. 

 

Total Syndicate YPRL 

1. Staff Courtesy & Helpfulness 

2. Staff Knowledge 

3. Lending Services (loan period, reserve) 

4. Access to Wi-Fi 

5. Internet Access provided at the Library 

6. Ease of Locating a Book or Information 

7. Presentation of the Library Building 

8. Reference & Information Services 

9. Range & Quality of Books for Adults 

10. Opening Hours 

1. Staff Knowledge 

2. Lending Services (loan period, reserve) 

3. Access to Wi-Fi 

4. Staff Courtesy & Helpfulness 

5. Internet Access provided at the Library 

6. Ease of Locating a Book or Information 

7. Availability of Computers for Public Use 

8. Opening Hours 

9. Range & Quality of Books for Adults 

10. Ease of Using the Library Website 

 

Library users in YPRL are more inclined than the Total Syndicate to access the website 

fortnightly or more often (32%).  On average, YPRL library users access the website 18.0 

times a year compared with 15.0 times for the Total Syndicate and 15.7 times for the Total 

Metro sample building.  This is welcoming validation for the time, effort and budget 

allocated to our website and that this is an important engagement tool for our Library 

customers. 

CONSULTATION 

Consultation of the survey questions was undertaken with Executive Manager Public 

Participation and key staff, including all CEOs, from each of the 10 Library services that 

participated in the 2019 survey. 

CRITICAL DATES 

The survey was conducted between 15 April to the 2 May 2019. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

The survey costs of $6,897 were allocated within the 2018/19 budget. 

POLICY STRATEGY AND LEGISLATION 

N/A 
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LINKS TO STRATEGIC PLAN 

Public Participation 

Goal: Inspire our diverse communities to participate in empowering activities and learning 

opportunities 

Finance and Governance 

Goal: Optimise public value through sustainable financial management and governance 

DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

Under section 80C of the Local Government Act 1989 officers providing advice to the 

Library must disclose any interests, including type of interest.  

The Responsible Officer reviewing this report, having made enquiries with the relevant 

members of staff, reports that no disclosable interests have been raised in relation to this 

report. 

CONCLUSION 

The 2019 Customer Survey does give YPRL some insight into the areas of most value to our 

communities and our current users.  It also gives us an indication of areas for improvement 

and areas for our marketing focus.  The top five (5) areas for improvement for YPRL from 

current Library Users are: 

 a greater range of books (10%) 

 more parking (free) (9%) 

 improve/update presentation, layout (7%) 

 open more hours/days (6%) 

 more programs and events (6%) 

YPRL will continue to evaluate this feedback and work with our teams to continue to 

respond to our community’s needs. 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT the Board notes this report 

 M:  

 S:  
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1. Summary 
 

 
Context: This report summarises results from a survey of 2,541 people (aged 14 years or older) 

living within the boundaries of the 10 organisations that comprise the Regional Libraries 

Syndicate of 2019.  As in previous years, the objective of the survey is to track the resident 

population’s usage, perceptions and satisfaction with their public library services and compare 

these with results for the Total Syndicate.   

 

Eight members of the 2019 Syndicate participated in the 2016 survey; while Wimmera and 

Goldfields are new to the survey this year.  One implication of changes in participation each 

survey, is that averages for the Total Syndicate can vary slightly over time owing to differences 

in geographic and demographic coverage.  However, such variations continue to be surprisingly 

small.  For that reason, we have also included a Total Metropolitan (1,624) and Total Rural 

sample (917) in the tables and bar charts this year. 

 

Library Usage: The latest survey estimates that 47% of residents (aged 14 years or older) 

across the total area served by the 2019 Syndicate have used a public library within the last 12 

months, this is down on the 50% average for the previous three surveys.  Despite immense 

changes in technology in recent years, library usage amongst the general population remains 

fairly constant.   

 

A further 43% of residents surveyed in 2019 claimed to have used a public library sometime, but 

not in the last 12 months, this leaves 10% of residents who claimed to have never used a public 

library, significantly more than the 6% recorded in 2016. 

 

Amongst public library users in the last 12 months, 53% felt that the library provides low or no 

cost entertainment and 46% thought it helps them to relax.  In addition, the library gets them out 

of the house (38%), supports their learning (37%) and provides a place for them to study (29%); 

while more than 20% indicated that the library is a recreational outlet for them, helps them to be 

creative and helps them engage with the community. 

 

Importance: The 2019 survey reflects that, regardless of their own library use, people place 

high importance on the provision of a comprehensive library service being provided in their 

Council area, with 92% rating a score of 6 or higher on a scale from 1 “Not at All Important” up 

to 10 “Very Important”.  The Total Syndicate mean rating this year is 8.64 out of a possible 10, 

marginally down on the 8.83 recorded in 2016.   
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Within Yarra Plenty, the corresponding mean rating this year is 8.50, below the 8.94 recorded 

in 2016, and just below the Total Metro mean (8.62) this year.  Nonetheless, 92% of 

respondents rate the importance for a comprehensive library service being provided in their 

Council area, a score of 6 or higher. 

 

The following table lists the 10 Most Important Service Aspects (based on mean scores) 

amongst library users of a public library in the last 12 months for the Total Syndicate and within 

Yarra Plenty. 

 

Total Syndicate Yarra Plenty 

1. Staff Courtesy & Helpfulness 

2. Opening Hours 

3. Range & Quality of Books for Adults 

4. Ease of Locating a Book or Information 

5. Lending Services (loan period, reserve) 

6. Staff Knowledge 

7. Ease of Using the Library Website 

8. Ease of Using the Library Catalogue 

9. Parking 

10. Reference & Information Services 

1. Opening Hours 

2. Range & Quality of Books for Adults 

3. Staff Courtesy & Helpfulness 

4. Ease of Locating a Book or Information 

5. Staff Knowledge 

6. Ease of Using the Library Website 

7. Lending Services (loan period, reserve) 

8. Parking 

9. Ease of Using the Library Catalogue 

10. Internet Access provided at the Library 

 

 

Satisfaction: Users of a public library in the last 12 months were asked to rate their satisfaction 

with the overall service provided at the library.  This was elicited using a 10 point scale similar to 

that used for Importance, but with the options  from 1 “Not at All Satisfied”  to 10 “Very 

Satisfied”.  The mean satisfaction rating obtained for the Total Syndicate was 8.63 this survey, 

above the 8.48 recorded in 2016.   

 

Within Yarra Plenty, the corresponding mean rating this year is 8.47 below the 8.65 recorded in 

2016, with 96% of respondents rating satisfaction with the overall service provided a score of 6 

or higher, a similar percentage as recorded for the Total Syndicate (95%). 

 

Further, those who had used a public library in the last 12 months were asked to think about the 

performance of their library in providing the services (previously rated on importance) using a 

scale from 1 “Very Poor” to 10 “Excellent”.  Mean scores were calculated for each service, 

removing the “Don’t know” responses.  During 2019, performance means for the 22 services 

rated by the Total Syndicate ranged from 7.57 to 8.53 out of a possible 10.    
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Within Yarra Plenty, during 2019, the performance means were also positively high ranging 

from 7.32 to 8.47.  For possible improvement in performance, the one service with a mean 

score below 7.5 is Parking, this has also been highlighted as a service that is high in importance 

(above average), but where performance with the service provided by Yarra Plenty is below 

average. 

 

The following table lists the 10 Highest Performing Services (based on mean scores) amongst 

library users for the Total Syndicate and within Yarra Plenty. 

 

Total Syndicate Yarra Plenty 

1. Staff Courtesy & Helpfulness 

2. Staff Knowledge 

3. Lending Services (loan period, reserve) 

4. Access to Wi-Fi 

5. Internet Access provided at the Library 

6. Ease of Locating a Book or Information 

7. Presentation of the Library Building 

8. Reference & Information Services 

9. Range & Quality of Books for Adults 

10. Opening Hours 

1. Staff Knowledge 

2. Lending Services (loan period, reserve) 

3. Access to Wi-Fi 

4. Staff Courtesy & Helpfulness 

5. Internet Access provided at the Library 

6. Ease of Locating a Book or Information 

7. Availability of Computers for Public Use 

8. Opening Hours 

9. Range & Quality of Books for Adults 

10. Ease of Using the Library Website 

 

 

Users of a public library in the last 12 months were asked, based on their last experience, how 

likely they would be to recommend the library service to their friends, family or colleagues.  

Answers were rated using a scale from 1 to 10 where 1 represented “Not Likely at all” to 10 

representing ”Very Likely”.   95% of respondents in the Total Syndicate rated the likelihood to 

recommend the library service a score of 6 or higher this year 

 

In Yarra Plenty 51% of respondents rated a score of 10 or 9 and 45% a score of 8 to 6 

indicating that 96% would be likely to recommend the library service to their friends, family or 

colleagues.   

 

The following pages contain more information on the key findings of the survey results.   The 

Excel Detailed Tables, which provide further breakdowns by region and demographics have 

been provided in a separate document. 

. 



Nexus Research: Library Community Survey 2019 – Yarra Plenty Regional Libraries  4 

2. Context 
 

2.1 Background 

 
This 2019 survey is the latest in a series which have been conducted almost annually since 

2010.  The survey’s intention is to track usage of public libraries and attitudes towards them; by 

residents of the regions served by the Syndicate’s members.  In addition, the survey provides a 

useful vehicle for collecting background information to help understand trends, for example, 

ways in which the library assists people’s lifestyle. 

 

This year the following library regions were included in the survey: 

 

  Expected 
Sample 

Actual  
Sample 

Population 
Aged 14+ 

 
TOTAL  2,500 2,541 1,803,419 

Total Metropolitan 1,600 1,624 1,436,483 

Bayside 200 202 85,739 

City of Boroondara 300 304 150,902 

Casey-Cardinia 300 304 338,006 

Eastern Region 300 301 360,757 

Monash 200 205 167,791 

Yarra Plenty 300 308 333,288 

Total Rural 900 917 366,936 

Corangamite 300 301 73,897 

Goldfields 200 205 161,554 

Goulburn Valley 200 210 86,595 

Wimmera 200 201 44,890 

 

 

As indicated, the expected sample of 300 interviews were conducted for each larger region and 

200 for the five less populated regions.  The actual sample column shows that in some 

instances, library region samples have been exceeded due to telephone interviews and the on-

line panel interviews running concurrently. 

 

The sample in each region was weighted to represent the population based on the LGV survey 

returns submitted by the library services and the percentage of people aged 14 years and older 

recorded in ABS profile.id for each region.  It is estimated that there is over 1.8 million people 

(aged 14 years and older) resident in the 2019 Syndicate region.   
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2.2 Note on the Survey 

 

2.2.1 Survey Design 

Over the last nine surveys, for greater cost-efficiency and also wider coverage, the majority of 

interviews (where possible) have been undertaken via the internet, with the remainder 

conducted by a team of experienced telephone interviewers. 

 

As in previous years, all people aged 14 years or older resident in the defined regions were 

eligible for an interview.  The total of 2,541 interviews was obtained as follows: 

 

  Sample Internet 
 

CATI 

TOTAL  2,541   

Total Metropolitan 1,624   

Bayside 202 130 72 

City of Boroondara 304 208 96 

Casey-Cardinia 304 265 39 

Eastern Region 301 301 - 

Monash 205 205 - 

Yarra Plenty 308 290 18 

Total Rural 917   

Corangamite 301 85 216 

Goldfields 205 182 23 

Goulburn Valley 210 106 104 

Wimmera 201 18 183 

 

 

A random sample of 300 interviews for some library regions has a maximum plus or minus 

sampling tolerance of 6% at the 95% confidence level. That is, for a Yes/No type question, 95% 

of random samples could be expected to yield estimates which are within a maximum +6% of 

the true population value.   

 

A sample size per region of 200 for some library regions, has a maximum plus or minus 

sampling tolerance of 8% at the 95% confidence level.  
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Results relating to sub-samples, say of the approximate 140 recent users of public libraries in a 

region, have a maximum plus or minus sampling tolerance of 9% at the 95% confidence level. 

Such tolerances would also broadly apply to overall results defined by males vs. females or 

older vs. younger residents in each region.   

 

Exploring further implies correspondingly wider tolerances, owing to smaller sample bases. For 

example, a sub-sample of 100 has a maximum +10% sampling tolerance at the 95% confidence 

level. 

 

For the full sample of 2,500 interviews (Total Syndicate), the maximum sampling tolerance is 

+1.5% at the 95% confidence level.  

 

The reader is reminded that the survey does not cover public library users (or non-users) if they 

are resident outside the defined library region.  On the other hand, the survey does cover the 

views of residents in a region regardless of whether they have recently entered a library or not.  

 

Syndicate members’ regions were defined by Nexus using region suburbs and their post codes.  

Dynata, an ESOMAR accredited provider of internet panels in Australia selected and supplied 

random samples of residents for interview via the internet within these geographic guidelines.  

To better obtain a representative sample, minimum quota by age and gender were advised by 

Nexus for each region. 

 

Both the internet and telephone surveys ran from the 15 April – 2 May 2019. The latter was 

conducted by Q & A, an ESOMAR accredited provider of CATI in Australia and Nexus’ 

fieldworkers using internet controlled in-home CATI; and a telephone database for random 

selection of residents.   Both the internet and CATI surveys used Dynata software, for 

consistency of data between samples and over time. 

 

After quality control checks, respondents’ verbatim answers were coded into categories of 

answers to enable aggregation into tables and charts.  Data was weighted to population totals 

by library region using six age/gender cells per region, to reduce any sampling bias.  Data 

coding, chart generation; analysis and report writing were conducted in-house by Nexus 

Research. 
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2.2.2 Interview Content 

Core questions on the population’s library usage and their perceptions of public libraries have 

remained relatively fixed over the survey period to enable comparisons and to track trends.  In 

addition, questions are included on importance of library aspects and satisfaction with the 

library’s performance in these areas, to identify particular regions’ strengths and potential 

weaknesses. 

 

A copy of the questionnaire is appended at the end of this report.  The Detailed Tables have 

been provided in a separate volume and were used as the basis of this report.   

 

2.2.3 Analysis & Reporting 

Results in this report are generally given in terms of projections to population figures (rather 

than to sample sizes) since this is the true focus of the survey.  Weighting helps to avoid bias, 

for example, arising from older members of the community being more likely at home (and 

available for telephone interview) or younger residents being less accessible generally (and 

thus under-represented unless appropriately weighted).   

 

Where ratings from 1 to 10 have been generated for specific questions, mean scores have been 

calculated (excluding those who indicated “Don’t know”) for the Total Syndicate and library 

regions.  Means have been generated for Importance, Satisfaction and Performance of the 

library in providing a particular service. 

 

The Detailed Tables (provided separately) show both the relevant sample base and the 

estimated population aged 14 years and older (in 000’s) for each column of data.  For ease of 

reference, the question numbers in the Detailed Tables correspond with the report chart 

numbers and also the 2019 questionnaire. 
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2.3 The General Population Profile 

 

2.3.1 Age/Gender 

The following chart summarises the age/gender profile of the resident population within each 

Syndicate member’s region, for the 2019 Library Syndicate in total, Total Metropolitan and Total 

Rural samples.  The sample sizes for each region are included at the base of the bars. 

 

Females represented 51% of the sample and males 49%.  Younger respondents aged 14-29 

years accounted for 25% of the sample, those aged 30-54 years (41%) and residents aged 55 

years or older (34%) this survey. 

 

The Yarra Plenty age/gender profile is similar to that of the Total Syndicate, albeit with fewer 

people aged 55 years or older (31%), and exactly the same profile as the Total Metro sample.  
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2.3.2 Occupation 

The following chart displays the distribution of respondents’ occupations for the Total Syndicate 

and within each library region.  In total, 37% of respondents were in full time employment or 

self-employed, 23% in part-time or casual work and 18% were retired.  Further, 8% were 

involved in home duties, 6% were students and 5% of the “Other” group were unemployed. 

 

Yarra Plenty had more people working full time (39%) and fewer retired respondents (14%) 

than in the Total Syndicate sample. 
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2.3.3 Aboriginal or Torres Strait Islander 

A new question was introduced this year to establish identity.  1% of the respondents identified 

as an Aboriginal or Torres Strait Islander, while 1% preferred not to say and 98% of the sample 

did not identify as an Aboriginal or Torres Strait Islander. 

 

2% of the Yarra Plenty respondents identified as an Aboriginal or Torres Strait Islander, while 

2% preferred not to say and 96% of the sample did not identify as either. 

 

 

2.3.4 Language 

In total, 90% of respondents spoke English most often at home, with more than 30 other 

languages represented in the sample, with Chinese language variants being the most prevalent.  

See the Detailed Tables for individual languages indicated by respondents. 

 

Further, 97% of respondents indicated that the main language they prefer to read in is English. 

 

Similarly, 88% of residents living in Yarra Plenty spoke English most often at home and 96% 

prefer to read in English. 
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3. Overall Library Behaviour 
 

3.1 Frequency of Visiting/Using the Library 

 

People were asked on average, how often they visit/use the library.   Frequency ranged from 

weekly or more often (11%), fortnightly (8%), monthly (11%), every 2-3 months (11%) to less 

often (38%).  Further, 17% of respondents indicated that they never visit/use the library (but 

may have, just not in the last 12 months) and 4% were uncertain. 

 

When compared with the Total Syndicate, Yarra Plenty had a higher percentage of 

respondents visiting/using the library less often than every 2-3 months (42%); with 18% visiting 

fortnightly or more often, 10% visiting monthly and 9% every 2-3 months.  Further, 16% never 

visit/use the library and 5% were uncertain. 

 

 
 

Mean scores were calculated using the following values - two or more times a week (104), 

weekly (52), fortnightly (26), monthly (12), every 2-3 months (5), less often (2).  This resulted in 

the average frequency of visiting/using the library, amongst those who visit/use a library being 

16.2 times a year, compared with 14.2 times a year within Yarra Plenty. 

  



Nexus Research: Library Community Survey 2019 – Yarra Plenty Regional Libraries  12 

3.1.1 Other Adults 

When asked “how often do other adults in the household visit/use the library?”, frequency 

ranged from weekly or more often (7%), fortnightly (5%), monthly (9%), every 2-3 months (8%) 

to less often (22%).  Further, 26% of respondents indicated that other adults in the household 

never visit/use the library, 18% had no other adult in the household and 5% were uncertain. 

 

Within Yarra Plenty, the frequency of other adults in the household visiting/using the library was 

similar to the frequencies within the Total Syndicate. 

 

The average frequency of other adults visiting/using the library, amongst those who visit/use is 

15.2 times a year, compared with 15.9 times a year within Yarra Plenty. 

 

 

3.1.2 Other Young People 

Similarly, when asked “how often do other young people visit/use the library?”, frequency 

ranged from weekly or more often (7%), fortnightly (6%), monthly (6%), every 2-3 months (7%) 

to less often (12%).  Further, 16% of respondents indicated that other young people in the 

household never visit/use the library, 42% had no other young people in the household and 4% 

were uncertain. 

 

Within Yarra Plenty, the frequency of other young people in the household visiting/using the 

library was similar to the frequencies within the Total Syndicate. 

 

The average frequency of other young people visiting/using the library, amongst those who 

visit/use is 19.9 times a year, compared with 17.8 times a year within Yarra Plenty. 
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3.2 Library Information Sources 

 

Respondents were asked where they would look to find out about Library activities and events.  

The following chart shows results for the Total Syndicate and Yarra Plenty. 

 

In total, the library website, internet and library itself are the main sources of reference indicated 

by 40% or more of the Total Syndicate, followed by the local newspaper (23%), the local 

Council /Government website (21%) and social media (20%).  

 

Amongst Yarra Plenty residents, the internet and the library website are the most popular 

references followed closely by the library itself; then both the local newspaper and social media. 

 

 

 

Further investigation of the detailed tables shows that apart from the library website, the library 

itself and the internet; the library noticeboard and library newsletter were more prevalent as a 

reference source amongst Users of public libraries in the last 12 months, than amongst the 

Total Syndicate of respondents. 
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3.3 Awareness of Free Library Services 

 

Respondents were prompted with a list of library services and asked whether they knew that 

many libraries now have them free.  This year, 16% of all respondents were not aware of any 

service, with highest awareness generated for Wi-Fi (79%), eBooks to download on your own 

device (48%), magazines to download (34%) and music to download on your own device (31%).   

 

Similarly amongst those living in Yarra Plenty, 16% were not aware of any listed service, with 

service awareness levels generally similar to the Total Syndicate.  The following chart shows 

results within the Total Syndicate and Yarra Plenty.  

 

 

 

Further investigation of the detailed tables shows that awareness of free library services was 

generally higher amongst Users of public libraries in the last 12 months than amongst the Total 

Syndicate of respondents, particularly for Wi-Fi (90%) and eBooks to download on your own 

device (62%). 
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3.4 Assistance with Lifestyle  

 

A question was asked to investigate ways in which a public library assists residents’ lifestyle.  

The question was asked of Users of a public library in the last 12 months and the following chart 

compares responses for the Total Syndicate and Yarra Plenty. 

 

Overall, 53% of library users felt that the library provides low or no cost entertainment and 47% 

thought it helps them to relax.  In addition, the library gets them out of the house (38%), 

supports their learning (37%) and provides a place for them to study (29%); while more than 

20% indicated that the library is a recreational outlet for them, helps them to be creative and 

helps them engage with the community.   

 

Around half of library users located in Yarra Plenty felt that the library helps them to relax and  

provides low or no cost entertainment; while more than 40% noted that it gets them out of the 

house and supports their learning.   
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3.5 Likelihood to Recommend  

 

Users of a public library in the last 12 months were asked, based on their last experience at the 

library, how likely was it, that they would recommend the library service to their friends, family or 

colleagues.  Answers were rated using a scale from 1 to 10 where 1 represented “Not Likely at 

all” to 10 representing ”Very Likely”.   

 

The following chart shows the distribution of ratings for the Total Syndicate and all Regions.  For 

ease of reading the chart, ratings have been combined as follows 10-9 (Very Likely), 8-6, 5-3, 2-

1 (Not Likely at all), Don’t know.   

 

In total, 60% of respondents rated a likelihood score of 10 or 9 indicating that respondents 

would be very likely to recommend the library service to their friends, family or colleagues.  This 

result was highest in Goulburn Valley (74%) and Boroondara (68%) this year.  

 

In Yarra Plenty 51% of respondents rated a score of 10 or 9 and 45% a score of 8 to 6 

indicating that 96% would be likely to recommend the library service to their friends, family or 

colleagues.  Just above the 95% recorded for the Total Syndicate and Total Metro samples this 

year. 
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4. Public Library Usage 
 

4.1 Usage by Year  

 

All respondents were asked which one of three descriptions defined them.  This question has 

been asked in previous surveys to track the incidence of public library use within the general 

population.   

 

This year 47% of respondents described themselves as having used a public library in the last 

12 months, below the 49% recorded in 2016.  Further, 43% had used a public library some time 

but not in the last 12 months and 10% had never used a public library. 

 

The following chart summarises results obtained by the Total Syndicates since 2010. The 

reader is reminded that the composition of the Total Syndicate changes within years and so 

results are not strictly comparable.  None the less, it appears that usage of Public libraries has 

gradually trended downwards since the high recorded in 2010. 
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In Yarra Plenty, 45% of residents described themselves as having used a public library in the 

last 12 months, a similar percentage to that recorded in 2016.  Further, 46% had used a public 

library some time but not in last 12 months and 9% had never used a public library. 
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4.2 Usage Across the Region  

 

The following chart shows claimed public library usage within each region in 2019. 

 

More recent usage is evident in the cities of Monash, Boroondara and Bayside where more than 

50% of residents have used a public library in the last 12 months.  Further, 28% of residents 

(aged 14 years or older) in Wimmera and 20% in Corangamite claimed to have never used a 

public library. 
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4.3 Demographics of Users 

 

The following chart shows demographics of public library users in the last 12 months.  Amongst 

the estimated 845,000 public library users (aged 14 years and older) in the Total Syndicate in 

2019, females represented 54% of public library users and males 46%.   

 

Younger respondents aged 14-29 years accounted for 28% of public library users, those aged 

30-54 years (43%) and those aged 55 years or older (29%). 

 

There were an estimated 148,000 public library users in the last 12 months in Yarra Plenty.  

The age/gender profile was 54% female and 46% male.  Younger respondents aged 14-29 

years accounted for 31% of public library users in Yarra Plenty, those aged 30-54 years (41%) 

and those aged 55 years or older (28%).  

 

Note: figures may not add exactly to 100% due to the weighting of smaller sample sizes and 

rounding of the percentages. 
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4.4 Users’ Activities within the Library  

 

Respondents who had used a public library in the last 12 months were asked to think about 

their last visit and indicate which of a list of activities they had undertaken.   

 

The following chart shows results for the Total Syndicate and Yarra Plenty in 2019.  For the 

Total Syndicate, the vast majority of library visitors borrowed books (57% of them), while around 

20% used the library’s resources to look something up, asked the library staff for help, borrowed 

CDs or DVDs, or went to the library to study.  

 

Results were similar in Yarra Plenty with 53% of library visitors borrowing books, and 20% or 

more visiting the library to study, borrowing CDs or DVDs, asking the library staff for help, using 

the library’s resources to look something up, or borrowing on behalf of someone else.  
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4.5 Usage Compared with Previous Years 

 

Respondents were asked how their current or family use of the library compared with say 2 

years ago.  Around half (52%) of the library visitors indicated that they or their family were 

visiting/using the library about the same, 18% were visiting/using the library more often and 30% 

were visiting/using the library less often now. 

 

Results were similar in Yarra Plenty with 47% of library visitors visiting/using the library about 

the same, 20% visiting/using the library more often and 33% visiting/using the library less often 

now.  As demonstrated in the following chart.  

 

 

Those people whose current or family use of the library was less often now than 2 years ago 

were asked why.  Amongst this sample of 775 people, the main reasons were: 

 

 Using online/internet more at home (56%) 

 No time, too busy (32%) 

 Not studying any longer (19%) 

 Go elsewhere for photocopying, computers, free Wi-Fi etc.(16%) 

 Reading things other than books (14%) 

 Not close to a library (13%) 

 Using library's eBooks, eAudio (8%) 

 Children go on their own (6%) 

 Can't get there  (5%) 
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5. Importance of Library Services 
 

5.1 Overall Importance  

 

5.1.1 Importance by Year 

All residents, regardless of their own library usage, were asked how important they thought it is 

for the community as a whole that a comprehensive library service is provided in their Council 

area.  Answers were rated using a scale from 1 to 10 where  1 represented “Not at all Important” 

to 10 representing “Very Important”.  The following chart shows the trend in Importance scores 

since 2010 for the Total Syndicate.   

 

There is a downward trend in the proportion attributing very important (a mark of 10 out of 10) to 

the provision of a library service.   On a Total Syndicate basis, this has declined from 63% in 

2011 to 47% in 2019, nonetheless 92% still rate an importance score of 6 or higher for a 

comprehensive library service being provided for the community in their Council area. 

 

 

 

The ratings imply an Importance mean of 8.64 for the Total Syndicate in 2019, marginally down 

on the 8.83 recorded in 2016; while the Total Metro mean is 8.62 this survey. 
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The following chart provides the same trend data for Yarra Plenty.  A decline can be seen over 

the years for the proportion of people attributing very important (a score of 10) to the provision 

of a comprehensive library service (43%); although 92% still rate an importance score of 6 or 

higher for a comprehensive library service being provided for the community in their Council 

area.  

 

 

 

In Yarra Plenty in 2019 the Importance mean is 8.50, below the 8.94 recorded in 2016, and just 

below the mean for the Total Syndicate (8.64) and Total Metro (8.62) this year. 

 

 

5.1.2 Importance Across the Regions 

The following chart shows the distribution of ratings for the Total Syndicate and all Regions in 

2019.  For ease of reading the chart, ratings have been combined as follows 10-9 (Very 

Important), 8-6, 5-3, 2-1 (Not at all Important), Don’t know.   

 

In total, 62% of respondents rated an importance score of 10 or 9 indicating that it is very 

important for the Community to have a comprehensive Public library service.  This result was 

highest in Boroondara and Goldfields (both 68%) and lowest in Monash (54%) this year.  
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In Yarra Plenty 60% of respondents rated a score of 10 or 9 and a further 32% a score of 8 to 6 

indicating that 92% consider it important for the community to have a comprehensive library 

service in their Council area.  The same percentage as the Total Syndicate this year. 

 

 

 

 

 



Nexus Research: Library Community Survey 2019 – Yarra Plenty Regional Libraries  26 

5.2 The Importance of Individual Services 

 

5.2.1 Total Syndicate 

Respondents who had used a public library branch in the last 12 months were asked to indicate 

how important aspects of the library’s service are to them using a scale from 1 to 10 where 1 

represents “Not At All Important” up to 10 indicating “Very Important”.   

 

The following chart summarises results derived across the Total Syndicate and is ordered by 

the percentage of respondents providing a score of 10-9 then 8-6.  Aspects are therefore 

ordered by their perceived importance. 

 

The highest 10-9 rated aspect according to 60% of library users is Staff courtesy & helpfulness, 

followed by Opening hours, Range & quality of books for adults, Ease of locating a book or 

information, and Lending services.  At the other end of the scale, Events & activities for adults 

generated the lowest 10-9 importance percentage (below 30%) this survey.  
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5.2.2 Yarra Plenty 

In 2019, amongst public library users in Yarra Plenty in the last 12 months, the highest 10-9 

rated aspects according to more than 50% of library users are Opening hours, Range & quality 

of books for adults, Staff courtesy & helpfulness, Parking, Ease of using the library website, 

Internet access provided, Ease of locating a book or information, Range & quality of books for 

children, Lending services and Availability of computers.  At the other end of the scale, 

Reference & information services generated the lowest 10-9 importance percentage this survey.  
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5.2.3 Ten Most Important Services 

The following table lists the 10 most important services (based on mean scores) amongst library 

users for the Total Syndicate and within Yarra Plenty. 

 

For the Total Syndicate, 9 of the services in 2016 remained in the top 10 this year, with Parking 

replacing Presentation of the Library building. Of note is Opening hours, which has moved into 

second place for importance this year from sixth in 2016. 

 

 In Yara Plenty, 9 of the top 10 importance services remained the same as in 2016, with 

Internet access provided at the library replacing Presentation of the library building this year.  Of 

note is Opening hours which has moved from fifth to first position this year. 

  

Total Syndicate Yarra Plenty 

1. Staff Courtesy & Helpfulness 

2. Opening Hours 

3. Range & Quality of Books for Adults 

4. Ease of Locating a Book or Information 

5. Lending Services (loan period, reserve) 

6. Staff Knowledge 

7. Ease of Using the Library Website 

8. Ease of Using the Library Catalogue 

9. Parking 

10. Reference & Information Services 

1. Opening Hours 

2. Range & Quality of Books for Adults 

3. Staff Courtesy & Helpfulness 

4. Ease of Locating a Book or Information 

5. Staff Knowledge 

6. Ease of Using the Library Website 

7. Lending Services (loan period, reserve) 

8. Parking 

9. Ease of Using the Library Catalogue 

10. Internet Access provided at the Library 
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6. Users’ Satisfaction with Library Services 
 

6.1 Overall Satisfaction  

 

6.1.1 Satisfaction by Year 

Respondents who had used a public library in the last 12 months were asked to rate how 

satisfied they were with the overall service provided at the library using a scale from 1 to 10 

where 1 represented “Not at all Satisfied” up to 10 representing “Very Satisfied”.  The following 

chart shows the trends in Satisfaction scores since 2010 for the Total Syndicate.   

 

Results for 2019 have improved on the previous survey based on the proportion attributing very 

satisfied (a score of 10) to the overall service provided at the library.   On a Total Syndicate 

basis, this result has increased to 36% in 2019, the highest level recorded in seven surveys.  

 

 

 

The ratings imply a Satisfaction mean of 8.63 for the Total Syndicate in 2019, above the 8.48 

recorded in 2016; while the Total Metro mean is also 8.63 this survey. 
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The following chart provides the same trend data for Yarra Plenty respondents who had used a 

public library in the last 12 months.  A decline can be seen over the previous survey for the 

proportion of people attributing very satisfied (a score of 10 out of 10) to the overall service 

provided at the library, now 28%, back to the levels recorded in 2015. 

 

 

 

In Yarra Plenty in 2019 the Satisfaction mean is 8.47 below the 8.65 recorded in 2016, and 

below this year’s Total Syndicate and Total Metro means (both 8.63). 

 

 

6.1.2 Satisfaction Across the Regions 

The following chart shows the distribution of ratings for the Total Syndicate and all Regions in 

2019.  For ease of reading the chart, ratings have been combined as follows 10-9 (Very 

Satisfied), 8-6, 5-3, 2-1 (Not at all Satisfied), Don’t know.   

 

In total, 58% of respondents have rated a satisfaction score of 10 or 9 indicating that they are 

very satisfied with the overall service provided at the library. This result was somewhat higher in 

Goulburn Valley (67%), Bayside and Wimmera (both 64%).  
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In Yarra Plenty 53% of respondents rated a score of 10 or 9 and a further 43% a score of 8 to 6 

indicating that 96% consider they are satisfied with the overall service provided at the library.  A 

similar percentage to that recorded for the Total Syndicate (95%) and Total Metro (97%) 

samples this year.  
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6.2 Performance of Individual Services 

 

6.2.1 Total Syndicate 

A series of questions elicited library users’ satisfaction with the same key aspects of services 

that had previously been asked on importance.  Again, the questions were provided to residents 

who had used a public library in the last 12 months, so they could speak from personal 

experience. 

 

Respondents were asked to think about the performance of their library in providing the services 

using a scale from 1 to 10 where 1 represented “Very Poor” up to 10 indicating “Excellent”.  The 

following chart summarises results derived across the Total Syndicate and is ordered by the 

percentage of respondents providing a score of 10-9 then 8-6.  Aspects are therefore ordered 

by their perceived satisfaction. 

 

The services which 50% or more library users rate as excellent (10-9) at their local branch are 

Staff courtesy & helpfulness, Staff knowledge and Lending services (loan period, reservations).  

At the other end of the scale 26% rated Range & quality of downloadable eBooks a score of 10-

9 this survey, with more than one third of respondents uncertain.  

 

 

Note: The relatively high proportion of “Don’t know” responses towards the end of the chart for 
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the more niche services.  “Don’t know” is excluded from the calculation of Performance means.  

6.2.2 Yarra Plenty 

In 2019, amongst library users in the Yarra Plenty, the service which 54% of library users rated 

as excellent at their local branch was Staff Knowledge, followed closely by Ease of locating a 

book or information, Lending services, Staff courtesy & helpfulness, Ease of using the library 

website, Access to Wi-Fi and Availability of computers for public use rating a score of 10-9. At 

the other end of the scale, Ease of downloading eBooks and Parking generated the lowest 10-9 

performance scores this survey. 
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6.2.3 Ten Highest Performing Services 

The following table lists the 10 services rated highest on performance (based on mean scores) 

amongst library users for the Total Syndicate and within the Yarra Plenty. 

 

For the Total Syndicate, 8 of the services in 2016 remained in the top 10 this year, with Access 

to Wi-Fi (now rated fourth) and Opening hours replacing Ease of using the library catalogue and 

Ease of using the library website.  

 

Within Yarra Plenty, 9 of the top 10 performance services from 2016 remained this year.  Staff 

knowledge moved to the top of the list, with Lending services moving into second from fifth 

position last year, and Access to Wi-Fi into third from seventh last year.  Availability of 

computers for public use moved into seventh position this year replacing Presentation of the 

library building.  

 

Total Syndicate Yarra Plenty 

1. Staff Courtesy & Helpfulness 

2. Staff Knowledge 

3. Lending Services (loan period, reserve) 

4. Access to Wi-Fi 

5. Internet Access provided at the Library 

6. Ease of Locating a Book or Information 

7. Presentation of the Library Building 

8. Reference & Information Services 

9. Range & Quality of Books for Adults 

10. Opening Hours 

1. Staff Knowledge 

2. Lending Services (loan period, reserve) 

3. Access to Wi-Fi 

4. Staff Courtesy & Helpfulness 

5. Internet Access provided at the Library 

6. Ease of Locating a Book or Information 

7. Availability of Computers for Public Use 

8. Opening Hours 

9. Range & Quality of Books for Adults 

10. Ease of Using the Library Website 
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6.2.4 Trends in Service Satisfaction 

Respondents who had used a public library in the last 12 months were asked to think about the 

performance of their library in providing the services using a scale from 1 to 10 where 1 

represented “Very Poor” and 10 “Excellent”.  Mean scores were calculated for each service, 

removing the “Don’t know” responses. 

 

The following table lists the Performance means for all library services since 2010 and including 

results from the 2019 survey.  In general, Performance means have improved on the previous 

survey, with 8 service means having improved (>0.2) on 2016 highlighted in yellow and no 

service having declined this year.  Although it should be reminded that there are library regions 

excluded from the Total Syndicate and two included when compared with the 2016 survey. 

 

 Total Syndicate 2010 2011 2012 2013 2015 2016 2019 

Staff courtesy & helpfulness 8.31 8.39 8.38 8.49 8.44 8.43 8.53 

Staff knowledge 8.22 8.31 8.28 8.36 8.43 8.33 8.52 

Lending services 8.14 8.16 8.12 8.22 8.21 8.20 8.44 

Access to Wi-Fi     7.67 7.88 8.31 

Internet access provided 7.71 7.76 7.84 7.89 7.84 7.97 8.26 

Ease of locating book/information 7.94 7.97 8.03 8.05 8.01 8.07 8.25 

Presentation of the Library building 7.88 7.85 7.98 8.03 8.11 8.05 8.23 

Reference & Information services 7.95 7.87 7.95 7.89 7.91 8.00 8.19 

Range & quality of Adult books 7.99 7.90 7.94 8.06 7.98 8.01 8.18 

Opening hours 7.87 7.83 7.86 7.93 7.94 7.90 8.15 

Ease of using the Library website 7.84 7.86 7.79 7.82 7.88 7.94 8.13 

Ease of using Library catalogue 7.93 7.98 7.97 8.01 7.93 7.96 8.13 

Range & quality of Children books 7.86 7.76 7.67 7.93 7.75 7.88 8.07 

Availability of computers 7.53 7.53 7.65 7.70 7.58 7.73 8.03 

Range & quality of On-line resources 7.80 7.77 7.76 7.78 7.55 7.79 8.00 

Study spaces/facilities      7.68 7.93 

Children events & activities 7.62 7.61 7.58 7.74 7.68 7.74 7.91 

Ease of downloading eBooks     7.35 7.57 7.81 

Range & quality downloadable eBooks     7.24 7.48 7.81 

Adult events & activities 7.30 7.31 7.39 7.43 7.28 7.53 7.66 

Range & quality of CDs and DVDs 7.21 7.25 7.29 7.28 7.25 7.45 7.62 

Parking 7.64 7.38 7.64 7.54 7.73 7.52 7.57 
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Within Yarra Plenty, Performance means have generally shown improvement on the previous 

survey with nine service means highlighted in yellow having improved (>0.2) on 2016 and only 

one - Parking having declined (>0.2) highlighted in aqua this year.  

 

 Yarra Plenty 2010 2011 2012 2013 2015 2016 2019 

Staff knowledge 8.36 8.58 8.38 8.61 8.54 8.28 8.47 

Lending services 8.37 8.46 8.39 8.23 8.21 8.05 8.39 

Access to Wi-Fi     8.05 7.99 8.37 

Staff courtesy & helpfulness 8.54 8.67 8.53 8.61 8.55 8.37 8.36 

Internet access provided 7.84 8.04 8.30 8.27 8.25 8.12 8.31 

Ease of locating book/information 8.25 8.11 8.15 8.09 8.15 8.00 8.29 

Availability of computers 7.62 7.90 7.74 8.12 7.90 8.03 8.28 

Opening hours 8.07 8.20 8.15 8.13 8.05 8.05 8.26 

Range & quality of Adult books 8.22 8.11 8.14 8.30 8.19 8.31 8.21 

Ease of using the Library website 8.13 8.13 8.04 8.20 7.75 8.08 8.20 

Range & quality of On-line resources 8.12 8.02 8.07 8.13 7.68 7.99 8.19 

Ease of using Library catalogue 8.15 8.35 8.17 8.14 7.99 7.99 8.12 

Range & quality of Children books 8.05 8.05 7.69 8.24 7.91 8.09 8.11 

Presentation of the Library building 8.00 8.20 8.15 8.16 8.01 7.98 8.09 

Reference & Information services 8.08 8.18 8.19 8.20 8.18 8.09 8.08 

Study spaces/facilities      7.89 8.05 

Children events & activities 7.83 8.04 7.61 8.13 7.73 7.58 8.02 

Range & quality of CDs and DVDs 7.63 7.50 7.78 7.82 7.56 7.52 7.97 

Adult events & activities 7.49 7.77 7.78 8.02 7.78 7.64 7.85 

Ease of downloading eBooks     7.81 7.45 7.74 

Range & quality downloadable eBooks     7.57 7.66 7.73 

Parking 7.96 8.18 8.30 8.23 7.85 7.85 7.32 
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6.3 The Library Website  

 

6.3.1 Usage 

The following chart summarises library users’ claimed frequency of accessing the library's 

website.  Overall, the results suggest that 89% of public library users in the last 12 months 

access their local library’s website.  25% access the website at least fortnightly, 17% monthly, 

20% every 2-3 months, 11% at least once a year and 16% less often 

 

95% of library users in the Eastern Region and 93% in Casey-Cardinia access the library 

website, compared with just 54% in Wimmera.   

 

Library users in Yarra Plenty are more inclined than the Total Syndicate to access the website 

fortnightly or more often (32%).  On average, Yarra Plenty library users access the website 18.0 

times a year compared with 15.0 times for the Total Syndicate and 15.7 times for the Total 

Metro sample. 
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6.3.2 Satisfaction 

A subsequent question checked how satisfied website users are with the library website.  The 

following chart shows the distribution of ratings for the Total Syndicate and all Regions in 2019.  

For ease of reading the chart, ratings have been combined as follows 10-9 (Very Satisfied), 8-6, 

5-3, 2-1 (Not at all Satisfied), Don’t know.   

 

In total, 39% of website users have rated a satisfaction score of 10 or 9 indicating that they are 

very satisfied with the library website. This result was somewhat higher in Wimmera (46%), 

Bayside and Casey-Cardinia (both 43%) and lowest in Boroondara and Corangamite (both 

34%), albeit still positive.  

 

In Yarra Plenty 37% of library website users rated a score of 10 or 9 and a further 53% rated a 

score of 8 to 6, indicating that 90% are satisfied with the library website.  Above the 88% 

recorded for both the Total Syndicate and Total Metro samples this year. 
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7. Quadrant Analysis 
 

7.1 Total Syndicate 

 

Combining all Public library services, the average Importance mean for library users in the last 

12 months is 7.76, while the average Performance mean indicating how well the Total 

Syndicate performs in providing the service is 8.09 out of a possible 10. 

 

A quadrant analysis is used to provide strategic direction on where to focus resources.  This 

analysis is generated from the average Importance and Performance means (using the rating 

scales, removing the ‘Don’t know’ responses) and shows the relativity between both 

dimensions.  This technique assists in identifying current strengths and any potential 

weaknesses in the customer service delivery within Public libraries. 

 

As demonstrated in the analysis, the vertical scale represents the level of Importance placed on 

services.  The horizontal scale represents the level of Performance of the Total Syndicate in 

providing each service. 

 

Services that fall within the ‘Weaknesses’ quadrant are those that are high in importance 

(above average), but where performance with the service provided by libraries is below 

average.  Consequently, these areas are the critical services that require addressing in order to 

maximise the overall level of performance.  The one service positioned in this quadrant this year 

is Parking. 

   

Services that fall in the ‘Strengths’ quadrant are also high in importance, while performance 

with the service provided by the libraries is above average.  As a consequence, these factors 

contribute most to perceptions of a positive service and this year 10 of the 22 services are 

included in this quadrant.  

 

Services that fall within the ‘Maintain’ quadrant are those that are below the importance 

average, yet performance is above average.  For these services the strategy is to maintain the 

current level of performance, directing any resources to the areas identified as ‘weaknesses’.  

The two services in this quadrant are Internet access provided at the library and access to Wi-

Fi. 
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Services that fall within the ‘Adequate’ quadrant are those that are below average in 

importance and also below average in performance.  The remaining nine services are 

positioned in this quadrant this survey, with Range & quality of books for children positioned 

very close to the Performance average axis this year,  

 

The reader is reminded that some of the results are based on small sample sizes.  Also, by 

definition, some services must necessarily fall below the calculated average, which is generally 

quite high.  
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7.2 Yarra Plenty 

 

Combining all Yarra Plenty services, the average Importance mean for library users in the last 

12 months is 7.93, while the average Performance mean indicating how well the Yarra Plenty 

performs in providing the service is 8.12 out of a possible 10. 

 

Services that fall within the ‘Weaknesses’ quadrant are those that are high in importance 

(above average), but where performance with the service provided by the Yarra Plenty is below 

average.  Consequently, these areas are the critical services that require addressing in order to 

maximize the overall level of performance.  There is one service in this quadrant this year, 

Parking.  

  

Services that fall in the ‘Strengths’ quadrant are also high in importance, while performance 

with the service provided by the Yarra Plenty is above average.  As a consequence, these 

factors contribute most to perceptions of a positive service and this year  10 of the 22 services 

are included in this quadrant, of note is Ease of using the library catalogue which is positioned 

on the Performance average axis. 

 

Services that fall within the ‘Maintain’ quadrant are those that are below the importance 

average, yet performance is above average.  For these services the strategy is to maintain the 

current level of performance, directing any resources to the areas identified as weaknesses.  

There are 2 services in this quadrant this year, Access to Wi-Fi and Range & quality of on-line 

resources, both of which are very close to the Importance average axis. 

  

Services that fall within the ‘Adequate’ quadrant are those that are below average in 

importance and also below average in performance.  The remaining 9 services are positioned in 

this quadrant  with Range & quality of books for children very close to the Performance average 

axis this year. 
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8. Specifics for Yarra Plenty  
 

8.1 Branch Used Most Often 

 

Residents in Yarra Plenty who had used a public library in the last 12 months were asked which 

library branch they had used most often. 

 

Amongst the 136 library users in Yarra Plenty, the libraries frequented by most people were Mill 

Park (27%), Eltham and Ivanhoe (both 12%); and Watsonia (9%) as demonstrated in the 

following chart. 
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8.2 Branch Appreciation 

 

8.2.1 Satisfaction with Service 

Respondents who had visited a public library within the last 12 months were asked to rate how 

satisfied they were with the overall service provided at the library using a scale from 1 to 10 

where 1 represented “Not at all Satisfied” up to 10 representing “Very Satisfied”.  The table lists 

the library branches, number of users (in the sample) at each library and  the mean satisfaction 

score with overall service at the library. 

 

Results for Yarra Plenty library branches are positive ranging from 7.24 to 9.24 (out of a 

possible 10) with the Watsonia and Eltham generating highest very satisfied scores above 9.0.  

The reader is warned that sample sizes per branch are small and so results at this level are 

more akin to hypotheses than proven findings.  

 

YARRA PLENTY 
Sample 
(Users) 

Satisfaction 
With Service 

Likelihood to 
Recommend 

Watsonia (Ibbottson St) 13 9.24 9.13 

Eltham (Panther Place) 18 9.08 8.99 

Whittlesea (Laurel St) 8 8.87 8.24 

Rosanna (Turnham Ave) 11 8.63 8.66 

Thomastown (Main St) 8 8.49 8.49 

Lalor (May Rd) 10 8.47 8.11 

Mill Park (Plenty Rd) 39 8.33 8.26 

Diamond Valley (Civic Dr) 10 8.03 9.09 

Ivanhoe (Upper Heidelberg Rd) 18 7.24 7.38 

 

 

8.2.2 Likelihood to Recommend 

Based on their last experience and when asked to rate how likely it is that they would 

recommend the library service to their friends, family or colleagues, using a scale from 1 to 10 

where 1 represented “Not at all Likely” up to 10 representing “Very Likely”.  The final column of 

the table lists the mean recommendation score for each library. 

 

Results are very positive ranging from 7.38 to 9.13 (out of a possible 10), with highest levels of 

recommendation for Watsonia and Diamond Valley. 
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8.3 Suggestions for the Future 

 

8.3.1 Library Programs and Events 

Thinking about library programs and events, public library users in the last year in the Yarra 

Plenty (136 people) were asked which programs and events they would like to see at their 

library.  In total, 80% made a comment, 3% said “nothing (else)” and 17% did not know.  

Following are the more frequently mentioned programs and events: 

 

 Activities/programs for Children (15%) 

 Art and crafts (9%) 

 Activities/programs for Adults  (9%) 

 Fine as it is (8%) 

 Book groups/launches/reviews/discussions (7%) 

 Community information, local history (6%) 

 Educational, Writing, Study (spaces) (5%) 

 More events (promotion, awareness) (5%) 

 Multicultural, Language, Travel (5%) 

 Cooking (4%) 

 Hobbies, Games (4%) 

 Guest speakers (4%) 

 Only interested in books (not events)  (3%) 

 Coffee shop/machine (2%) 

 Author visits, readings, talks (2%) 

 Movies, DVDs (2%) 

 Story/reading time (2%) 

 Computer, iPad, eBook training (2%) 
  

8.3.2 Possible Improvements 

Thinking generally about their library branch, public library users in the last year in Yarra Plenty 

(136 people) were asked to suggest one improvement to their library.  In total, 83% made a 

comment, 6% said “nothing” and 11% did not know.  The following improvements were 

mentioned most often: 

 Greater range of books (10%) 

 More parking (free) (9%) 

 Fine as it is (9%) 

 Improve/update presentation, layout (7%) 

 Open more hours/days (6%) 

 More programs/events (6%) 

 Quieter, control/less noise (5%) 

 More study spaces (4%) 

 Make it larger, more space (4%) 

 Cafe, tea/coffee, water (4%) 

 More computers, improved Wi-Fi/internet speed (4%) 

 Better range of DVDs/CDs (lending times) (4%) 

 More books for Children (3%) 

 More seating, desks, tables (3%) 

 More staff (2%) 

 More downloadable eBooks (2%) 
 



 

QUESTIONNAIRE: Regional Library Community Survey April 2019 (p9381) 

 
1.  Hello and thank you for taking part in our survey which usually takes about 10 minutes to complete. 

We're interested in people's attitudes towards, and usage of, their local Public Libraries. 
The results will be used to help plan how best to meet everybody's library needs.  
 
To obtain a representative sample, please indicate your demographic group.  Are you ...?  
 

  1  Male 14 - 29 years   4  Female 14 - 29 years  
  2  Male 30 - 54 years   5  Female 30 - 54 years  
  3  Male 55 years or more   6  Female 55 years or more  
 
Q1 is necessary for the data weighting 
 
2.  What is the postcode of where you are living?  ________ 
 
3.  Automatic code for Local Government defined region 

 
  01  Bayside – Beaumaris, Brighton, Hampton, Sandringham  
  02  Casey Cardinia - City of Casey, Cardinia Shire  
  03  Corangamite - Colac Otway, Corangamite, Moyne, Warrnambool  
  04  Eastern Region - Cities of Knox, Maroondah & Shire of Yarra Ranges 
   05  Goldfields - Bendigo, Loddon Shire Council, Macedon Ranges Shire, Mount Alexander Shire 
  06  Goulburn Valley - Greater Shepparton City Council, Shires of Moira and Strathbogie  
  07  Monash – City of Monash, Glen/Mount Waverley, Oakleigh, Burwood, Clayton etc. 

 08  Wimmera – Horsham Rural City, Shires of Hindmarsh, Northern Grampians, West Wimmera,           
Yarriambiack  

  09  Yarra Plenty - Cities of Banyule, Whittlesea, Shire of Nillumbik  
  10  Boroondara – Ashburton, Balwyn, Camberwell, Greythorn, Hawthorn, Kew  
  98  Other Area - terminate 
  
4.  Which one of the following statements best describes you?   

  1  I've used a Public Library in the last 12 months  
  2  I've used a Public Library, but not in the last 12 months  
  3  I've never used a Public Library  
 
If Q4 is a 2 or 3 (not used a Public library in the last 12 months) skip to Q6 
Ask Q5 depending upon answer in Q3 
 
 
5.01. Which Library branch have you used most often in the past 12 months?  (bay) 


  101  Beaumaris  (Reserve Rd)  
  102  Brighton  (Wilson St)  
  103  Hampton  (Service St)  
  104  Sandringham  (Waltham St)  
  105  Home Library Service  
  098  Other Library (please specify) 
  
5.02. Which Library branch have you used most often in the past 12 months?  (cc) 


  201  Cranbourne  (Berwick – Cranbourne Rd)  
  202  Doveton  (Autumn Place)  
  203  Emerald  (Belgrave-Gembrook Rd)  
  204  Endeavour Hills  (Raymond McMahon Blvd)  
  205  Hampton Park  (Stuart Ave)  
  206  Narre Warren  (Bunjil Place)  
  207  Pakenham  (John & Henry Sts)  
  208  Cardinia Mobile Library  
  098  Other Library (please specify) 
 
  



 

5.03.  Which Library branch have you used most often in the past 12 months?  (cor) 


  301  Apollo Bay (Pengilley Ave)    
  302  Camperdown (Manifold St)    
  303  Cobden (Victoria St)    
  304  Colac (Queen St)    
  305  Derrinallum (Main St)   
  306  Koroit (High St)    
  307  Mortlake (Dunlop St)   
  308  Port Fairy (Sackville St)   
  309  Terang (High St)  
  310  Timboon (Wark St)  
  311  Warrnambool (Liebig St)  
  312  Outreach/Mobile Library  
  098  Other Library (please specify) 
 
5.04.  Which Library branch have you used most often in the past 12 months? (er) 
 

  401  Bayswater  (High St)  
  402  Belgrave  (Reynolds Lane)  
  403  Boronia  (Park Crescent)  
  404  Croydon  (Civic Square)  
  405  Ferntree Gully  (Burwood Highway)  
  406  Healesville  (River St)  
  407  Knox Mobile Library
  408  Knox  (Shopping Centre)  
  409  Lilydale  (Box Hill Institute)  
  410  Monbulk (Community Reading Room)  
  411  Montrose  (Mt Dandenong Tourist Rd)  
  412  Mooroolbark  (Station St)  
  413  Mt. Evelyn (Wray Cresent)  
  414  Ringwood / Realm (Ringwood Town Centre) 
  415  Rowville  (Stud Park Shopping Centre)  
  416  Yarra Glen (Community Reading Room)  
  417  Yarra Junction  (Hoddle St)  
  418  Yarra Ranges Outreach Library  
  098  Other Library (please specify) 
  
5.05. Which Library branch have you used most often in the past 12 months?  (gf) 


  501  Bendigo  (Hargreaves St)  
  502  Castlemaine  (Barker St)  
  503  Eaglehawk  (Sailors Gully Rd)  
  504  Gisborne  (Hamilton St)  
  505  Heathcote  (High St)  
  506  Kangaroo Flat  (High St)  
  507  Kyneton  (Baynton St)  
  508  Pyramid Hill  (Neighbourhood House, Kelly St)  
  509  Romsey  (Main St)  
  510  Woodend  (corner High & Forest St)  
  511  Mobile Library  
  098  Other Library (please specify) 
  
5.06.  Which Library branch have you used most often in the past 12 months?  (gv) 
 

  601  Cobram (Punt Rd)    
  602  Euroa (Binney St)    
  603  Mooroopna (Morrell St)    
  604  Nagambie (High St)    
  605  Nathalia (Blake St)   
  606  Numurkah (McCaskill St)    
  607  Shepparton (Marungi St)  
  608  Tatura (Casey St)  
  609  Violet Town (Cowslip St)  
  610  Yarrawonga (Belmore St)  
  611  Mobile Library  
  098  Other Library (please specify) 
 
 
  



 

5.07.  Which Library branch have you used most often in the past 12 months?  (mon) 
 

  701  Clayton (Cooke St)  
  702  Glen Waverley (112 Kingsway)  
  703  Mount Waverley (Miller Crs)  
  704  Mulgrave (Mackie Rd)  
  705  Oakleigh (Drummond St)  
  706  Wheelers Hill (Ferntree Gully Rd)   
  707  Monash Federation Centre  
  098  Other Library (please specify) 


5.08.  Which Library branch have you used most often in the past 12 months?  (wim) 
 

  801  Dimboola  (Lloyd St)  
  802  Edenhope  (Elizabeth St)  
  803  Goroke  (Main St)  
  804  Harrow  (Public Hall, Blair St)  
  805  Horsham  (Mc Lachlan St)  
  806  Kaniva  (Baker St)  
  807  Nhill  (Clarence St)  
  808  St. Arnaud  (Municiple offices, Napier St)  
  809  Stawell  (Sloane St)  
  810  Warracknabeal  (Lyle St)  
  811  Mobile Library  
  098  Other Library (please specify) 
 
5.09.  Which Library branch have you used most often in the past 12 months?  (yp) 


  901  Diamond Valley  (Civic Dr)    
  902  Eltham  (Panther Place)    
  903  Ivanhoe  (Upper Heidelberg Rd)    
  904  Lalor  (May Rd)    
  905  Mill Park  (Plenty Rd)   
  906  Rosanna  (Turnham Ave)   
  907  Thomastown  (Main St)    
  908  Watsonia  (Ibbottson St)  
  909  Whittlesea (Laurel St)  
  910  Outreach Vehicle  
  911  Mobile Library  
  098  Other Library (please specify) 
 
5.10.  Which Library branch have you used most often in the past 12 months?  (bor) 


  001  Ashburton (High St)    
  002  Balwyn  (Whitehorse Rd)    
  003  Camberwell  (Camberwell Rd)    
  004  Greythorn Library Lounge (Community Hub in North Balwyn)  
  005  Hawthorn (Glenferrie Rd)   
  006  Kew (Cotham Rd & Civic Dr)   
  098  Other Library (please specify) 
 
Ask All 
6.  On average, how often do you, yourself visit/use the Library?  Is it …? 

 
How often do other adults in the household visit/use the Library? 
 
And other young people, if any in your household, how often do they visit/use the Library? 
 
Please select one answer per line...  

 

Frequency of using the Library 

2+ times 
per Week  Weekly 

Fort- 
nightly Monthly 

Every 2-3  
Months 

Less 
Often Never 

Nobody 
Else / Not 
Applicable 

Don't 
Know 

Yourself   1  2  3  4  5  6  7  8  9  
 

Other Adults in 
the Household  

 1  2  3  4  5  6  7  8  9  

Other Young 
People in House 

 1  2  3  4  5  6  7  8  9  

 
Ask Q7-Q9 if Q4 is a 1 (used a Public library in the last 12 months) 
 



 

7.  Which of the following statements best describe ways in which the Public Library assists your lifestyle? 
Please select all that apply...  


  01  The library helps me to relax  
  02  The library provides a place for me to study  
  03  The library helps me engage with the community  
  04  The library is a recreational outlet for me  
  05  The library gets me out of the house  
  06  The library supports my learning  
  07  The library helps me to be creative  
  08  The library provides low or no cost entertainment  
  98  Other (please specify) 
 
8.  On a scale from 1 to 10, where 1 is 'Not at All Satisfied' up to 10 indicating 'Very Satisfied' - how satisfied are you 

with the overall service provided at the Library?  
 

Satisfaction with Overall Service 

Not at all 
Satisfied 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

Very 
Satisfied 

10 

Don't 
Know 

 

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  
 
 
9.  On a scale from 1 to 10, where 1 is 'Not Likely at all' up to 10 indicating 'Very Likely' – based on your last 

experience at the Library, how likely is it that you would recommend the Library service to your friends, family or 
colleagues?  
 

Likelihood to Recommend the Library 

Not Likely 
at all 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

Very 
Likely 

10 

Don't 
Know 

 

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  
 

 
Ask All 
10.  On a scale from 1 to 10, where 1 is 'Not at All Important' up to 10 indicating 'Very Important' - regardless of your 

own use, how important do you think it is for the Community as a whole that a comprehensive Library service is 
provided in your Council area?    
 

Importance for Community 

Not at all 
Important 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

Very 
Important 

10 

Don't 
Know 

 

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  
 

 
11.  How does your current or family use of the Library compare with say 2 years ago? Are you ......?

  1  Visiting/using the Library more often now 
  2  Visiting/using the Library about the same  
  3  Visiting/using the Library less often now  
 
 
Only ask if Q11 is Code 3 
12.  Why are you visiting/using the Library less often? 
Please select all that apply... 
  
  01  Using online/internet more (at home)  
  02  Reading things other than books  
  03  Not studying any longer  
  04  Go elsewhere for photocopying, computers, free Wi-Fi etc.  
  05  No time, too busy  
  06  Not close to a library  
  07  Children go on their own  
  08  Can't get there  
  09  Using library's eBooks/eAudio  
  98  Other (please specify) 
  



 

Ask All 
13.  Where would you look to find out about Library activities and events?  
Please select all that apply... 
 

  01  Library Newsletter   08  Ask someone  
  02  Local Newspaper   09  Community Centre  
  03  Library Website   10  Local Council / Government Newsletter  
  04  Library Noticeboard   11  Social media  
  05  Local Council / Government Website   98  Other (please specify) 
  06  Internet   99  Don't know  
  07  Library itself  
 
Ask Q14-Q22 if Q4 is a 1 (used a Public library in the last 12 months) 
 
14.  How often do you access the Library's website?  Is it ...? 


  1  Weekly   5  At Least Once a Year  
  2  Fortnightly   6  Less Often  
  3  Monthly   7  Never  
  4  Every 2-3 Months  
 
Only ask if Q14 is Codes 1-6 
15.  On a scale from 1 to 10, where 1 is 'Not at All Satisfied' up to 10 indicating 'Very Satisfied' - how satisfied are you 

with the Library’s website?  
 

Satisfaction with Library website 

Not at all 
Satisfied 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

Very 
Satisfied 

10 

Don't 
Know 

 

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  
 

16.  Thinking of your last visit to a Library, which of the following did you do ... 

Please select all that apply.  Rotate Order 


  01  Borrowed CDs or DVDs  
  02  Borrowed books  
  03  Used the Library's resources to look something up  
  04  Used the Library's free Wi-Fi for school, college or work  
  05  Used the Library's free Wi-Fi for leisure or entertainment  
  06  Used the Library's computers & free Wi-Fi for school, college or work  
  07  Used the Library's computers & free Wi-Fi for leisure or entertainment  
  08  Met somebody you know there (excl. Library Staff)  
  09  Hung out after school  
  10  Used the games consoles  
  11  Went to the Library with Child(ren) to borrow 
  12  Went to the Library with Child(ren) for story time 
  13  Attended an organised event or meeting  
  14  Borrowed a book, CD or DVD on behalf of someone else  
  15  Asked the Library staff for help  
  16  Went to Library to study  
  98  Other (please specify) 
 
17.  On a scale from 1 to 10, where 1 is 'Not at All Important' up to 10 indicating 'Very Important' - how important to 

you are each of the following aspects of your library ....   
 
Please select one answer per line...   Rotate Order 

 

Importance to You 

Not at All 
Import 

-ant 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

Very 
Import 

-ant 
10 

Don't 
Know 

 

Staff Courtesy & 
Helpfulness  

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  

Staff Knowledge   01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  
Events & Activities for 
Adults  

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  

Events & Activities for 
Children  

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  

Lending Services (loan 
period, reservations)  

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  



 

Reference & Information 
Services  

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  

Presentation of the 
Library Building  

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  

Ease of Locating a Book 
or Information  

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  

Ease of Using the 
Library Catalogue  

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  

Ease of Downloading 
eBooks  

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  

 
 
18.  Now thinking about the performance of your Library in providing these services.  Using a scale from 1 to 10, 

where 1 is 'Very Poor' up to '10' indicating 'Excellent', please rate your Library on...   
 
Please select one answer per line...   Rotate Order 

 

Library Performance 

Very  
Poor 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

Excell 
-ent 
10 

Don't 
Know 

 

Staff Courtesy & 
Helpfulness  

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  

Staff Knowledge   01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  
Events & Activities for 
Adults  

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  

Events & Activities for 
Children  

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  

Lending Services (loan 
period, reservations)  

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  

Reference & Information 
Services  

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  

Presentation of the 
Library Building  

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  

Ease of Locating a Book 
or Information  

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  

Ease of Using the 
Library Catalogue  

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  

Ease of Downloading 
eBooks  

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  

 
 
19.  Thinking about Library programs and events, which would you like to see at your Library? 

 _____________________________________________________________________  
 
 
20.  On a scale from 1 to 10, where 1 is 'Not at All Important' up to 10 indicating 'Very Important' - how important to 

you are each of the following aspects of your library ....   
 
Please select one answer per line...  Rotate Order 

 

Importance to You 

Not at All 
Import-

ant 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

Very 
Import 

-ant 
10 

Don’t 
Know 

Opening Hours   01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  
Range & Quality of On-line 
Resources  

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  

Range & Quality of Books 
for Adults  

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  

Range & Quality of Books 
for Children  

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  

Range & Quality of CDs 
and DVDs  

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  

Availability of Computers 
for Public Use  

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  

Parking   01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  
Ease of Using the Library 
Website  

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  

Internet Access provided at 
the Library  

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  

  



 

Range & Quality of 
Downloadable eBooks  

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  

Access to Wi-Fi   01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  
Study spaces/facilities   01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  

 
 
21.  Now thinking about the performance of your Library in providing these services.  Using a scale from 1 to 10, 

where 1 is 'Very Poor' up to '10' indicating 'Excellent', please rate your Library on... 
 
Please select one answer per line...  Rotate Order 

 

Library Performance 

Very 
Poor 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

Excell 
-ent 
10 

Don’t 
Know 

Opening Hours   01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  
Range & Quality of On-line 
Resources  

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  

Range & Quality of Books 
for Adults  

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  

Range & Quality of Books 
for Children  

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  

Range & Quality of CDs 
and DVDs  

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  

Availability of Computers 
for Public Use  

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  

Parking   01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  
Ease of Using the Library 
Website  

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  

Internet Access provided at 
the Library  

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  

Range & Quality of 
Downloadable eBooks  

 01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  

Access to Wi-Fi   01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  
Study spaces/facilities   01  02  03  04  05  06  07  08  09  10  99  

 
 
22.  If you could suggest just one improvement to your Library, what would it be?  

 _____________________________________________________________________  
 
Ask All 
23.  Did you know that many Libraries now have the following FREE? 
 

 YES NO 

Wi-Fi   1  2 

eBooks you can download for your 
own device  

 1  2 

Music you can download for your 
own device  

 1  2 

Access to Ancestry.com  1  2 

Magazines you can download   1  2 

Films or documentaries you can 
stream  

 1  2 

Stem Activities  1  2 
 
24.  So we can derive a population profile, which one of the following age groups are you in ...   
 

  01  14-17 years   09  50-54 years  
  02  18-19 years   10  55-59 years  
  03  20-24 years   11  60-64 years 
  04  25-29 years   12  65-69 years 
   05  30-34 years   13  70-74 years  
  06  35-39 years   14  75-79 years  
  07  40-44 years   15  80 and over  
  08  45-49 years    
   
25.  Do you identify as an Aboriginal or Torres Strait Islander? 

 
  1  Yes    
  2  No  
  9  Prefer not to say  
  



 

26.  Please indicate your gender… 

 
  1  Male    
  2  Female  
  3  Other (please specify)  
 
27.  Which language is spoken most often in your home?  


  01  ENGLISH   35  Japanese  
  03  Afghani   36  Lebanese  
  04  Afrikaans   37  Korean  
  05  Arabic   41  Macedonian  
  06  Assyrian   42  Malay  
  07  Bosnian   43  Maltese  
  11  Chinese - Cantonese   44  Polish  
  12  Chinese - Mandarin   45  Portuguese  
  13  Chinese - Other   46  Russian  
  14  Croatian   51  Serbian  
  15  Dutch   52  Slovenian  
  16  Eritrean   53  Somali  
  17  Ethiopian   54  Spanish  
  21  Farsi   55  Sri Lankan  
  22  Filipino   56  Sudanese Arabic  
  23  French   61  Tamil  
  24  German   62  Turkish  
  25  Greek   63  Ukrainian  
  26  Gujarati   64  Urdu  
  30  Hebrew   65  Vietnamese  
  31  Hindi   66  Yugoslavian  
  32  Hungarian   98  Other (please specify) 
  33  Indonesian   
  34  Italian  
 
28.  And what is the main language you prefer to read in?  


  01  ENGLISH   24  Italian  
  02  Afghani   25  Japanese  
  03  Afrikaans   26  Korean  
  04  Arabic   27  Lebanese  
  05  Assyrian   28  Macedonian  
  06  Bosnian   29  Malay  
  07  Chinese - Cantonese   30  Maltese  
  08  Chinese - Mandarin   31  Polish  
  09  Chinese - Other   32  Portuguese  
  10  Croatian   33  Russian  
  11  Dutch   34  Serbian  
  12  Eritrean   35  Slovenian  
  13  Ethiopian   36  Somali  
  14  Farsi   37  Spanish  
  15  Filipino   38  Sri Lankan  
  16  French   39  Sudanese Arabic  
  17  German   40  Tamil  
  18  Greek   41  Turkish  
  19  Gujarati   42  Ukrainian  
  20  Hebrew   43  Urdu  
  21  Hindi   44  Vietnamese  
  22  Hungarian   45  Yugoslavian  
  23  Indonesian   98  Other (please specify)  
 
29.  What is your occupation status currently?  


  01  Work full-time   07  Home Duties  
  02  Work part-time   08  Retired  
  03  Work casual, temporary   09  Unemployed  
  04  Self-employed   10  Disability Allowance  
  05  Study full-time   98  Other (please specify) 
  06  Study part-time   
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Customer Survey undertaken in April - May 2019 

Nexus Research 

300 Interviews for YPRL  

Internet surveys and Telephone 

The sample size is statistically robust to represent the general community 

The Nexus Survey was undertaken with a syndicate of 10 Library Services 



10 Most Important Service Aspects  

Total Syndicate 

1. Staff Courtesy & Helpfulness 

2. Opening Hours 

3. Range & Quality of Books for Adults 

4. Ease of Locating a Book or Information 

5. Lending Services (loan period, reserve) 

6. Staff Knowledge 

7. Ease of Using the Library Website 

8. Ease of Using the Library Catalogue 

9. Parking 

10. Reference & Information Services 

Yarra Plenty 

1. Opening Hours 

2. Range & Quality of Books for Adults 

3. Staff Courtesy & Helpfulness 

4. Ease of Locating a Book or Information 

5. Staff Knowledge 

6. Ease of Using the Library Website 

7. Lending Services (loan period, reserve) 

8. Parking 

9. Ease of Using the Library Catalogue 

10. Internet Access provided at the Library 



10 Highest Performing Services  

Total Syndicate 

1. Staff Courtesy & Helpfulness 

2. Staff Knowledge 

3. Lending Services (loan period, reserve) 

4. Access to Wi-Fi 

5. Internet Access provided at the Library 

6. Ease of Locating a Book or Information 

7. Presentation of the Library Building 

8. Reference & Information Services 

9. Range & Quality of Books for Adults 

10. Opening Hours 

Yarra Plenty 

1. Staff Knowledge 

2. Lending Services (loan period, reserve) 

3. Access to Wi-Fi 

4. Staff Courtesy & Helpfulness 

5. Internet Access provided at the Library 

6. Ease of Locating a Book or Information 

7. Availability of Computers for Public Use 

8. Opening Hours 

9. Range & Quality of Books for Adults 

10. Ease of Using the Library Website 



 
Overall Performance 

Frequency of visiting the library 
• Average for YPRL 14.9 per year 
• Average for all 10 services 16.2 per year 

 
Frequency of other young people in the household 
• Average for YPRL 17.8 per year 
• Average for all 10 services 19.9 per year 

 
Frequency of other adults in the household 
• Average is similar YPRL 15.9 per year 

 

















 
 
 
 
Those people whose current or family use of the library was less often now than 2 
years ago were asked why.  Amongst this sample of 775 people, the main reasons 
were: 
  
• Using online/internet more at home (56%) 
• No time, too busy (32%) 
• Not studying any longer (19%) 
• Go elsewhere for photocopying, computers, free Wi-Fi etc.(16%) 
• Reading things other than books (14%) 
• Not close to a library (13%) 
• Using library's eBooks, eAudio (8%) 
• Children go on their own (6%) 
• Can't get there  (5%) 
 
 







Conclusion 
 
Opportunities exist for  
• Membership Drive 
• Recommend the Library Service to a friend 
• Review of Opening Hours 
• Targeted messaging regarding Library Services 
• Improved library layouts 
• Work with Councils on Parking 
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Agenda Item 7: Opening Hours Review Report 

Responsible Officer: Chief Executive Officer 

Author: Lisa Dempster, Executive Manager Public Participation  

Attachment: YPRL Opening Hours Review Report Libraries Alive! 

 

REPORT 

INTRODUCTION 

In April 2019 YRPL retained Libraries Alive! to undertake an Opening Hours Review. The 

aims of the review were to: 

 assess the impact of our opening hours to ensure that our opening hours are in line 

with community need at point of delivery and usage trends,  

 ensure that YPRL’s current staffing mix is maximised for the best opening hours 

possible for our communities. 

Based on research and evaluation, Libraries Alive developed a series of recommendations 

and optimal library service opening hours with a range of options for review.  Please note 

that this paper and report is accompanied by a presentation to the Board by Libraries Alive! 

SUMMARY 

Libraries Alive! have developed a report outlining general recommendations for opening 

hours applying to the YPRL recognising that there are three member Councils served.  They 

have also made some specific recommendations relating to individual branches.  

The recommendations aim overall is for a predictable pattern in opening hours across YPRL 

for ease of understanding from the Library user point of view.  

Across the service the recommendation is for a modest 5.24% increase in opening hours, 

which in the view of the consultants, will maximise the best opening hours for the 

community within recognised financial constraints. 

REPORT 

Libraries Alive! are of the view that the following changes to opening hours will align them 

more closely with actual customer behaviour and thereby increase activity rates and 

membership.  

General recommendations:  

 Open earlier  

 Close earlier  

 Designate one main branch in each LGA: (new) Ivanhoe, Eltham and (refurbished) 

Mill Park as a ‘destination library’ with extended opening hours  
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 Adjust weekend opening hours to provide a small improvement in access to provide 

a fine balance between labour cost penalty rates and customers’ changing work/life 

patterns  

 Consider a Summer/Winter timetable, possibly aligned with Daylight Saving, staying 

open for one additional hour in Summer and closing an hour earlier in Winter  

 Extend opening hours into the evening in the October – November exam period  

 With nine separate rostering systems, save many staff hours by implementing a 

single rostering system across the whole library service  

 Vigorously promote then trial the suggested changes to opening hours for a period 

of 12 months (four full seasons), monitoring membership, loans and visits and fine-

tuning if the need is obvious.  

CONSULTATION 

Review was undertaken by Libraries Alive! In close consultation with the Senior Leadership 

Team.  

CRITICAL DATES 

If the Board agrees to move ahead with the recommendations it is suggested that the 12-

month trial be from daylight savings time October 2020 through to September 2021. 

The 2020/21 budget would reflect the operating cost implications. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

If the full recommendations are accepted and there is an increase of opening hours this will 

have a budget impact on YPRL ongoing operational costs.  As an indication only, based on 

an estimation of staffing costs, this budget impact is in the range of $200,000 - $300,000 or 

1.62% - 2.43% of the budget. 

POLICY STRATEGY AND LEGISLATION 

N/A 

LINKS TO STRATEGIC PLAN 

Infrastructure & Innovation: 

Goal: Create innovative digital and physical infrastructure to deliver sector leading services  

Strategy: 

 Providing or adapting flexible spaces that serve the changing needs of our 

community  
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DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

Under section 80C of the Local Government Act 1989 officers providing advice to the 

Library must disclose any interests, including type of interest. 

The Responsible Officer reviewing this report, having made enquiries with the relevant 

members of staff, reports that no disclosable interests have been raised in relation to this 

report. 

CONCLUSION 

Opening Hours is the number one issue of most importance in our recent customer survey 

and YPRL is committed to responding to evolving community need.  The Opening Hours 

Review was commissioned to provide an objective view of our current opening hours across 

all nine (9) branches and to recommend changes based on community need. 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Board resolves that YPRL provide the estimated cost of the implementation of 

the recommendations of the Opening Hours review for the October 2019 Board meeting 

for implementation from October 2020 to September 2021 

 M:  

 S:  
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1. Executive Summary and Recommendations 

1.1. Introduction 

The Brief for the project read as follows: 

. . . to assess the impact of our opening hours to ensure that our opening hours are in line 

with community need at point of delivery and usage trends, and to ensure that our current 

staffing mix is maximised for the best opening hours possible for our communities. 

The methodology developed by Libraries Alive! analysed labour cost, loans and visits figures for a 

typical week (March 25-31, 2019) in order to determine the time of day when demand for service 

occurred, and the costs of staffing to meet that demand. Detailed findings which support the 

recommendations are included in 24 charts attached as Appendix 1.  

The methodology itself, which records labour costs, loans and visits, then derives a cost per 

transaction, is embodied in the spreadsheet referred to in Appendix 3. YPRL staff will be able to use 

this spreadsheet to analyse the costs of their services beyond the completion of this project. 

In this section we present our findings in the form of general recommendations applying to the 

service as a whole, and then specific recommendations relating to individual branches. Libraries 

Alive! is of the view that the following changes to opening hours will align them more closely with 

actual customer behaviour and thereby increase activity rates and address the key issue of low 

overall membership.  

1.2 General recommendations 

R1. Open earlier 

R2. Close earlier 

R3. Designate one main branch in each LGA: (new) Ivanhoe, Eltham and (refurbished) Mill Park as a 

‘destination library’ with extended opening hours 

R4. Adjust weekend opening hours to provide a small improvement in access to provide a fine 

balance between labour cost penalty rates and customers’ changing work/life patterns 

R5. Consider a Summer/Winter timetable, possibly aligned with Daylight Saving, staying open for 

one additional hour in Summer and closing an hour earlier in Winter 

R6. Extend opening hours into the evening in the October – November exam period 

R7. With nine separate rostering systems, save many staff hours by implementing a single rostering 

system across the whole library service 

R8. Vigorously promote then trial the suggested changes to opening hours for a period of 12 months 

(four full seasons), monitoring membership, loans and visits and fine-tuning if the need is 

obvious. 
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1.3. Specific recommendations 

Following on from the meeting with Branch Managers we have aimed for a predictable pattern in 

opening hours. The ‘destination libraries’ are open until at least 7pm or 8pm during the week; all 

libraries are open from 10am on Saturdays and six libraries are open from 12 noon on Sundays. 

There are small labour cost implications in extending weekend opening hours from the current 

79 hrs/wk to the proposed 90 hrs/wk. 

Across the whole service we are suggesting a modest 5.24% increase in opening hours. 

BANYULE before: 176 hrs/wk.  BANYULE after: 185 hrs/wk. DIFFERENCE: + 9 hrs/wk 

IVANHOE – currently 60 hrs/wk; proposed 66 hrs/wk 

1. Open at 9am and close at 8pm Monday to Thursday; open at 9am and close at 7pm on 

Friday (Council may have a funded preference for 9am to 9pm Monday to Friday) 

2. Open at 10am and close at 5pm on Saturday; open at 12 noon and close at 5pm on Sunday 

ROSANNA – currently 56 hrs/wk; proposed 57 hrs/wk 

1. Open at 9am and close at 7pm Monday to Friday 

2. Open at 10am and close at 5pm on Saturday; close Sunday 

WATSONIA  - currently 60 hrs/wk; proposed 62 hrs/wk 

1. Open at 9am and close at 7pm Monday to Friday 

2. Open at 10am and close at 5pm on Saturday; open at 12 noon and close at 5pm on Sunday 

NILLUMBIK before: 111 hrs/wk. NILLUMBIK after: 118 hrs/wk DIFFERENCE: +7 hrs/wk 

DIAMOND VALLEY – currently 51 hrs/wk; proposed 52 hrs/wk  

1. Open at 9am and close at 5pm Monday to Friday 

2. Open at 10am and close at 5pm Saturday; open at 12 noon and close at 5pm on Sunday 

ELTHAM – currently 60 hrs/wk; proposed 66 hrs/wk 

1. Open at 9am and close at 8pm Monday to Thursday; open at 9am and close at 7pm on 

Friday 

2. Open at 10am and close at 5pm on Saturday; open at 12 noon and close at 5pm on Sunday 

WHITTLESEA before:  218.5 hrs/wk. WHITTLESEA after: 229 hrs/wk DIFFERENCE: +10.5 

hrs/wk 

LALOR – currently 60 hrs/wk; proposed 62 hrs/wk 

1. Open at 9am and close at 7pm Monday to Thursday; open at 9am and close at 5pm on Friday 
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2. Open at 10am and close at 5pm on Saturday; open at 12 noon and close at 5pm on Sunday 

MILL PARK – currently 60 hrs/wk; proposed 68 hrs/wk 

1. Open at 9am and close at 8pm Monday to Wednesday; open at 9am and close at 10pm on 

Thursday (late night funding now secured); open at 9am and close at 7pm on Friday 

2. Open at 10am and close at 5pm on Saturday; open at 12 noon and close at 5pm on Sunday 

THOMASTOWN – currently 52 hrs/wk; proposed 55 hrs/wk 

1. Open at 9am and close at 7pm Monday to Thursday; open at 9am and close at 5pm on 

Friday 

2. Open at 10am and close at 5pm on Saturday; close Sunday 

WHITTLESEA – currently 46.5 hrs/wk; proposed 44 hrs/wk 

1. Open at 9am and close at 5pm Monday to Friday 

2. Open at 10am and close at 2pm on Saturday; close Sunday 

ACROSS THE WHOLE SERVICE 

 Current hours/week 505.5 

 Proposed hours/week 532 

 Difference  26.5 hrs/wk 

Appendix 2 shows the proposed opening hours in the form of a table, just like the current opening 

hours card (which came into effect in May 2017). 
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2. Conduct of the opening hours review 

Following an RFQ process, in March 2019 Libraries Alive! Directors Ian McCallum and Sherrey Quinn 

began work on a project:  

to review the spread of opening hours across YPRL’s nine branches to ensure it meets 

community needs 

The methodology proposed by Libraries Alive! and accepted by YPRL involved a quantitative 

evidence-based approach focused on actual usage of library services, rather than a qualitative survey 

of customer preferences. The intention was to use data extracted from the library management 

system to reflect actual customer behaviour expressed in terms of loans and visits, as opposed to 

predicted or anticipated customer behaviour usually gathered through customer surveys. Loans and 

visits data would be aggregated and then be mapped against labour costs to derive an ‘effectiveness 

measure’. This would allow YPRL to see at a glance the time of day when staff were at their most 

productive, i.e. when the ratio of labour costs to loans and visits was lowest (for a given labour cost 

the ratio is lowest during periods when loans and visits are highest). Guided by this information 

opening hours could be scrutinised in terms of effectiveness and if necessary, modified to align more 

closely with customer behaviour. 

An additional benefit of this approach was the development of an analytical tool in the form of a 

structured spreadsheet for library managers to carry out their own analyses on their own data 

beyond the conclusion of the project. 

2.1 Background to findings 

To construct the evidence base for assessing the effectiveness of current opening hours it was 

decided to record loans and visits and labour costs for each hour the nine libraries were open for the 

YPRL-chosen week of 25-31 March 2019 – a relatively ‘normal’ week outside school holidays and 

with comparatively few staff absences for training and sick or recreation leave. It was quickly 

realised that staff were rostered on, not on an hourly basis, but in 15 minute ‘chunks’, so data 

collection and analysis would also need to be done on a 15-minute basis. This plain fact quadrupled 

work involved in labour cost data recording and provided an early indication of the need for a 

simplified rostering system based on whole rather than part hours. 

It also became clear that despite having identical opening and closing times libraries differed in how 

long before opening and how long after closing there were paid staff present. For this and other 

reasons such as enabling direct comparisons between libraries our analysis has focused on the loans 

and visits transactions during advertised opening hours when libraries have staff present and when 

the costs of transactions can be reported against customer activity. 

Using a spreadsheet developed by Libraries Alive! Branch Managers were asked to record by pay 

scale and in 15 minute increments, each staff member rostered on, plus other staff on leave, away 

on training courses or working in another branch but whose labour costs were nevertheless carried 

by the branch for which the data was entered. For most libraries – depending on hours of opening – 
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this involved entering approximately 240 (60 hours) separate pay scale values. Libraries Alive! then 

converted the pay scale data to dollar figures using the current EBA rates. 

Next, the Library Systems Administrator extracted door count and loans data, hour by hour, for the 

nominated week. Libraries Alive! matched this data with the labour cost data to show salary costs, 

loans and visits, hour by hour, for the nominated week, for each of the nine libraries. Labour costs 

were then divided by the sum of the loans and visits to derive a kind of effectiveness measure where 

the lower the number, the more cost-effective the hour of opening. For example, for a library with a 

staff cost of $100/hr between 10am and 11am, and 100 visits and 100 loans in this same time 

period, the effectiveness calculation would be $100/(100+100) = $0.5 transaction cost for that hour. 

Similarly, for another hour in the day, if the staff cost stayed the same but there were only 50 visits 

and 50 loans, the cost would double to $1.00 per transaction. In practice the average transaction 

cost for most branches, for the week, varied between $1.00 and $2.78. Seven of the nine branches 

averaged less than $1.40 per transaction; only Diamond Valley and Whittlesea were outside this 

range. 

What follows are general observations made by Libraries Alive! on the basis of analysis of costs and 

activity for each of the nine libraries (mobile and outreach services were out of scope). The evidence 

base was condensed into 24 separate charts and these are referred to in the text below and included 

as Appendix 1.  This information was presented to and discussed with Branch Managers at their 

meeting on 27th June. 

Also included here are the comments on opening hours made by Branch Managers in the period  

15–18 April when Libraries Alive!, accompanied by the Manager Public Participation, visited all nine 

libraries to meet staff, explain the project, view the physical facilities and gain an understanding of 

operational conditions – such as the new library scheduled for Ivanhoe and the refurbishment then 

under way (and now completed) at Mill Park. 

Branch specific comments and analysis follow the general observations below. 

2.2 General comments 

1. Chart 2 shows visits in the first hour after opening can be as high as 20%-25% of total visits for 

the day, and visits are generally higher earlier in the day and earlier in the week. See also Charts 

4, 5 and 6. This high demand at opening time and tapering off later in the day leads us to the 

view that there is scope for variations such as opening earlier and closing earlier. Branch 

Managers have also suggested opening longer on weekends, considering a Summer/Winter 

timetable, and extending evening hours at exam times. 

2. High per hour costs at set up and close reflect staff present but little or no loans/visits. This holds 

for all branches. 

3. The bump in visit numbers for all branches after 3pm is most likely school kids prior to returning 

home later (when their parents have returned from work?). 
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4. The bump in loan figures for all branches between 5pm and 6pm reflects the automatic renewal 

of overdues. 

5. The average transaction cost when libraries are staffed is less than $1.50, except for Diamond 

Valley ($1.89) and Whittlesea ($2.70). Lalor has the lowest transaction cost at $1.01 followed by 

Eltham at $1.12, Ivanhoe at $1.16, Watsonia at $1.19, Thomastown at $1.22, Rosanna at $1.37 

and Mill Park at $1.38. By Council, the average cost per transaction when libraries are staffed is 

Banyule: $1.24; Nillumbik $1.51; and Whittlesea $1.58. See Chart 1. 

6. Library location, especially proximity to retail precincts, is a factor in use. The availability of 

parking also affects patronage. 

7. Eltham and Mill Park had the highest loans; Lalor and Eltham the highest visits. See Charts 3, 4, 

and 5. 

8. Across all branches there are almost twice as many loans as visits. See Chart 6. Only 

Thomastown had more visits than loans; Whittlesea had almost as many visits as loans (Chart 3). 

9. Ivanhoe (Chart 8), Rosanna (Chart 10), Watsonia (Chart 12), Eltham (Chart 16), and Whittlesea 

(Chart 24) have noticeable spikes in transaction costs over the 12noon to 2pm lunch period. The 

most likely explanation is lower transaction volumes and higher paid staff covering for lower 

paid staff. 

10. Although we think it was the best we could get, we still have some reservations about the 

accuracy of the data – not enough to invalidate the findings, but sufficient to warrant caution in 

interpretation, especially in relation to the positioning of door counters. 

2.3 Comments by branch 

In this section we have compared opening hours with staff present hours, and selected Wednesday 

as reasonably representative of typical day for all branches. 

BANYULE  

IVANHOE 

Wed open 10am. Staffed from 9am. 

Wed close 8:30pm. Staffed till 8:45pm. 

Manager suggests: Open Sunday 10am-5pm (Currently 1pm-5pm). Open at 9am in new building. 

Charts 7 and 8 show visits and transaction costs for the whole week. 

 Visits high on opening at 10am; tailing off after 4pm; evenings quiet 

 High transaction costs prior to opening – peaking at $16.08 between 9am and 10am on 

Monday; moderate transaction costs (mostly less than $4) prior to closing. 
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ROSANNA 

Wed open 10am. Staffed from 8:30am. 

Wed close 8:30pm. Staffed till 8:45 pm. 

Manager suggests: Open Sundays (Currently closed). Could close before 8:30pm on Thursdays. Could 

open earlier one or two days (possibly 8am or 9am) and close earlier some evenings. 

Charts 9 and 10 show visits and transaction costs for the whole week. 

 Visits high on opening at 10am; tailing off after 7pm 

 Very high transaction costs prior to opening – peaking at $94.78 between 9am and 10am on 

Wednesday; moderate transaction costs prior to closing ($13.91 on Monday; otherwise less 

than $5). 

WATSONIA 

Wed open 10am. Staffed from 9am. 

Wed close 8:30pm. Staffed till 8:45pm. 

Manager suggests: Open 9am-5pm Saturday (Currently 10am-5pm). Open 12noon-5pm Sunday 

(Currently 1pm-5pm). Evenings quiet; consider Summer/Winter schedule. 

Charts 11 and 12 show visits and transaction costs for the whole week. 

 Visits high on opening at 10am; constant during the day; tailing off in the evening 

 Very high transaction costs prior to opening – peaking at $61.05 between 9am and 10am on 

Friday; moderate transaction costs prior to closing ($10.22 on Sunday; otherwise less than 

$6). 

NILLUMBIK  

DIAMOND VALLEY 

Wed open 10am. Staffed from 8:45am. 

Wed close 5:30pm. Staffed till 5:45pm. 

Manager suggests: Open 9am-5pm Sunday (Currently 1pm-5pm). 

Charts 13 and 14 show visits and transaction costs for the whole week. 

 Visits high on opening at 10am and especially high between 3pm and 4pm; little late 

afternoon activity 

 Very high transaction costs prior to opening at 10am – peaking at $135.47 between 9am and 

10am on Wednesday; moderate transaction costs prior to closing ($9 on Saturday; otherwise 

less that $5). 
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ELTHAM 

Wed open 10am. Staffed from 8:45am. 

Wed close 8:30pm. Staffed till 8:45pm. 

Manager suggests: Open at 9am rather than 10am; Open 9am-5pm Sunday (Currently 1pm-5pm); 

Close at 6pm rather than 5pm on Friday. 

Charts 15 and 16 show visits and transaction costs for the whole week. 

 Visits high on opening at 10am and remaining high until late afternoon/early evening 

 High transaction costs prior to opening – peaking at $65.52 from 8am to 9am on Thursday; 

moderate transaction costs prior to closing ($18.24 on Saturday; otherwise less than $4). 

WHITTLESEA  

LALOR 

Wed open 10am. Staffed from 8:45am. 

Wed close 8:30pm. Staffed till 8:30am. 

Manager suggests: Could open at 9am with staff present from 8:30am; Close earlier during the 

week, open later on Friday. 

Charts 17 and 18 show visits and transaction costs for the whole week. 

 Visits high on opening at 10am, especially high between 3pm and 4pm; remaining high to 

very high through to late afternoon/early evening 

 Moderate increase (less than $7) in transaction costs prior to opening and closing. 

MILL PARK 

Wed open 10am. Staffed from 9am. 

Wed close 8:30pm. Staffed till 8:45pm. 

Manager suggests: Wednesday night not very busy; could open earlier at 9:30am; open later for 

students, especially near exam times; open 10am-5pm Sunday (Currently 1pm-5pm). 

Charts 19 and 20 show visits and transaction costs for the whole week. 

 Visits high on opening at 10am and constant through the day to 8pm 

 Very high transaction costs prior to opening – peaking at $70.20 between 9am and 10am on 

Thursday; low transaction costs (slightly more than $3) prior to closing. 
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THOMASTOWN 

Wed open 10am. Staffed from 9am. 

Wed close 8:30pm. Staffed till 8:30pm. 

Manager suggests: Library quiet after 5:30pm; Mon, Tues, Wed quiet; open 8:30am-9am, close at 

7pm; Close at 3pm or 4pm on Saturday (Currently 1pm); Need 30 mins to set up and 15 mins to 

close; open later at exam time. 

Charts 21 and 22 show visits and transaction costs for the whole week. 

 Visits high on opening at 10am, remaining consistent through the day; tailing off after 7pm 

 Very high transactions costs prior to opening – peaking at $79.35 between 9am and 10am on 

Thursday; moderate transaction costs (less than $5) prior to closing. 

WHITTLESEA 

Wed open 9am. Staffed from 8:45am. 

Wed close 8:30 pm. Staffed till 8:45pm. 

Manager suggests: Could open at 10am rather than am; Wed night very quiet; could close earlier 

and have more staff during the day; Summer/Winter schedule worth trying. Attendance at programs 

(1700/quarter?) not captured if they are held in the community room. 

Charts 23 and 24 show visits and transaction costs for the whole week. 

 Low visit numbers across the whole day 

 High transaction costs across the whole day, but peaking at a relatively low $10.18 between 

9am and 10am on Monday. 

2.4 Presentation of findings to branch managers 

A discussion paper detailing findings to date and including the 24 charts was distributed to Branch 

Managers in time for their meeting on 27 June 2019. At this meeting Libraries Alive! summarised the 

project, presented and explained the charts, and invited comment. The outcome from this meeting 

was a draft set of recommendations, incorporating the Branch Managers’ comments, submitted to 

YPRL management on 9 July. Senior managers next considered the recommendations in the light of 

their impact on costs and current operations and forwarded their comments to Libraries Alive! who 

incorporated them in this report.  
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APPENDIX 1. Charts 1–24 

Chart 1 
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Chart 2 
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Chart 3 
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Chart 4 
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Chart 5 
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Chart 6 
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Chart 7 

 

 



  YPRL Opening hours review 

 
 
 

© Libraries Alive! 2019   page 19 of 37 

Chart 8 
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Chart 9 
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Chart 10 
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Chart 11 
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Chart 12 

 

 



  YPRL Opening hours review 

 
 
 

© Libraries Alive! 2019   page 24 of 37 

Chart 13 
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Chart 14 
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Chart 15 
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Chart 16 
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Chart 17 
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Chart 18 
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Chart 19 
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Chart 20 
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Chart 21 
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Chart 22 
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Chart 23 
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Chart 24 

 



  YPRL Opening hours review 

 
 
 

© Libraries Alive! 2019   page 36 of 37 

 

APPENDIX 2. Proposed opening hours card 
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APPENDIX 3. Opening hours labour and transaction cost template. 

This template is a working tool and is therefore presented in a separate Excel file. 
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Agenda Item 8: Maker Space Report  

Responsible Officer: Chief Executive Officer 

Author: Lisa Dempster, Executive Manager Public Participation  

Attachment: Maker Space Plan Year 1 Review 

 

REPORT 

INTRODUCTION 

YPRL’s Maker Space Plan was developed in June 2018. After one year, it has been reviewed 

to assess outcomes and ensure ongoing relevancy. This report is for the Board’s 

information. 

SUMMARY 

The Maker Space Plan introduced a strategic direction to YRPL’s Maker Spaces to maximise 

existing programming and existing spaces. The four goals of the Create, Connect, 

Collaborate & Learn: Maker Spaces at YPRL Plan cover the approach, the program, 

marketing and staff development.  Its goals are: 

 Goal 1: Adopt regional approach to Maker Space program   

 Goal 2: Develop high-impact programs that invite patrons to create, connect, 

collaborate & learn 

 Goal 3: Increase presence through marketing and advocacy  

 Goal 4:  Support staff through learning opportunities   

REPORT 

The goals of YPRL’s Maker Space Plan are still resonant and the organisation has advanced 

towards achieving some of the goals.  

Key outcomes include: 

 Establishment of a Garden Maker Space at Diamond Valley Library including a 

significant program of events and display of related collection items, including the 

creation of a seed library. 

 Establishment of a portable Coding & Robotics Maker Space that is shared between 

branches including a significant program of events across the region. 

 Introduced events, workshops and mentoring opportunities to support creative 

entrepreneurs including collaborations with Nillumbik and Whittlesea. 

 Reviewed Watsonia Library’s Write & Publish Maker Space and successfully 

introduced the “Unlock your Creativity” stream aimed at the creatively-minded  - a 

shift from the emerging writer/publishing focus previously in place. 

 Introduced the YPRL wide STEM-focused Fun Palace event showcasing community 

groups and inviting people to participate in hands-on learning activities.  
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Across all branches Maker Space attendances rose by 32% to 10,339 – of which a quarter 

were attending a library program or event for the first time, indicating that Maker Space 

programs are attractive to non-traditional library users. The survey also indicated that 

Maker Space programming at YPRL is of a very high standard.  

Opportunities to evolve our Maker Spaces in the future include: 

 Increase focus on creativity- and problem-solving programs that are not workshop 

based. Small businesses, developing creativity, connecting artists and makers can 

also help activate our Maker Spaces outside of organized event times.  

 Seek community partnerships and volunteers to deliver programs and activations – 

connecting community for learning outcomes and amplifying the reach of the 

library to new communities.  

 Develop drop-in, flexible spaces that allow self-directed use by individuals or 

community groups.  

Priority actions for year 2 are based on further working towards the overall Plan’s goals: 

 Build capability in staff to establish community partnerships, ensuring the library 

can present collaborative and co-designed programs.   

 Establish one new Maker Space partner per branch to collaborate in the delivery of 

a program that meets community need.  

 Present “Maker Month” – a regional program to support and promote our local 

community of creatives and makers.  

 Grow programs and collections that support makers and creative entrepreneurs in 

our community.  

 Investigate opportunities for presenting drop-in, flexible and self-directed Maker 

Spaces at YPRL libraries.  

 Targeted marketing and PR campaign to promote YPRL’s Maker Space activities 

through Councils, community partners and local area networks.  

 

CONSULTATION 

This Review was undertaken by the Senior Leadership Team, informed from ongoing 

feedback on the program and the coordinators delivering the program.  

CRITICAL DATES 

N/A 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

Grants will be sought to augment the current budget to ensure the continued development 

of YPRL’s Maker Space Plan. 
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POLICY STRATEGY AND LEGISLATION 

N/A 

LINKS TO STRATEGIC PLAN 

Public Participation 

Goal:  Inspire our diverse communities to participate in empowering activities and learning 

opportunities 

Strategies: 

 Promoting branch libraries as the community hub for learning, creating and 

connecting  

 Delivering Maker Spaces that empower the creative and entrepreneurial 

aspirations of our communities 

DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

Under section 80C of the Local Government Act 1989 officers providing advice to the 

Library must disclose any interests, including type of interest. 

The Responsible Officer reviewing this report, having made enquiries with the relevant 

members of staff, reports that no disclosable interests have been raised in relation to this 

report. 

CONCLUSION 

The continued positive community response across a range of demographics to the 

opportunities within the Maker Space program to create and make supports the continued 

emphasis on growing this program.  With support in skills development for YPRL staff and 

seeking key partners this program will continue to grow and deliver STEAM based skills and 

opportunities to the communities of Banyule, Nilumbik and Whittlesea. 

RECOMMENDATION 

That the Board resolves to note the Create, Connect, Collaborate & Learn: Maker Spaces 

at YPRL Plan Year 1 Review.  

 

 M:  

 S:  

  

  



CREATE, CONNECT, COLLABORATE & LEARN:  

MAKER SPACES AT YPRL 

Year 1 Progress Report  

Context  
In September 2018 YPRL introduced a new targeted program plan, the CREATE, CONNECT, 

COLLABORATE & LEARN:  MAKER SPACES AT YPRL.  

The Plan was developed to introduce a strategic direction to YRPL’s Maker Spaces, to maximise the 

existing programming that was being developed in ad-hoc ways at YPRL’s branch libraries.  

Maker Space Plan – goals  
The four goals of the Create, Connect, Collaborate & Learn: Maker Spaces at YPRL plan cover the 

approach, the program, marketing and staff development.  The Goals are: 

 Goal 1: Adopt regional approach to Maker Space program   

 Goal 2: Develop high-impact programs that invite patrons to create, connect, collaborate & 

learn 

 Goal 3: Increase presence through marketing and advocacy  

 Goal 4:  Support staff through learning opportunities   

 

These goals embodied the key changes in approach to Maker Spaces, which included:  

 Introduce resource-sharing practices including sharing of staff and programs across branches  

 Develop a flagship annual regional program promoting Maker Space  

 Embed Maker Space activities into regular program at all branches  

 Introduce regional youth learning opportunities 

 A regional marketing campaign 

 Build staff learning opportunities into the annual training calendar 

 Develop Maker Spaces programs that go beyond workshops and single activations 

 

Priority Actions for Year 1 included: 

 Establish community reference group 

 Build library collections and develop bibliographies to support further learning 

 Establish working model for portable Maker Space kits 

 Review Write & Publish Maker Space 

 Seek partners for collaboration to ensure impact of programs and collections 

 Update marketing collateral – website copy, banners, etc.  

 

 



Maker Space Year 1: What we achieved  
 

In year 1, significant Maker Space initiatives included: 

 Establishment of a Garden Maker Space at Diamond Valley Library including a significant 

program of events and display of related collection items. And seed library! 

 Establishment of a portable Coding & Robotics Maker Space that is shared between 

branches including a significant program of events 

 Establishment of portable Crafts Maker Space kits to share between YPRL and for use in 

outreach programs 

 Upgrades to fittings and furnishings and investment in technology and safety upgrades at 

Watsonia, Eltham and Ivanhoe Libraries 

 Ongoing investment in materials purchases to support Maker Space programming and 

workshops 

 Undertook staff training in coding and programming of the NAO Robot 

 Introduced events, workshops and mentoring opportunities to support creative 

entrepreneurs including collaborations with Nillumbik and Whittlesea 

 Developed digital resource lists and bibliographies to support creative entrepreneurs, shared 

online and through Council business units  

 Reviewed Watsonia Library’s Write & Publish Maker Space and successfully introduced the 

“Unlock your Creativity” stream aimed at the creatively-minded  - a shift from the emerging 

writer/publishing focus previously in place 

 Undertook a workshops program which saw Learning Coordinators presenting a variety of 

workshops in their expertise at libraries other than their home branch  

 Introduced STEM-focused Fun Palace event showcasing community groups and inviting 

people to participate in hands-on learning activities  

 Undertook an update of Maker Space marketing copy on website and collateral such as 

banners and in-branch posters 

 Created collections profiles to ensure Maker Space areas are supported by the collection, 

including investment in youth-focused coding and robotics collection 

 

Key statistics from Year 1 –  

 
 Maker Space attendance rose by 32% to 10,339 

 

 93% of Maker Space attendants rated their satisfaction with the event as very good or 

excellent (good: 7%, very good: 26%, excellent: 67%) 

 

 26% of survey respondents had never attended a library program or event before, indicating 

that Maker Space programs are attractive to non-traditional and new library users.  

 

 A wide range of ages attend Maker Space events. 60-70: 22%; 10-20: 17%; 40-50: 15%; 50-

60: 12%; 30-40: 11%; Under 10: 9%; 70+: 7% and 20-30: 6% 



 

 42% of attendees heard of Maker Space events via YPRL brochure, 26% via the website, 13% 

via posters/display, 4% via our social media channels and 2% via our newsletter, meaning a 

total of 87% of participants heard about the program through internal YPRL marketing 

 

Year 1 Priority Actions – Review  
 

Priority Action Achieved  Review  

Establish community reference 

group.  

 

Underway  YPRL joined the NorthSTEM and Innovation 
Committee 

Build library collections and 

develop bibliographies to 

support further learning.  

 

Underway  Collections profiles introduced to ensure books 
and other collections items support Maker Space 
topics 
Increased focus on in-branch displays  

Establish working model for 

portable Maker Space kits.  

 

Achieved  Portable Maker Space kits were introduced: 

 Coding & robotics kits  

 Crafting kits 
 Paper making kits  

Review Write & Publish Maker 

Space.  

 

Achieved  New approach trialled with a focus on fostering 
creativity and self-expression rather than 
writing/publishing skills.  

Seek partners for collaboration 

to ensure impact of programs 

and collections.  

 

Underway  Program partnerships in place at branch level – 
such as Maker Space collaboration with 
Thomastown Neighbourhood House 
YPRL programs increasingly connecting with and 
supporting community groups – such as Fun 
Palace program  
 

Update marketing collateral – 

website copy, banners, etc.  

 

Underway  Website copy updated  
Increased focus on staff lists and recommended 
reading lists related to Maker Space  
 

 

What was challenging?  
 Learning to work collaboratively – sharing resources and staff expertise across the region 

was perceived as challenging due to time and rostering constraints 

 Taking a partnership approach to programming may be enhanced by offering training in how 

to develop meaningful partnerships for Coordinators 

 Marketing Maker Spaces is challenging because of diverse offer and lack of awareness in 

some part of the community about what a Maker Space is/does 



 Program still very focused on “teaching skills” through workshops and events. More practice 

in delivering creativity and problem-solving focused programs that are not workshop-based 

is needed. Additionally many workshops continue to be delivered by library staff – making 

connections with community to deliver outcomes is needed 

 YPRL’s focus to date on workshops has resulted in a highly organised and curated Maker 

Space experience for patrons. Moving forward, YPRL plans on investigating creating 

opportunities for drop-in, flexible spaces that allow self-directed use by individuals or 

community groups 

Year 2 – next steps & priority actions  
 

The goals of YPRL’s Maker Space Plan are still resonant. 

Priority Actions for Year 2: 

 Build capability in staff to establish community partnerships, ensuring the library can present 

collaborative and co-designed programs 

 Establish one new Maker Space partner per branch to collaborate in the delivery of a 

program that meets community need 

 Present “Maker Month” – a regional program to support and promote our local community 

of creatives and makers 

 Grow programs and collections that support makers and creative entrepreneurs in our 

community 

 Investigate opportunities for presenting drop-in, flexible and self-directed Maker Spaces at 

YPRL libraries 

 Targeted marketing and PR campaign to promote YPRL’s Maker Space activities through 

Councils, community partners and local area networks 
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Agenda Item 9: ICT Progress Report  

Responsible Officer: Chief Executive Officer 

Author: David Kay, Executive Manager Technology and Assets 

Attachment: ICT Progress Report 

REPORT 

SUMMARY 

This report is for the Board’s information. 

INTRODUCTION 

There are many completed projects, with a number of other projects active and progressing 

well. These projects are outlined in the ICT status spreadsheet, which is attached. 

REPORT 

The ICT Plan Roll Out 

As part of the Technology and Assets portfolio planning ICT equipment upgrades, the 

updated status is as follows: 

 Desktop and Laptop Refresh Project   

With the opening of Mill Park Library and Library Support Services new premises 

operational, all desktops and laptops have now been deployed. 

 Pharos PC booking and Print Management Implementation 

The kiosks are now fully operational across all branches. 

 Move from microwave network to NBN and TPG Fibre networks 

Currently NBN is installed at LSS, Mill Park, Whittlesea, Eltham, Rosanna, Ivanhoe and Lalor. 

Thomastown - NBN is expected to be connected by December 2019. 

Watsonia and Diamond Valley remain on the microwave network and encounter periodic 

network issues that impact on library users.  The NBN is not due to be available to Watsonia 

until January – March 2020, and Diamond Valley until April – June 2020.  To ensure all our 

branches have adequate, fast internet connections, YPRL has decided to move both these 

branches to TPG fibre and remove them from the microwave network.  This will ensure a 

reliable and fast network connection to both branches until NBN is connected in these 

areas. 

Bibliotheca smartShelf trial 

The Bibliotheca smartShelf was installed at Diamond Valley in early May for a 4-week trial. 

Feedback from Diamond Valley staff regarding the pilot has been received and it has been 

decided to conduct a further trial at Mill Park Library.  Feedback has also been sought from 
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Brisbane City Council Library Service which has rolled out this technology to 25 of their 

Branches.  Assessment of the further trial at Mill Park trial will be undertaken before a 

decision will be made to the suitability of this technology for the Library Service.  

CONSULTATION 

Consultation was undertaken with the Executive Leadership team, the ICT team, and local 

Library staff. 

LINKS TO STRATEGIC PLAN 

Infrastructure and Innovation 

Goal: Create innovative digital and physical infrastructure to deliver sector leading services 

 

Strategies: 

 Nurturing and supporting innovation using technology and creative spaces 

 Providing robust and flexible network infrastructure, sustaining our service delivery 

 Responding and evolving as technology needs of our community change 

 Providing or adapting flexible spaces that serve the changing needs of our 

community 

DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

Under section 80C of the Local Government Act 1989 officers providing advice to the 

Library must disclose any interests, including type of interest. 

The Responsible Officer reviewing this report, having made enquiries with the relevant 

members of staff, reports that no disclosable interests have been raised in relation to this 

report. 

CONCLUSION 

The ICT team continues to roll out the 3-year ICT plan while also working to adapt and 

ensure our networks and systems are secure, efficient, cost effective and relevant to the 

needs of the YPRL staff and patrons.  

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT the Board resolves to receive the report 

 M:  

 S:  

  

  



No. Prog? Activity
Priority     

1 to 5
Description Status Comments Relative cost Start date

Complete 

date

1 P ICT Audit 1 Hardware and Software Active Internal review of ICT systems and processes to determine optimised practice and pricing. Met with Casey Cardinia and Melb City Council to discuss their tech innovations None Q1 2019 Q3 2019
2 P Core infrastructure 1 Replace branch firewalls and switches Active Firewalls and switches remain to be changed at Thomastown, Watsonia and Diamond Valley. These will be done shortly. $73,000 Q2 2018 Q4 2019
3 P RFID upgrade 1 Replacement for current RFID self-service units & other equipment Active Bibliotecha installed at Mill Park, and will RFQ for the remaining in new FY. Existing Q1 2019 Q42019
4 P Residual ADSL 1 ADSL connections being removed and replaced by NBN Active Services being removed as branches are migrated from the wireless network. Remaining brances Thomastown, Watsonia and Diamond Valley are in progress. None 15/05/17 TBD

5 P LSS move 1 LSS move and ICT technology Active PC's are in place, and NBN connected. Currently working on the ICT backend system e.g. phones, Internet and network access to be fully operational. The LSS servers will remain at Whittlesea Council for now. $16,000 Q2 2019 Q3 2019

6 P NBN 1 NBN Roll Out Active NBN has been installed  at Lalor, Whittesea, Eltham, Rosanna, Ivanhoe and the new LSS. Thomastown should be installed late 2019. Low Q2 2019 Q3 2019

7 P Fibre Networks 1 TGP Fibre Active Watsonia and Diamond Valley are experiencing intermittent but regular internet and network issues. As NBN will not be installed until 2020 in these areas, we are installing TGP Fibre to these branches. $800 each pm Q3 2019 Q4 2019

8 P ICT Policy 1 ICT Policy and Procedure Active Draft ICT Policy completed and currently in consultation with Consultative Committee and YPRL $4000 Q3 2019 Q3 2019

9 YPRL service help desk 2 Review / replace or optimise ticketing system Pending Temporary hold until internal ICT Audit conducted. Need to integrate with other departments and perhaps new Finance system $6000 Q3 2017 Q4 2019

10 P Branch security 2 Remedial works resulting from completed security audit Active Remedial action meetings with Branch and Council staff ongoing. Internal actions underway. TBD Q1 2019 Q2 2020

11 BCM & DR risk 2 Update ICT Business Continuity Management and Disaster Recovery plan. Pending BCM Test to be conducted. QUEST advised they are able to assist. None / low Q3 2019 Q4 2019
12 P Network segmentation 2 Introduce network segmentation for network security Active Completed at Rosanna, Ivanhoe, Whittlesea, Eltham and Lalor - remain to be changed at Mill Park, Thomastown, Watsonia and Diamond Valley. Low Q3 2018 TBD
13 P LMS tender 3 MAV and PLV tender process for new Library Management System contract Active Board approval for one year extension. Currently working with PLV on stats required for a quote to join the PLV LMS tender. TBA Q2 2019 Q4 2020

14 P Bibliotecha smartShelf trial 3 The Bibliotecha smartShelves self checking system Active A shelf have been installed at Diamond Valley for trial. Will meet Bibliotecha on tech issues and conduct another trial at Mill Park to determine next steps and roll out to relevant branches TBA Q2 2019 TBD
15 Online Gaming 3 Gaming screens, consols and games Active Have increased budget and set up a working group to increase gaming spaces and offers to increase youth participation in libraries 8,000 Q3 2019 Q3 2020
16 P Document Management 3 Investigate the options for a Document Management System at YPRL (Finance Dept) Active Prompted by HLB Mann Judd Audit and aimed at improving the management of Corporate documents & records. This will piggy back on updating the Finance System. Possible use of Office 365 Sharepoint TBA Q3 2018 Q4 2019
17 P YPRL Website 3 Review look and feel and user experience Active Working group reviewing and updating the website look and feel. Low Q2 2019 Q3 2019

18 P Smartphone App review 3 Review Solus App and Biblio App offers Active Review App functionaility and pricing. Solus App should be offered as part of the PLV Mav LMS tender TBD Q2 2019 Q4 2019

19 Position descriptions 4 Review all PDs at Performance Review Pending Review actual workloads and work being done. For P&C to enact if any changes. None TBD TBD

20 Corporate images 5 Establish dedicated storage & image management system (marketing) Paused 1 Tb partition created. Metadata discussions and software application selection underway. None / low Q4 2016 Q2 2019

21 YPRL Intranet 5 Explore options Active Investigate update, including using Sharepoint from Office 365 None / low TBD TBD

22 RFID system review 5 Optimise for utility & productivity Unstarted RFID system to be reviewed for technology updates, and how they interact with the cuttrent technology e.g. smart shelves. None TBD TBD

23 Eltham Sorter 5 Following user survey, review options for open and closed hours returns. Paused Current sorter will remain for now, unless Council purchase a new sorter. YPRL may look at smart bins instead. TBA Q3 2017 Q4 2019

24 P Robotics 5 Review the corporate approach & activity Active Region wide, support STEM activities etc. NAO robot serviced and working on new programming. $16,000 1/07/17 Q4 2019

25 P Finance/Payroll System 5 Implement new Finance System Active Currently ICT on working group to assist choose and implement the new Finance system TBA Q3 2019 Q5 2020

Done Improve & simplify reporting to Councils of key library indicators Complete Work with CoW Corporate Accountability & Performance Dept. to develop new reporting template. None Oct. 2017 Q1 2018
Done Thin clients and staff LMS traffic still goes through ADSL connections. Complete Services reviewed for consistency. None 15/05/17 Q2 2018

Done CCTV camera installation & commissioning Complete Policy & procedures developed. Signs installed. Remedial actions  complete. $6000 Q4 2016 Q1 2018

Done Evaluate the benefits of an Office 365 migration Complete Project completed - al mailboxes migrated $10,500 21/09/17 Q1 2018

Done Mobile Device Management Complete Implement new Mobile Device Management system. Jamf Pro platform selected. Implemented. $1066 PA 25/09/17 Q1 2018

Done Calculate which iPads are due for replacement at each branch & replace Complete Mix of iPad 4th Gen, iPad Air & iPad Air2. Also 50 iPads from grant. iPads delivered, configured & rolled out. Existing 1/08/17 Q1 2018

Done Create Demilitarised Zone within YPRL network Complete Groundwork for secure external communications to YPRL network assets. Project completed. $6,000 Q4 2017 Q1 2018

Done Identify, consolidate and manage all assets in a common online portal. Complete Use Equigroup's Asset Advantage portal. All  assets now entered. None 9/10/17 Q1 2018
Done Install Remote Desktop Gateway Complete Improve security of remote access following brute force attack on YPRL. $3,000 9/10/17 23/5/18
Done Implement Recovery Manager for Active Directory Complete Important BCM component aimed at rapid service restoration following an AD failure. Handover 4-8 June 2018 $5,000 pa Q2 2018 Q2 2018
Done OHS incident report regarding broken bins at Lalor Complete Equipment in use beyond its service life. Both bins replaced with new equipment. $12,000 Q2 2018 Q2 2018
Done External review of branch / mobiles security following recent thefts Complete All branches visited. Report finalised and accepted by YPRL ELT. $10,000 Q1 2018 Q2 2018

Done Product not working acceptably - library users having difficulties returning items. Complete All chutes upgraded with the exception of Rosanna which will be assessed as part of a planned building upgrade $55,000 16/08/16 Q3 2018

Done Migrate all data communications away from point-to-point radio links Complete Fibre migration for Ivanhoe & Rosanna. Fibre installed - commissioning & switch / firewall upgrade to follow. $20.,000 Q4 2017 Q3 2018
Done Migrate all public PCs to Deep Freeze Cloud Complete Improve management of public PC protection software using Cloud based tools None Q3 2018 Q4 2018

Done Develop three-year ICT operational timeline Complete Multi year internal resource plan for proposed ICT works completed None Q3 2018 Q4 2018
Done Smart RFID bins and sort assistant trial Complete Installed at Mill Park together with Sort-Assist software for testing purposes. Trial ended October 31. Successful. $30,000 Q2 2018 Q4 2018
Done Review & optimise Domain Group Policy Complete Review existing policies in the context of improving efficiencies and user experience None Q1 2019 Q2 2019

Done All branch comms cabinets are currently unsecured Complete Where doors close, keep locked. Where doors can't close, reroute cables on maintenance. None Q2 2017 Q2 2019

Done Symphony LMS upgrade Complete Updated to most current version no: Symphony 3.6 None Q2 2019 Q2 2019

Done OHS issue at Rosanna as they were carrying the TV from office to gaming area Complete TV now mounted to wall for Wii exercise programs $900 Q2 2019 Q2 2019

Done Updating User Experience Complete Google, Spotify, SEEK, LinkedIn, Gmail, Google Maps, YouTube, RealEstate, Facebook, Instagram on front public PC screens None Q2 2019 Q2 2019

P Done Replacing all Desktop PC's and laptops Complete All branches updated. $767,681 1/03/19 Q3 2019

P Done Replacing old print management system with Pharos PC and print management Complete All branches have been updated. $99,345 Q1 2019 Q3 2019

P Done LMS renewed Complete Obtained Board approval for another year extension. $176,858 Q3 2019 Q3 2020

P Done Replacement for current branch & LSS Disaster Recovery servers or similar. Complete New servers are in place. Existing Q4 2018 Q2 2019

P Done Annual Report and Council statistics Complete ICT team provides detailed statisitcs for YPRL Reporting and Council  LGPRF Reports None Q3 2019 Q3 2019

Equipment rollover

Pharos PC and Print Management

LMS Renewal

Server upgrade

Statistics

RMAD for AD

Desktop refresh

iPads

Group Policy

Branch Comms security

Rosanna TV Mount

Lalor returns bins

Branch security review

Data Communications

Deep Freeze Cloud

ICT planning

LMS Upgrade

After hours chutes

Smart Bin trial

Completed Projects from 2019

MDM implementation

Create network DMZ

Remote access

Asset Management

LGPRF data

Residual ADSL

Jul-19YPRL ICT - projects and priorities   Pdenotes progress since previous update

Completed Projects from 2018

Office 365

Security cameras
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Agenda Item 10: CEO Conference Report  

Responsible Officer: Chief Executive Officer 

Author: Jane Cowell, CEO 

  

REPORT 

SUMMARY 

At the February 28, 2019 meeting the Board approved the CEO to attend the Chartered 

Institute of Library and Information Professionals (CILIP), Scotland annual Conference to be 

held in Dundee, Scotland on June 3rd and 4th 2019 as a keynote speaker.  The Board also 

approved the CEO attendance at the Libraries Connected Seminar, held at Coventry, United 

Kingdom (UK), to deliver a presentation to the audience of all UK Library Managers and key 

Local Government Directors on June 13th 2019. 

REPORT 

The Chartered Institute of Library and Information Professionals in Scotland (CILIPS) work in 

partnership with the affiliate UK body, CILIP, to advocate the value of library and 

information professionals’ skills to society.  They hold an annual Scottish national 

conference which this year will be held in at the Dundee Apex Hotel, Dundee Scotland. 

The theme of this year’s conference was ‘Courage, Laughter and Innovation: A Resilient 

Profession’ and I was asked to present on libraries and innovation.  This was a national 

Library and Information Professionals conference with attendees coming from Academic, 

Special and Public Libraries.  The presentation has been made available publicly and can be 

accessed here https://www.slideshare.net/CILIPScotland/innovation-its-a-state-of-mind. 

Feedback from the presentation has been overwhelmingly positive from all sectors of the 

library industry who were in the audience. 

 Examples: Paul Gray from the Scottish Government Library stated in his blog post 

regarding the conference that my presentation was the highlight of the day. His 

reflections can be found here https://sglibraryservices.wordpress.com/ 

 

 Further to the presentation I wrote two blog posts summarising the presentation 

for wider Library Industry reach.  They can be found here: 

https://medium.com/@janecowell8/innovation-its-a-state-of-mind-b3cd770b15c5 

https://medium.com/@janecowell8/6-principles-of-innovation-for-libraries-

9c7a137cbfff 

https://www.slideshare.net/CILIPScotland/innovation-its-a-state-of-mind
https://sglibraryservices.wordpress.com/
https://medium.com/@janecowell8/innovation-its-a-state-of-mind-b3cd770b15c5
https://medium.com/@janecowell8/6-principles-of-innovation-for-libraries-9c7a137cbfff
https://medium.com/@janecowell8/6-principles-of-innovation-for-libraries-9c7a137cbfff
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The two-day conference program was organised with 3 keynote sessions each day and 

concurrent sessions between the keynote presentations.  I took advantage of the 

opportunity to meet with key industry leaders while at the conference as per below: 

 Reading Agency, Scotland 

 Scottish Library and Information Council, Lindsey Henderson, Head of Programme 

 Dr Alyson Tyler, Researcher for Libraries on the Move: The impact of Mobile Library 

services in Scotland 

 Liz McGettigan, Director Digital Library and Cultural Experiences Solus UK & key 

Library Industry influencer for Scotland 

The conference exhibition hall also provided an opportunity to meet with Sirsi Dynix UK 

(YPRL Library Management System) and discuss future developments, Overdrive UK 

representatives (there is no Australian office), and other Library vendors. 

As part of the visit to Scotland I also organised the following meetings and tours: 

 John Coll Associate Director of Access National Library of Scotland, Edinburgh 

 Edinburgh Public Library, Edinburgh 

 Sue John Enterprise Development Manager Glasgow Women’s Library 

Key directions for Public Libraries in Scotland include programs delivering Public Health 

outcomes in partnership with other government agencies.  Programs for Dementia, Social 

Isolation and Loneliness, and Depression are being developed and piloted.  Serious local 

government shortfalls in funding exists and the Scottish Government has increased some 

funding for Public Library initiatives.  Measuring impact of library programs and services is 

an issue and translating these stories and measures for advocacy are also at a very early 

stage in Scotland.  Literacy and reading remain core services for libraries and this includes 

digital literacy for their communities.   
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After a weekend exploring Glasgow, Scotland, Solus UK organised a visit to the Dublin City 

Library and Archive to meet with Brenden Teeling, City Librarian, to discuss their one library 

management system project for the whole of Ireland and their new strategic plan which 

had just been published.  Since my visit the Irish Government has announced further 

funding for Public Libraries, and this is a significant investment.  The key focus areas for 

Ireland’s Public Libraries for the next four (4) years are: 

 Delivering a local service with a National reach 

 National literacy and reading initiative delivered through every library 

 Work Matters programme of services for business and employment supports for 

locally based entrepreneurs, start-ups and jobseekers 

 the Healthy Ireland at Your Library initiative supported by a specific program of 

events, collections and workshops based on physical health, mental health and 

health literacy 

This is supported at the National level by continued investment in library buildings, 

technology and facilities. 

From Dublin, I then went directly to London and prior to my traveling to Coventry for the 

Library Connected Seminar on Wednesday, 12th June Solus UK organised the following 

meetings to discuss public library initiatives. 

 Kelly Saini Badwal, Head of Cultural Services London Borough of Sutton and Juliet 

Pirez, Operations Manager,London Borough of Sutton (Coordinators of the London 

Library Consortium – a group of 16 Boroughs) 

 Liz White, Head of Strategy Development, British Library to discuss the publication 

on June 6th, 2019 their recommendations paper, Digital Transformations for UK 

public libraries: five approaches to a ‘Single Digital Presence’  This report references 

my contribution in regards to  previous research undertaken at State Library of 

Queensland on a Digital Public Library. 

On Tuesday 11th June I also invited to and attended an event at Waterstones, Piccadilly 

Circus for Empathy Day. A cross disciplinary panel that included authors Malorie Blackman 

and Joseph Coelho and Professor Robin Banerjee, a mental health expert, discussed the 

importance of reading, diversity in publishing and diverse collections represented in 

libraries.  The audience was filled with librarians and I was also able to meet several Library 

Managers who were going to the Libraries Connected Seminar.  

Libraries Connected is a United Kingdom (UK) a newly formed charity building on the 

previous organisation known as Society of Chief Librarians (SCL). It is now partly funded by 

Arts Council England as the Sector Support Organisation for libraries in the UK.  Libraries 

Connected holds an annual conference aimed at Public Library Managers and senior 

managers from Local Government, held at University of Warwick in Coventry, UK. This 

year’s theme was Libraries: A place for us all.  The Seminar is a mix of presentations and 

workshops and my presentation, Partnerships for shared solutions was held on the first day 

13th June in the afternoon. Key YPRL initiatives highlighted in my presentation were 

Libraries After Dark, and Araleun and the Chancez café partnership.  As Public Health and 

https://www.librariesireland.ie/services/work-matters
https://www.librariesireland.ie/services/healthy-ireland-at-your-library
https://www.bl.uk/britishlibrary/~/media/bl/global/about%20us/freedom%20of%20information/publication%20scheme/3%20priorities/1%20strategic%20plans/five%20approaches%20to%20a%20single%20digital%20presence.pdf
https://www.bl.uk/britishlibrary/~/media/bl/global/about%20us/freedom%20of%20information/publication%20scheme/3%20priorities/1%20strategic%20plans/five%20approaches%20to%20a%20single%20digital%20presence.pdf
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Social Enterprise / Inclusion are a key outcome for UK Public Libraries these projects ignited 

a significant amount of interest. 

The key workshops I attended were: 

 How Gloucestershire Libraries are using innovation to deliver 360 business support: 

connecting businesses, entrepreneurs and communities with the technology of the 

future 

 Reaching Out and drawing in: a strategic audience development workshop. 

Exploring different types of engagement strategies to reach new audiences and 

strengthen existing relationships 

The fiscal environment in the UK Public Library sector is dire, with a significant number of 

public libraries closing or being handed over to volunteers to run with minimal investment 

in collections, programs and infrastructure.  Advocacy for the role of libraries, both public 

and school libraries, is essential and organisations such as Libraries Connected, CILIP and 

Authors are responding more readily to this situation.  Interestingly the presentation by 

Simon Quin, Co-Chair of the Institute of Place Management on Reshaping town centres: 

why libraries matter demonstrated that libraries can be anchor spaces to activate dying 

High Streets as physical retail continues to suffer a downturn, especially in regional areas.   

Attending this conference, even for one day, brought home the lead role the Australian 

public library network plays globally and how responsive our public libraries and our 

representative organisations are to meet our local communities’ needs and delivering for 

local government outcomes.  The recent advocacy campaign for public libraries ‘Libraries 

Change Lives’ has been in development for 3 years, whereas the UK Library organisations 

are only starting to have this conversation and planning now.  Previous key outcome 

measures such as Libraries Work research are in their second iterations and this has not 

been undertaken at a national level in the UK.  It is noticeable, however, that those library 

services that have expanded their offer, found strategic partners and have good advocacy 

within their local Councils, such as Manchester Libraries, have maintained their funding and 

libraries.   

CONSULTATION 

N/A 

CRITICAL DATES 

N/A 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

CILIP Scotland covered all travel and accommodation costs from Australia to Dundee and a 

return flight from Birmingham.  This included conference attendance costs, accommodation 

and meals. 

SOLUS UK covered all travel and accommodation costs as a sponsorship for attendance at 

key industry meetings from June 4th to June 14th 2019.  This included conference 

attendance costs and meals. 
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POLICY STRATEGY AND LEGISLATION 

Nil 

LINKS TO STRATEGIC PLAN 

Advocacy 

 Seize opportunities to tell the story of our sector leading services at State, National 

and International conferences 

 Advocate the role of public libraries in creating sustainable cities, towns and 

communities 

DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

Under section 80C of the Local Government Act 1989 officers providing advice to the 

Library must disclose any interests, including type of interest.  

The Responsible Officer reviewing this report, having made enquiries with the relevant 

members of staff, reports that no disclosable interests have been raised in relation to this 

report. 

CONCLUSION 

Sincere thanks to the Board for supporting me in being able to take up this significant 

professional opportunity to speak at these two International Library conferences.  YPRL was 

showcased as an innovative Public Library service on the international stage and the 

network of key public library industry leaders interested in YPRL has been extended in this 

part of the world. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT the Board resolves to receive the report 

 M:  

 S:  
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Agenda Item 11: Audit Committee Report 

Responsible Officer: Chief Executive Officer 

Author: Jane Cowell, CEO 

 

REPORT 

SUMMARY 

This report is for the Board’s information. 

The Audit Committee meeting will be held immediately prior to the Board meeting.   

A verbal report will be given to the Board. 

LINKS TO STRATEGIC PLAN 

Finance and Governance 

Goal: Optimise public value through sustainable financial management and governance 

Strategy: 

 Committing to good governance practices in all we do 

DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

Under section 80C of the Local Government Act 1989 officers providing advice to the 

Library must disclose any interests, including type of interest. 

The Responsible Officer reviewing this report, having made enquiries with the relevant 

members of staff, reports that no disclosable interests have been raised in relation to this 

report. 

RECOMMENDATION 

THAT the Board resolves to receive the report 

 M:  

 S:  
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SECTION F 
 

Consideration of action petitions and joint letters  
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SECTION G 
 

General Business  

 


